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Rural Initiatives/Planning Advisory Committee Meeting 

Tuesday, December 1, 2020 
1:00 P.M. 

Meeting to be held electronically. 

Agenda 

1. Approval of Agenda

2. Approval of the Minutes

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof

4. 2021 Community Grant Program Requests

5. Correspondence

i. Letter from Loyalist Township to The Prime Minister of Canada and 
Premier of Ontario regarding funding for community groups and service 
clubs affected by the pandemic.

6. Date of Next Meeting

7. Adjournment

 
Accessible formats available upon request.



DRAFT MINUTES 
Rural Initiatives/Planning Advisory Committee Meeting 

Date: August 26, 2020 
Location: Elgin County Administration Building, 450 Sunset Drive, St. Thomas 

Administrative Services Boardroom, 3rd Floor 
Time: 9:00 A.M. 

Attendees: Members of the Rural Initiatives/Planning Advisory Committee 
Councillor Ed Ketchabaw (electronic) 
Councillor Sally Martyn (electronic) 
Councillor Dominique Giguѐre (electronic) 
Warden Dave Mennill (electronic) 

Elgin County Staff 
Chief Administrative Officer, Julie Gonyou (in-person) 
Director of Financial Services, Jim Bundschuh (electronic) 
General Manager of Economic Development, Alan Smith (electronic) 
Supervisor of Legislative Services and Community Relations, Katherine 
Thompson (electronic) 
Carolyn Krahn, Legislatives Services Coordinator (in-person) 

Regrets: Heather Derks 

1. Call to Order

The Rural Initiatives/Planning Advisory Committee met this 26th day of August, 2020 in
the Administrative Services Boardroom, at the County Administration Building, St.
Thomas at 9:00 A.M. Committee Members joined the meeting electronically via video
conferencing.

2. Approval of Agenda

Moved by: Warden Mennill
Seconded by: Councillor Martyn

Resolved that the agenda be approved as presented.

Recorded Vote

- Motion Carried.

Yes No 
Warden Dave Mennill Yes 
Councillor Dominique Giguѐre Yes 
Councillor Sally Martyn Yes 
Councillor Ed Ketchabaw Yes 

4 0 



3. Adoption of Minutes

Moved by: Councillor Giguère
Seconded by: Councillor Martyn

Resolved that the minutes of the previous meeting be adopted.

Recorded Vote

- Motion Carried.

4. Additional Funding Requests and Community Grant Program Approval

The Supervisor of Legislative Services and Community Relations provided an update on
funding requests received from community members on behalf of local event organizers.
While the Committee decided to support Community Service organizations who
developed new and creative ways of delivering their services during the pandemic, on
June 23, 2020 the Committee decided not to provide financial support to festivals and
events that had been cancelled. No requests for additional funds have been received
directly from event organizers, but some community members have requested that the
County consider providing operational funds to support organizations even if their events
and festivals have been cancelled.

The application period for the 2021 calendar year will open on September 1, 2020, and
the timelines will allow the Committee to provide funding earlier in the new year. All
previous applicants will be encouraged to apply.

Moved by: Warden Mennill
Seconded by: Councillor Giguère

RESOLVED THAT the August 19th, 2020, report titled, Additional Funding Requests and
Community Grant Program Approval, submitted by the Supervisor of Legislative Services
and Community Relations, be received and filed for information; and,

THAT the Rural Initiatives and Planning Advisory Committee does not recommend
additional funding at this time.

Yes No 
Warden Dave Mennill Yes 
Councillor Dominique Giguѐre Yes 
Councillor Sally Martyn Yes 
Councillor Ed Ketchabaw Yes 

4 0 



Recorded Vote 

- Motion Carried.

The Supervisor of Legislative Services and Community Relations presented the final 
drafts of the Community Grant Program application packages for Community Services, 
Festivals and Events, and Community Signage. The application packages were reduced 
in size, language was simplified, and duplicate questions were removed to ensure a 
positive experience for the grant applicant. Staff will seek feedback regarding the new 
program from applicants at the end of the 2021 process.  

Moved by: Councillor Martyn 
Seconded by: Councillor Giguѐre 

RESOLVED THAT the Community Grant Program application packages for Community 
Services, Festivals and Events and Community Signage be approved and that staff 
proceed with implementation of the 2021 process beginning on September 1, 2020. 

Recorded Vote 

- Motion Carried.

5. Next Meeting Date

The next meeting date will be at the call of the Chair.

6. Adjournment

Moved by: Councillor Mennill
Seconded by: Councillor Giguère

Resolved that the meeting adjourn at 9:21 a.m. to meet again at the call of the Chair.

Yes No 
Warden Dave Mennill Yes 
Councillor Dominique Giguѐre Yes 
Councillor Sally Martyn Yes 
Councillor Ed Ketchabaw Yes 

4 0 

Yes No 
Warden Dave Mennill Yes 
Councillor Dominique Giguѐre Yes 
Councillor Sally Martyn Yes 
Councillor Ed Ketchabaw Yes 

4 0 



Recorded Vote 

- Motion Carried.

Yes No 
Warden Dave Mennill Yes 
Councillor Dominique Giguѐre Yes 
Councillor Martyn Yes 
Councillor Ed Ketchabaw Yes 

4 0 
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REPORT TO RURAL INITIATIVES 
AND PLANNING ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE 
FROM:  Katherine Thompson, Supervisor of 
Legislative Services 

DATE:  November 26, 2020 

SUBJECT:  2021 Community Grant Program 
Requests 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the November 26, 2020, report titled, 2021 Community Grant Program Requests, 
submitted by the Supervisor of Legislative Services, be received and filed for 
information; and,  

THAT the Rural Initiatives and Planning Advisory Committee consider the 2021 
Community Grant Program funding requests as attached to this report; and,  

THAT the Rural Initiatives and Planning Advisory Committee present the Community 
Grant Program recommendations to Council for consideration on December 10, 2020. 

INTRODUCTION: 

The Rural Initiatives and Planning Advisory Committee is responsible for considering 
grant requests made to Council through the Community Grant Program and providing 
recommendations to Council as to which organizations should be granted funding as 
part of the Council budget process. Council then considers these recommendations for 
implementation. The 2021 Community Grant Program application period opened on 
September 1, 2020 and closed on November 10, 2020.  

DISCUSSION: 

In 2020, the Rural Initiatives and Planning Advisory Committee developed a new 
Community Grant Program (CGP) to guide the allocation of Council’s grant budget in 
2021. The grant program was divided into two streams – Community Services and 



2 

Festivals and Events. These two streams were further divided into Cultivate (existing 
programs and events) and Seed (new programs and events) grants. The Committee 
developed new application packages to correspond with these programs, clearly 
defining criteria and eligibility. The Committee did not make changes to the Signage 
Program but did update the application package. The new CGP was approved by 
County Council on July 14, 2020 and was launched on September 1, 2020. 

A dedicated website was created (www.elgincounty.ca/communitygrantprogram) where 
application packages and a video explaining these new packages could be accessed by 
community groups. All previous applicants were sent notice in September and October 
explaining the new program and outlining application deadlines. Elgin County Tourism 
members were also notified twice and staff engaged in extensive social media 
promotion of the program over the course of the application period.  

In 2021 the proposed budget allocation for grants is $66,304 which is $3.40 per 
household. In total 18 grant requests were received with a total funding request of 
$111,513. Please see below for a breakdown of applications by category. 

Community Grant Stream Number of Applicants Total Funding Request 
Community Services - 
Cultivate 

5 $28,469 

Community Services - 
Seed 

0 $0 

Festival and Event - 
Cultivate 

11 $72,750 

Festival and Event - Seed 1 $10,000 
Signage Grant 1 $300 

Totals: 18 $111,513 

Also attached to this report is a summary of all grant requests received for 2021, their 
grant requests and data from the 2020 grant period.  

All CGP requests received are attached to this report for the Committee’s consideration. 

http://www.elgincounty.ca/communitygrantprogram
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ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES: 

Serving Elgin Growing Elgin Investing in Elgin 

☒ Ensuring alignment of
current programs and
services with community
need.

☐ Exploring different
ways of addressing
community need.

☒ Engaging with our
community and other
stakeholders.

☐ Planning for and
facilitating commercial,
industrial, residential,
and agricultural growth.

☐ Fostering a healthy
environment.

☒ Enhancing quality of
place.

☐ Ensuring we have the
necessary tools,
resources, and
infrastructure to deliver
programs and services
now and in the future.

☒ Delivering mandated
programs and services
efficiently and
effectively.

LOCAL MUNICIPAL PARTNER IMPACT: 

None. 

COMMUNICATION REQUIREMENTS: 

The Committee will bring a report to County Council on December 19, 2020 with its 
Community Grant Program recommendations. Applicants, both successful and 
unsuccessful, will be notified. 

CONCLUSION: 

The County of Elgin has received 18 of applications under the Community Grant 
Program amounting to a total grant request of $111,513. All grant requests are attached 
to this report for the Committee’s consideration.   
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Approved for Submission 

Julie Gonyou 
Chief Administrative Officer 

All of which is Respectfully Submitted 

Katherine Thompson 
Supervisor of Legislative Services 



2021 COMMUNITY GRANT PROGRAM REQUEST SUMMARY 

Grants 2020 Request 2020 Allocation 2021 Request 
Community Services - Cultivate 
Port Stanley Optimist Club $0 $0 $3,264 
Second Stage Housing $20,000 $13,400 $10,000 
STEAM Centre $12,000 $3000 $10,000 
Multi-Service Centre $4,780 $4780 $3,205 
4-H Association $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 
Quad County Support Services $2,000 $2,000 $0 
Eat2Learn $7,500 $6,250 $0 
Total CS Cultivate Requests $28,469 
Festival and Event - Cultivate 
Aylmer and East Elgin 
Agricultural Society – Aylmer Fair 
Mural Project 

$7,500 $0 $10,000 

Bayham Beachfest $0 $0 $10,000 
Bayham Historical Society – 
Edisonfest 

$0 $0 $1,500 

C.A.L.I.P.S.O Port Stanley $0 $0 $10,000 
Elgin County Plowmen’s 
Association 

$200 $0 $250 

Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse $0 $0 $10,000 
Port Stanley Festival Theatre $0 $0 $5,000 
Wallacetown Agricultural Society $10,000 $0 $10,000 
Rodney Aldborough Agricultural 
Society  

$6,000 $0 $10,000 

Shedden Agricultural Society $4,500 $0 $4,500 
Elgin-Middlesex VON- Seniors 
Day in the Park 

$1,500 $0 $1,500 

Total F&E Cultivate Requests $72,750 
Festival and Event – Seed 
Dutton Dunwich Economic 
Development Committee and 
Dutton Business Network – 
Dutton Night Market 

$0 $0 $10,000 

Total F&E Seed Requests $10,000 
Signage Grant 



Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse 
– 2 Signs

$0 $0 $300 

Aylmer Malahide Museum – 1 
Sign 

$150 $150 $0 

Total Signage Grant Requests $300 

Grant Allocation Per Household $3.17 $3.17 $3.40 
Total Households 19,499 19,499 19,499 

Grant Allocation Per Grant Policy $61,871 $66,304 

Total Community Grant Program 
Requests/Allocations 

$83,480 $31,580 $111,513 

* Grant applications were not broken down into Community Services (Cultivate and Seed) and Festival and Events (Cultivate and Seed) in 2020
but are organized in this manner to reflect the new Community Grant Program. In the chart above, total requests have been provided for each
category and then a final total request number at the bottom. Total Request by category has not been indicated for 2020 as these categories did
not exist at the time. A total ask is indicated at the bottom.

* Many 2020 grant allocations amounted to $0 as a result of COVID-19 event cancellations.

* No applications were received in the Community Services Seed Grant category.

*Eat2Learn indicated that the need in the community for their services continues to be strong; however, they were able to secure a few private
donors for the 2021 calendar year and would not be seeking County funding this year.

* Quad County Support Services did not apply for this in-take.

*The organizations listed in red would previously have applied under the Economic Development and Tourism Festival and Event Partnership
Program (FEPP) which has been combined as part of the Community Grant Program – Festival and Event Stream. This is the first year these
applicants are included as part of Council’s grant process. The program was cancelled last year as a result of COVID-19. This may indicate why
the total ask is significantly higher in 2021 than in 2020, as these events would have been considered under a separate grant program which had
$4,000 allocated for distribution. This $4,000 has been incorporated into the grant allocation for 2021 and is reflected in the $66,304 amount.

* Grant requests exceed proposed grant allocations by $45, 209.



The Aylmer and East Elgin Agricultural Society: 

Art Mural – Celebrating 175 Years of Service 







Bayham Beachfest



FESTIVALS AND EVENTS APPLICATION 
CULTIVATE  GRANTS ONLY 
 
Application Deadline: November 10, 2020 (intake 1) 
 

Please submit a paper copy or fill out the online form and refer to the application checklist at the end of the application to 
ensure your application is complete. 

 
General Organization/Applicant Information 
Name: _T_e_rr_i _V_a_n_s_e_ve_n_a_n_t_________________________________ 
Title: _B_a_y_h_a_m_B__e_ac_h_f_e_s_t C__o_m_m__itt_e_e_M__e_m_b_e_r__________________ 
Organization: _B_a_y_h_a_m_B__e_ac_h_f_e_s_t ___________________________ 
Festival or event: _B_a_y_h_a_m_B__ea_c_h_f_e_s_t ______________________ 
 
Grant request (in dollars*): $ _1_0_,0_0_0_.0_0_________ 
(* request should represent no more than 50% of the total program or service budget and must not exceed $10,000) 

 

Organization 

 
1.) Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin County, information about your 
legal status (not-for-profit, etc., mandate or mission statement), and description of the implementation team. 

Mission statement: Bayham Beachfest, connecting people and community. Our core value is to 
provide a family friendly social gathering place where life if good. 
 
The Bayham Beachfest committee consists solely on a small group of volunteers who are committed 
to continuing an annual event in the community of Port Burwell, Ontario. The annual event is held on 
the civic holiday weekend in August each year. 
 
2.) How is your organization funded? 
 
Bayham Beachfest is funded through the volunteer committee efforts of fundraising and donations. 
We approach many local business through door knocking and letters mailed requesting their help to 
offset costs of the event.  During the event we host a "Bucket Drive" to help the support the cost of 
the event as admission is free to all. 
 
Design 
 

3.) Please provide a brief description of the festival or event you are proposing, including the steps you are taking to ensure a 
well-planned program or service. 

 
 The Bayham Beachfest is a 2 day event traditionally located on the beach in Port Burwell. Due to 
high water levels, the event is planned to shift to the downtown core. The event is scheduled to host 
Lucas Wilson, famous entertainment act, Car show, Crafts, Dog agility course, bouncy castles and 
much more. The event finale on Sunday evening includes our Amazing Firework show over Lake 
Erie. Please see the attachment : About Bayham Beachfest and Bayham Beachfest 2020 Lineup
  
4.) Please provide details of key dates and scheduled activities for the festival or event. 
 
See attachment: Bayham Beachfest 2020 Lineup. The event committee plan to use the same lineup 
for 2021. The event is scheduled to be held Saturday July 31-Sunday August 1 2021. Saturday July 
31 will host a wide variety of acts and entertainment, fun for the whole family. Sunday is an extension 
of saturday's festivities, but will conclude on Sunday evening with a fantastic firework display over the 



water. 
 
5.) How many people do you hope your festival or event will reach? 
 
Typically our event has brought an audience of 5,000-8,000 visitors from all over our region. We are 
confident we will reach these numbers again, provided Covid 19 protocol allow the event. 
 
Needs/Impact 
 

6.) Who is your targeted audience and does it fill a need in the community? 

 
As stated in our mission statement, our event is held for visitors, tourists, families and members of 
our community. Members of the community come together and volunteer where needed. The event 
creates a social gathering place for all to enjoy. Businesses throughout Elgin County thrive during the 
Beachfest as well, local business, the beach area and the Provinicial Park are all very busy during 
the event, bringing a much needed injection of funds to the local community. 

 

7.) Please describe how widely the festival or event is accessible to the target population and how you've aligned resources 
accordingly. 
 
The Bayham Beachfest has brought thousands of visitors to Elgin County over the past years. Many 
visitors and tourists travel from all over south west Ontario passing through many small communities 
before reaching their destination in Port Burwell. This gives many visitors to our area an opportunity 
to experience much of what Elgin County has to offer. 
 
8.) How will your festival or event ensure accessibility and accommodate increased participation (i.e. persons with 
disabilities)? 

 
See attachment: Accessibility in Ontario.  The Bayham Beachfest committee will do our best to follow 
guidelines layed out in the document. 
 
Cultivate/Renewal 
 

9.) What has changed about your festival or event? (e.g. how will you build on your success, grow your reach, enhance the 
quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new features, programs, services, outreach methods or revenue 
sources?) 

The 2021 Bayham Beachfest will implement all Covid-19 protocols if  possible. We will require input 
from South Western Public Health to guide us to provide a safe environment for all. Due to a flooded 
beach area and extremely low volunteerism, the 2019 event did not go as planned. In 2020 the entire 
event was cancelled. Moving forward into 2021 we remain extremely hopeful the Bayham Beachfest 
will be held. Our committee is dedicated to bringing our event back with a vengence this coming Civic 
holiday weekend. Our team is committed to enhancing our festival by constantly searching for a 
variety of interesting vendors, activities and entertainers who can offer our festival continued growth 
and development.  Using promotional methods to grow our event such as our website 
www.bayhambeachfest.com , social media, radio, posters & flyers, commercial property signage.  
However,funding will determine the magnitude of the event. 
 
 
10.) How will you measure the success of the event or festival? 
 
We will measure success by asking "Did we meet our objective". We as a committee will be collecting 
festival statistics such as positive and negative feedback, social impact on the community, economic 
impact, attendance, festival revenue, enjoyable experiences for all involved. Did we provide an event 
that our target audience was expecting, did we achieve local pride.



Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability 
 

11.) Please attach a detailed budget of your festival or event including all revenues, expenses and in-kind contributions and 
information about other sources of funding (e.g. estimated volunteer hours, government funding, sponsorships). 

 
12.) Please attach your organization's financial information, including revenue and expenses for previous year (i.e. 
audited financial statements) and explanation of line items (e.g. annual membership fees or notes for significant variances), 
if available. 

 

13.) Why is this funding critical to your operations? Please be as specific as possible. 
 
Receiving funding will allow the Bayham Beachfest to meet objectives, goals and devlopment not 
only for the event itself but also for the Port Burwell community. Our event relies solely on the efforts 
of a small committee made up of volunteers who give a large amount of their time and dedication. 
Our small committee work tirelessly to raise funds and seek donations to support our event as we 
don't have an admission fee. Donations are dwindling as many small business owners face a very 
challenging time. We pride ourselves on hosting an event that can be attended by all. The Bayham 
Beachfest brings so much joy to everyone who attends,we want families to have an enjoyable 
experience that will put smiles on their faces. 
 

 



Bayham Beachfest 2019 Financial Statement

Balance forward chq # Debit Credit Balance
31-Jan no activity 0 0 5140.23
28-Feb no activity 0 0 5140.23
28-Mar interest adjustment 5 5145.23
28-Mar interest adjustment 5 5140.23
30-Apr no activity 0 0 5140.23

31-May no activity 0 0 5140.23
30-Jun no activity 0 0 5140.23
31-Jul no activity 0 0 5140.23

01-Aug Erie shore wind farm 7500 12640.23
municipality of Bayham 2000 14650.23
vienna Lioness 350 14990.23
Periscope playhouse 200 15190.23
Martens Farms 1000 16190.23

Cash deposit Bucket drive 7085 23275.23
Cash deposit 0.65 23275.88

07-Aug Victory Fireworks 15000 8275.88
30-Sep no activity 0 0 8275.88
31-Oct no activity 0 0 8275.88
28-Nov HWC Insurance 125 211.16 8064.72
17-Dec Terri Vansevenant mass mailing of donation requests 127 337.85 7726.87

The Bayham Beachfest could not be held on the beach in 2019 due to high water levels flooding the beach.
Businesses were asked to host their own events and festivities on Main street.  street. This resulted in no expenses forin few expenses
compared to previous years. All acts, entertainment, and activities were cancelled due to not having beach access.

Fireworks display took place on pier over water.





Bayham Beachfest 2021 Budget 

Fireworks    $15,000 

Main Stage   2,500  

Entertainers   2,000 

Insurance    4,692 

Liquor license     300 

Face painter/art      500 

Kid Zone    2,677 

Merchandise   2,000 

Portable Toilettes    577 

Games      300 

Total             $30,546 



About Bayham Beachfest 
In 2015, a group of residents organized themselves into a volunteer committee 
determined to preserve one of Port Burwell’s favourite summer events, Bayham Beachfest, 
formerly known as “Tub Daze”. 

The goodwill, energy and ideas are flowing through the committee and will now be 
directed at turning this summer event into what is hoped to be a fun and memorable 
experience for everyone. The event will also encourage people to visit Elgin County and 
provide a much needed economic stimulus for all businesses within Port Burwell and 
surrounding communities. 

One of our core values is focusing on a Family Friendly event over the Civic Holiday 
weekend in August. 

• Saturday’s events will include Lucas Wilson, famous entertainment act, Dog walk, 
Car show, crafts at the Marine Museum, Dog Agility course, Bouncy Castle, Face 
painting, Vendor Alley and Live musical entertainment 

• Sunday will be an extension Saturday’s events, but will include our Grand Finale of 
an AMAZING FIREWORKS SHOW over the water of Lake Erie. 

We are constantly searching for a variety of interesting vendors, activities and 
entertainers to continue to grow and develop this fantastic event. Please feel free to reach 
out to our committee with your thoughts and suggestions. 

Bayham Beachfest is about family, fun and community. We are looking forward to a great 
summer weekend this August in Port Burwell. Our committee welcomes any and all to 
come and join our growing group of Bayham neighbors dedicated to having a good time 
while working to make our community even better. 

Bayham Beachfest, connecting people & community. Our core value is to provide a family 
friendly social gathering place where life is good. 

Please contact us at www.bayhambeachfest.com 

 



Accessibility in Ontario:  Guideline 
The Bayham Beachfest has adopted The Accessibility for Ontarians with disabilities Act (AODA) to make it 
possible for people of all abilities to be part of our festival. Our vision is to ensure that all involved e.g. 
Audience, Volunteers, Vendors, and Artists can participate. 
 
This guide has been designed to help increase attendance and make our Festival more enjoyable for everyone 
by improving event accessibility. It can help us with planning our Festival, running events, gathering feedback 
and improving the festival experience. 
 
A person with a disability can be someone who: 

• Has low or no hearing 
• Has low or no vision 
• Lives with a mental health issue 
• Uses a cane, wheelchair or other mobility device to get around 

 
Requirements as a Volunteer Organization, we chose to draft this guide to help us improve the accessibility 
of our Festival so that the people who come back year after year can do so regardless of their ability and we 
can attract new festival-goers with disabilities to our Festival. 
 
Accessible Parking Spaces: Many people will use a car or van to come to our event. Picking a venue with 
accessible parking or creating a sufficient number of accessible parking spaces will make it easier for people 
with disabilities to attend our event. 
When planning event parking, we will create accessible spaces as close as possible to: 

• Paths to the nearest accessible venue entries and exits 
• Any lifts and ramps for people using mobility devices 
• Accessible washrooms and toilets 
• Tip – it is helpful to use arrival, exit and directional signs that are clear and can be read in all light conditions. 

The signs should start outside the parking area, so festival-goers can easily find accessible parking. 
 
Paths of Travel: As we plan our event we need to think about the routes people will take throughout the venue 
and plan for accessible paths across the site that link all attractions and services. 
Tip – electrical wires are a tripping hazard for everyone. Keep electrical wires out of the paths of travel or use 
cable protectors that are wheelchair accessible and are in bright/contrasting colours to alert people with low 
vision. 
Stage and Seating: A ramp can used to provide stage access for people who may use mobility devices. 
Create or reserve areas with enough room for mobility devices with a view of the stage from a seated position. 
Ensure there are added seats and space for friends, family support persons or service animals. Some seats 
can be positioned to allow service animals to accompany their owner and rest in front of or under the seat. 
 
Food Services and Public Eating Areas: Event participants should be able to easily reach food services 
using an accessible route and food service booths should allow a person in a wheelchair to reach them. 
Vendors should consider the use of large print copies of menus for people with low vision. 
 
Washrooms and Temporary Toilets: Accessible toilets can make or break a festival enjoyment for a person 
with a disability. Accessible washrooms and temporary toilets should be at ground level and away from crowds 
and sound systems but not so far that they are inconvenient to reach. 
 
Rest Area/Quiet Spaces: Consider designating a quiet space for rest, especially if our event attracts large 
crowds and is longer than a couple of hours. This can be helpful for individuals with different types of 
disabilities or needs such as mental health issues, sensory issues, fatigue issues and nursing mothers. 
 
Rain, Wind, Sun Shelters: Prolonged exposure to rain, wind and sun can be an unpleasant experience. Some 
people with disabilities are at particular risk from the elements. Consider providing open or closed side tents or 
canopies to provide weather protection. Also if festival-goers are at risk of becoming overheated, provide cool 
mist canopies or fans to cool people (and service animals) in extreme temperatures. 
 
 
 



Signs: Signs should be in large, easy to read font with good colour contrast. Clear signs at drop off zones and 
parking areas should help direct people to specific areas across the site. Signs should indicate the accessibility 
features located along the path of travel and event areas. Signs at different heights can also help assist people 
moving through crowds and help them see when they are at specific locations. 
 
Support Persons: Support persons may be helping some people with disabilities at our Festivals. A support 
person must be allowed to go wherever the person they support goes. A support person can help with: 

• Mobility 
• Personal care 
• Medical needs…and more 
•  

Service Animals: Guide dogs are one type of service animal but other kinds of animals are trained to help 
people with disabilities. A person with a disability and their service animal can go to all areas that the public 
would normally be allowed to go. 
Designate a suitable area as a rest area for service animals ensuring Volunteers know how to direct people to 
this area and post appropriate signs. 
Tip – provide water for service animals although the care of service animals remains the owner’s responsibility. 
By making care of service animals easier, we’ll create a welcoming festival for people who are assisted by 
service animals. 
 
Training staff and Volunteers: Training should be made available for all Volunteers on 

• How to communicate with people with different types of disabilities 
• Our accessibility features 
• Our evacuation procedures for people with disabilities 
• How to give feedback to festival organizers about the event’s accessibility 

Tip – use considerate language when talking about disabilities e.g. use “people with disabilities” instead of 
“disabled people� or the disabled”. 
Note: one in seven Ontarians has a disability so there’s a good chance that at least one of our festival 
volunteers has a disability. By taking into account volunteers with disabilities, we can show that accessibility for 
all participants is important for our events. 
 
Communication Supports: There are many ways to ensure the music, performances, speakers or exhibits at 
our Festival are accessible by: 

• Booking a person to provide captions for live events 
• Booking an Interpreter who is qualified in American Sign Language or in Langes des signes Quebecois. 
• Providing volunteers to describe performances to persons with low or no vision 

To ensure people with disabilities make an informed decision about attending our Festivals, we will post 
information about communication support provided in places where we provide general festival information. 
Remind Speakers, Performers, Master of Ceremonies and other Presenters to: 

• Speak at a normal pace 
• Stay within the allotted time 
• Make sure there is a clear view of their face and mouth 
• Use the microphone at all times 
• Use language that is considerate of persons with disabilities 
•  

Maps and Information: We can help people make informed decisions about whether our events are 
accessible by providing detailed information about our accessibility features before our events. Brochures, 
websites, ads, and maps can include information about accessible toilets, viewing areas, and the location of 
accessible parking spaces. 
Tip – give people access to our emergency and safety information, like maps, evacuation plans, brochures or 
signs ensuring these are easy to read, see, hear or understand for someone with a disability. 
 
Other Accessibility Considerations: when planning our Festival we should think about including: 

• Dedicated accessibility volunteers- making accessibility concerns the responsibility of our Accessibility 
Coordinator 

• Mobility device charging stations – providing outlets for people with power wheelchairs, scooters and other 
electronic mobility devices and medical equipment 



• Mobility equipment – proving access to wheelchairs, walkers or canes as needed free of charge 
• Accessibility information areas – providing spots where people with disabilities can get information on the 

festival’s accessibility features e.g. Site Headquarters near the entrance. Relevant information should be 
placed on signs or available in pamphlets throughout the venue. Site Headquarters should have a level 
pathway and at a height that someone using a wheelchair could access; brochures should be in large print and 
high contrast formats for people with low vision. 

• Municipality Accessibility Advisory Committee – consider consulting with the Municipality during the planning 
phase of our Festivals 
Ask for Feedback – collect feedback before, during and after festivals. 
 

Promote our Festivals 
Before our Festivals we will tell people about our accessibility features. This will introduce returning festival-
goers to new features and will help new festival – goers with disabilities make informed choices. 
Our website and Facebook page are the most popular source of information about our accessibility features. 
Tip – we try and make accessibility information on our site easy to find and ensure volunteers and organizers 
are prepared to answer accessibility related questions. 
Promoting our accessibility features where we promote our events will let potential festival-goers know their 
accessibility needs are being seriously considered. e.g. print ads, local news, social media, posters, flyers. 



Bayham Beachfest 2020 

Saturday August 1 

10:00- dusk Vendor ally 

10-10:30 Lucas Wilson -  Periscope Playhouse 

10-2:00 -  Trinity Church Open House & Treasure Hunt 

11-1:00 Crafts at Marine Museum 

11:30-12:00 Dog Walk (Simply Scoops to Library Gazebo) 

12-00- 5:00 Run Spot Run ( Dog agility course) Library Gazebo 

12-5:00 Car show 

12-6:00 Dotsy Bouncy Castle 

1-4:00 Face painting 

1-3:00 Back to the 50’s (main stage) 

2-2:30 Lucas Wilson 

4-4:30 Lucas Wilson 

 

Sunday August 2 

10-dusk Vendor Ally 

11-1:00 crafts at Marine Museum 

11:30-open invitation to Trinity Church Service 

12-4: 00 Dotsy bouncy Castle 

1-3:00 face painting 

2-3:00 Lucas Wilson 

3-5:00 Rhapsody Rebelz (main stage) 

4-7:00 Hot air Balloon 

DUSK : FIREWORKS DISPLAY OVER WATER 



Municipality of

BAYHAM
A:  P.O. Box 160, 56169 Heritage Line

Straffordville, ON N0J 1Y0

T:  519-866-5521

F:  519- 866- 3884

E:  bayham@bayham. on.ca

W: www.bayham. on.ca

March 20, 2020

Beachfest Committee

RE: BEACHFEST

Please be advised on March 19, 2020 the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Bayham
passed the following resolution: 

THAT Report CAO-12/20 re Municipal Assistance – Bayham Beachfest be received for
information; 

AND THAT the Council of the Municipality of Bayham grants permission to use the following
locations: 

Pitt Street from 20 Pitt Street to Robinson Street Port Burwell including Marine
Museum Parking Lot for Bayham Beachfest activities on Saturday August 1, 2020
from 10:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m. and Sunday, August 2, 2020 from 10:00 a.m. to
6:00 p.m.; 
Chatham Street Green Space for Bayham Beachfest activities on Saturday, 
August 1, 2020 from 10:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. and Sunday, August 2, 2020 from
10:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m.; 
Port Burwell Pier for fireworks display and two (2) parking spaces near the Pier
for equipment on Sunday, August 2, 2020 from 4:00 p.m. – 11:00 p.m.; 

AND THAT Bayham Beachfest provide a certificate of insurance, naming the Municipality of
Bayham as an additional insured, in the minimum amount of $2 million liability, covering all
events; 

AND THAT the Bayham Beachfest Fireworks Company provide a certificate of insurance, 
naming the Municipality of Bayham as an additional insured, in the minimum amount of $2
million liability, covering all events; 

AND THAT Bayham Beachfest obtain the necessary approvals from Southwestern Public
Health, the Ontario Provincial Police and the Bayham Fire Chief, as per the Municipal Event
Notice and provide a copy of the same to the Municipality of Bayham; 

AND THAT all other terms and conditions of the municipal rental agreement remain in effect; 

AND THAT the clean-up of the event areas and any costs thereof, be the responsibility of
the organizers; 

AND THAT arrangements be made with the Municipality of Bayham Roads Operations
Supervisor to provide picnic tables, garbage cans / recycle barrels, pylons and barricades for
the pier; 

AND THAT for the requirements noted above, quantity and location for drop off with map be
provided to the Municipality one month prior to the event. 



Please review the resolution and take the necessary steps to ensure all requirements are met. 

Please ensure your insurance provider forwards copy of liability certificate to the undersigned. 

If you have any questions or concerns, feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Regards, 

Paul Shipway
CAO|Clerk
pshipway@bayham. on.ca



Edisonfest



FESTIVALS AND EVENTS APPLICATION 
CULTIVATE  GRANTS ONLY 
 
Application Deadline: November 1, 2020 (intake 1) 
 

Please submit a paper copy or fill out the online form and refer to the application checklist at the end of the application to 
ensure your application is complete. 

 
General Organization/Applicant Information 
Name: _J_e_ff_R_o_b_in_s_o_n_____________________________________ 
Title: _P_re_s_id_e_n_t_________________________________________ 
Organization: _B_a_y_ha_m__H_i_st_o_ri_ca_l_S_o_c_ie_ty________________________ 
Festival or event: _E_d_is_o_n_fe_s_t-_J_un_e__2_02_1______________________ 

 
Grant request (in dollars*): $ _1_5_00_____________ 
(* request should represent no more than 50% of the total program or service budget and must not exceed $10,000) 

 

Organization 

 
1.) Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin County, information about your 
legal status (not-for-profit, etc., mandate or mission statement), and description of the implementation team. 

 
We are a community volunteer run organization operating from the VIENNA EDISON & AREA. 
MUSEUM located in Vienna, Ontario. See attached pamphlet for our mandate and mission 
statement. We are a federally registered charity We work with the municipality to ensure the facilities 
are appropriate and local service clubs who typically donate 4 childrens bicycles and helmets which 
the children can enter the free draw for(there are two beginner bikes and 2 for junior elementary 
school bikes). Local politicians are invited for friendly competitions and they typically attend as well as 
provincial and federal govenment representatives. 
 
2.) How is your organization funded? 
 
We are funded by donations from members and the community, fund raising events such as silent 
auctions, Edison Dinner in November of each year, municipal grant, and funds from OLG through 
volunteering at Jackpot City Bingo in St Thomas. 
 
Design 
 

3.) Please provide a brief description of the festival or event you are proposing, including the steps you are taking to ensure a 
well-planned program or service. 

 
Event is planned for June 5 or 12 2020 from 10am until 4 pm. No admission to the event. Food will be 
available for purchase and washroom and picnic tables available. Popup tents for shade or protection 
from rain and/or sun. Event is in municipal park and use of the facility is prearranged with them with 
proof of insurance certificate. Post event we assess what worked and what needs to be adjusted for 
future events. This has been held for approximately 20 years a well attended community event.  
 
4.) Please provide details of key dates and scheduled activities for the festival or event. 
 
March 1; book performers by this date(magician, science demonstration, bird display, face painting, 
activity centres) May 1, order food and ensure facilities will be compliant with health and safety 
requirements. July 2020 meeting to evaluate event and make recommendations for adjustment 
 
5.) How many people do you hope your festival or event will reach? 



 
Event can attract up to 500 attendees 
 
Needs/Impact 
 

6.) Who is your targeted audience and does it fill a need in the community? 

 
Event targets the citizens of Bayham but also attracts attendees from neighbouring municipalities and 
campers from Port Burwell Provincial Park 

 

7.) Please describe how widely the festival or event is accessible to the target population and how you've aligned resources 
accordingly. 
 
The event is promoted via social media, posters in community bulletin boards and/or businesses and 
in regional print and radio media. This is done through no cost methods. 
 
8.) How will your festival or event ensure accessibility and accommodate increased participation (i.e. persons with 
disabilities)? 

 
This is an outdoor event so access to all venues is possible. 
 
Cultivate/Renewal 
 

9.) What has changed about your festival or event? (e.g. how will you build on your success, grow your reach, enhance the 
quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new features, programs, services, outreach methods or revenue 
sources?) 

 
It will likely be impacted by the pandemic this coming year if the event can occur at that time. We 
have operated some public events during the summer/fall of 2020 successfully taking appropriate 
health precautions as directed by Southwest Public Health officials. We have taken a more 
information providing approach to the festival the past two years rather than just an entertainment 
feature 
 
 
10.) How will you measure the success of the event or festival? 

 
The number of attendees at the event. Some funds are generated through associated activities(ie licensed 
lottery event, silent auction, food sales) and getting attendees at this event to join our association as members 
or volunteers or having the attendees return to attend future events. Positive coverage in the local media.10.) 
How will you measure the success of the event or festival? 

The number of attendees at the event. Some funds are generated through associated activities(ie 
licensed lottery event, silent auction, food sales) and getting attendees at this event to join our 
Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability 
 

11.) Please attach a detailed budget of your festival or event including all revenues, expenses and in-kind contributions and 
information about other sources of funding (e.g. estimated volunteer hours, government funding, sponsorships). 

 
12.) Please attach your organization's financial information, including revenue and expenses for previous year (i.e. 
audited financial statements) and explanation of line items (e.g. annual membership fees or notes for significant variances), 
if available. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

13.) Why is this funding critical to your operations? Please be as specific as possible. 
 
We purchased a facility in the community in January 2020 which has required some reprofiling of our 
limited funds and the pandemic has limited our opportunities for fund raising as all events since 
March 2020 have been drastically scaled back or cancelled. It is not clear what funding may still be 
available from the Municipality of Bayham for 2021. If we are unable to secure adequate funding the 
event will need to be drastically scaled back or cancelled due to insufficient funds. 
 

 











BHS Executive Members 
President:  

Jeff Robinson  


Vice President:  

Susan Chilcott 


Secretary:  

Debbie Marlatt  


Treasurer:  

Tami Emerson 


Board Members:  
Advertising Chairperson: 

Darya Rousseau


Research Chairperson: 

Lynda Millard


Program Chairperson: 

Cheryl Klenot


Member at Large: 

Danny Chilcott


Find and Follow us on Facebook: 

Bayham Historical Society


Send us an email at: 

bayhamhistoricalsociety@hotmail.com

THE VIENNA, EDISON & 
AREA MUSEUM 

6209 Plank Rd, Vienna, ON, N0J 1Z0  

Operated by:

Bayham Historical Society


Follow us on Facebook for operation hours 
and to stay up to date with current events

Bayham 
Historical Society 

6209 Plank Rd, Vienna, ON, N0J 1Z0 

Promoting: 
Family History 

Genealogy 

Historical Sites 

Preservation of local Edison Family and 
Bayham History Artifacts 

Identifying local sites of historical interest 

Hold meetings for discussion of local historical 
information

Mission Statement

To foster the recognition of our area’s 

unique heritage and to diligently 
encourage heritage preservation.



Objectives of the Society: 
✦ Encourage and stimulate interest within the 

community in the history of the Municipality of 
Bayham and its environs


✦ Bring together individuals interested in research, 
preservation, promotion and advancement of 
the history of the area


✦ Hold meetings for the presentation and 
discussion of the historical information relating 
primarily to the Bayham area


✦ Identify local site of historical interest

✦ Cooperate with other local historical societies 

and related organizations

Membership Application

Monthly meetings are held on the second 
Tuesday of each month at 7pm  

6209 Plank Rd, Vienna, ON, N0J 1Z0  

Everyone is welcome to attend regular 
meetings. If you are interested in joining the 
BHS, we are always happy to welcome 
interested new members! 

Members should attend and participate in 
regular meetings as often as possible. 
Members with internet receive a copy of the 
upcoming meeting agenda in advance and 
the draft minutes once complete. We offer 
occasional invited guest speakers and 
relevant group workshops as able.  

Current initiatives of BHS include fund-
raising for the new museum 
purchased, EdisonFest, Edison Dinner, 
Car Rally, Light up the Park and 
Walking Tours

Annual Membership Fees 
✦ $10 Individual

✦ $15 per Family or Couple

✦ $50 for Organization


Memberships continued to be offered at 1/2 of the 
regular price throughout 2020


Please make Cheque Payable to:

Bayham Historical Society 
6209 Plank Rd 
Vienna, ON, N0J 1Z0 

Please list all names for Family Membership

First 

Last 

Address 

Postal Code 

Email Address 

Phone Number 



Expenses 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
EdisonFest 3598 3700 3700 3700 3700
EF Entertainment/Portables 2328 2800 2800 2800 2800

EF 2017 Pd by Lottery Acct w/o HST 
pets/bouncers/magician

1141 1500 1500 1500 1500
Facepainting 2017pd by Straffordville Committee 555 555*2 1110 1110 1110 1110
Revenues
EdisonFest (Food, 2 Auctions,Misc) 2 days+ 2765 1000 1000 1000 1000

EF $ Donations Received 3648 3500

In the past have received support from 
Bayham for this event $2000, Items for 
silent auction are donated and shown here 
as donations received. None of these are 
confirmed for 2019 but are being pursued. 
50/50 draw may still occur in 2019 but not 
confirmed .

50/50  2017 Proceeds 1061 Draw 600/3*5 1000 1000
EF Vendor Fees 400 500 500
Food Sales 2500 2500
Sales-T-shirts/books/sweeper/books 278 200 200



 

 
November 9, 2020 
 
Jeff Robinson 
President Bayham Historical Society 
 
Via email:  Bayhamhistoricalsociety@hotmail.com  
 
Re:  Festival and Event Partnership Program Application – Bayham Historical Society            
 
Please be advised that the Municipality of Bayham recognizes EdisonFest, planned to be held in June, 
2021, as a Community Festival of municipal significance.  The event celebrates local history as well as 
the local family connection to Thomas Alva Edison. 
 
The event, which has occurred for many years, is well supported by the community and attracts tourists 
from surrounding areas. 
 
The Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Bayham is fully supportive of the event in 
compliance with public health guidelines of the day. 
 
Feel free to contact the undersigned should you require further information. 
 
Regards, 
 

 
 
Brenda Gibbons 
Deputy Clerk 
bgibbons@bayham.on.ca 
 
 

mailto:bayham@bayham.on.ca
http://www.bayham.on.ca/
http://www.bayham.on.ca/
mailto:Bayhamhistoricalsociety@hotmail.com
mailto:bgibbons@bayham.on.ca


C.A.L.I.P.S.O
2021 Port Stanley
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Question #1 Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin 
County ,information on your legal status(not for profit, etc., mission statement) and description of the 
implementation team. 

C.A.L.I.P.S.O.(Come And Live In Port Stanley Ontario) is a non-profit organization set up to organize and 
run the C.A.L.I.P.S.O. 2019 Festival.  

This is a family friendly community event that involves the entire village.   

The festival supports the Elgin County Tourism and Marketing plan by attracting visitors to Elgin County.  

Encourages and retains the local spending of residents. 

Encourages visitors from outside of Elgin County to spend locally. 

 It will enhance the quality of place within Elgin County. 

The festival has the potential to grow every year. 

It caters to a market of consumers who are seeking experiences in shopping, culinary, beaches 
sightseeing, small towns and villages. 

It capitalizes on our “distinctive local characteristics including local cultural, heritage, and historical 
traditions to create appealing and unique places where people what to “live, work, and play”. 

When the rumours started swirling that the Port Stanley B.I.A. would no longer be involved in bringing 
anymore festivals or events to the village, two six generation local women Beth Ann Connors (Tour Port 
Stanley and Marna Berry (Port Stanley Vacations) decided it was time to bring forward the idea of 
reviving the C.A.L.I.P.S.O. FESTIVAL.  

Connors realized how much the festival was missed three years ago when she approached some local 
businesses, about participating in her “C.A.L.I.P.S.O. Passport” “When I mentioned C.AL.I.P.S.O.  most of 
them asked if the festival was ever going to come back.”. That is when I drafted a C.A.L.I.P.S.O. proposal 
and asked others around the village if they would be willing to participate/volunteer if it were to be 
revived. The response was overwhelming.  

Local newspapers and social media were used to recruit volunteers to help with the festival.  Business 
owners, volunteer’s organizations, artist groups, service clubs, and citizens were represented at the first 
meeting. Many came forward with ideas and volunteers to start with the organization of the festival. 

Monthly meetings were set up and a Board of Directors were chosen. Committees were formed and the 
planning of C.A.L.I.P.S.O. 2019 began. Meetings were held weekly closer to the dates of the festival. 

Minutes were recorded and agendas were available at each meeting. 

A bank account was set up. 

The Committee set up and ran several fundraising projects to support the running of the festival. 
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The Municipality was contacted and all procedures recommended by the County of Elgin, Municipality of 
Central Elgin, the Fire Chief, Special Events Committee, Central Elgin Planning Board, and the Middlesex 
Elgin Health Unit were followed. 

The C.A.L.I.P.S.O. 2019 Festival Committee consisted of: 

Beth Ann Connors/Marna Berry -Co-Chairs 

Jenna Pay – Secretary 

Sue Clifford- Treasurer 

Dorothy Cook (Lioness Club) - Director 

Brenda Arnold- Volunteers 

Michele Horton- Optimists 

This small group of volunteers were able to organize and run a successful C.A.L.I.P.S.O. 2019 Festival. 

After the 2019 Festival was deemed a success, several more volunteers came forward to help with the 
organization of the C.A.L.I.P.S.O. 2020 Festival. 

The C.A.L.I.P.S.O. 2020 Committee consisted of: 

Beth Ann Connors/ Marna Berry –Co-chairs 

Elaine Ellis- Secretary 

Sue Clifford- Treasurer 

Dorothy Cook (Lioness Club) - Director 

Heather Crockett (Business Owner)-Director 

Devon Kelly (Lions, Leos Clubs) – Youth Activities 

Susan Jacobs- (Business Owner) - Entertainment 

Teresa Kelly-(Chair C.A.L.I.P.S.O. 1992-93) - Advisor 

Our Mission Statement is:  “To hold a fun filled safe and friendly festival for all ages to enjoy.” 

As the 2020 C.A.L.I.P.S.O. was cancelled because of Covid-19 the Committee is waiting upon approval 
from the government to continue plans and preparations for C.A.L.I.P.S.O. 2021. 

Any and all Covid -19 and Government regulations will be followed as outlined by such officials. 
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Question #2 How is your organization funded?  

C.A.L.I.P.S.O. Festival is funded by: offering three levels of sponsorships to businesses, services, 
volunteer organizations and individuals. 

 An on-line silent auction 

Charging Vendors for space 

Selling of T-Shirts, Glow Sticks, Water  

In kind donations 

A Go Fund Me page 

The organization was able to raise the needed funds to operate the 2019 C.A.L.I.P.S.O. Festival. 

The 2020 Festival already had several fundraising projects planned.  Many businesses had already 
purchased sponsorships, and there were also in kind donations secured. There was over $800.00 
received as of April 2020. Upon cancellation of the 2020 Festival all monies were returned.  

The 2021 festival will continue with the programs and events that were to be scheduled for 2020.    

 Question #3 Please provide a brief description of the festival or event you are proposing, including 
the steps you are taking to ensure a well-planned event or service... 

This is a family friendly community event that focuses on what the village of Port Stanley has to offer 
visitors who may want to C.A.L.I.P.S.O. (Come And Live In Port Stanley Ont.) as well as others looking for 
a fun filled family weekend.   

There are events and activities for all ages to enjoy throughout the village. This includes Children and 
Youth Activities, Musical entertainment, specialty food and drink offers at our local Restaurants and 
Bars, as well as many other sales at our unique boutiques and shops. Business are also asked to 
participate by decorating and entering our Best Decorated Business Contest, and putting up white lights 
to enhance the C.A.L.I.P.S.O. theme. 

The Boaters are included on Saturday afternoon with a C.A.L.I.P.S.O. themed Boat Parade.  

There will be vendors along the Harbour and Musical entertainment at the Berm. There is Limbo 
Contest, Best Costume Contest and Photography contest.  Thom the Pirate keep young and old alike 
entertained thorough out the village .The weekend also includes a Fireworks display on the Sunday 
night. 

To ensure a well-planned safe festival the following measures will be taken: 

The event will be brought before the Central Elgin Special Events Committee which upon 
recommendation it is brought before the Municipality of Central Elgin for approval. 

Council sets out certain conditions which the committee must follow.  

The following will be contacted to ensure all safety rules and permits are obtained prior to the Festival: 
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The Fire Chief (Fireworks) 

O.P.P. (traffic control) 

 Middlesex- Elgin Health Unit (food) 

 Hamilton, Ward, and Cathers-($5 million Liability insurance) 

The Municipality of Central Elgin (permits) 

Central Elgin Planning Board 

Signs will be posted throughout and at each entrance of the village with alerts of the parking lots being 
full 

St. Johns Ambulance (First Aid) 

Any other parties’ recommended by the Special Events Committee and the Municipality of Central Elgin   

Question #4 Please provide details of the key dates and scheduled events for the festival or event. 

The festival will run July 30th- August 2nd 2021 

See attachment # for all festival events. 

Question #5 How many people do you hope your festival or event will reach? 

The committee is hoping that we reach over 50,000 people during the weekend. 

The festival will be advertised on Social Media, MyFM, flyers and brochures, a banner advertising the 
festival will be erected above Sunset Drive a few weeks prior to the event. 

E-mails will be sent out to those who signed our guest book, letting them know when the festival will be 
running in 2021. 

Question #6 Who is your target market and does it fill a need in the community. 

The target audience are families, couples, or anyone looking for a fun filled weekend. The festival will 
bring an economic impact to the area by attracting visitors from all across Canada and Internationally. 
They will spend their money in our local establishments as well as the surrounding communities in Elgin 
County. 

 C.A.L.I.P.S.O., an acronym for “Come And Live In Port Stanley Ontario” it is an opportunity to showcase 
and celebrate what our thriving community has to offer from our local & rich culture, beautiful natural 
environment to our variety of unique businesses. This celebration will offer a plethora of activities, 
events & special offerings running throughout the village over the four days that will attract people of all 
ages from near and far. 
We will, again, be asking local businesses to participate by decorating with a C.A.L.I.P.S.O. theme, 
encouraging the use of white lights and window decorations that will create a flow and consistency 
highlighting our business areas. Restaurants and bars will be encouraged to offer a Signature Cocktail, 
Appetizer and /or an Island dish prepared specifically for CALIPSO. Again, celebrating the creativity,  
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diversity & community spirit that lives in Port Stanley.  
Clothing and retail stores will be encouraged to be creative in offering something special, island related, 
from specific product sales, draws, punch & light snack demos. 
 Ultimately, and one of our goals, local businesses will enjoy increased exposure, make new connections 
and profit monetarily as a result of the festival. To ensure our success in bringing everything we have 
diligently planned together, we are asking for your support and sponsorship. 
 

This fills a community need as there were no festivals in the area in 2020 and C.A.L.I.P.S.O. was the only 
festival in Port Stanley in 2019. 

This will also bring increased business to those who have been directly affected by Covid 19. 

Question #7 Please describe how widely the festival or event is accessible to the target market 
population and how you’ve aligned resources accordingly. 

The festival is accessible to all levels of our target market. There is no cost to enjoy the festival. All 
events are free to the public. 

 The organizers contacted Volunteer Groups to help with the festival by having them hold their own 
events that would be advertised in and on the marketing materials. The organizer of each separate 
event was then responsible for obtaining any permits needed. For example the Optimist Club ran the 
Childrens event and had to get permission from the Municipality to use the Pavilion at the Main Beach. 
The Legion holds an outdoor B.B.Q. and street dance that they must apply for through the Municipality 
as well. The Church had a B.B.Q. and Firemen had a Fish Fry, each were responsible for obtaining the 
permits from the Middlesex-Elgin Health Unit. The Port Stanley Sailors Hockey Team sold the Glow Sticks 
on the night of the Fireworks, and we had high school students needing volunteer hours helping with 
our booth, and other errands that needed to be done. There were also volunteers from the community 
who also came forward to help where and when asked. 

Bossiness participated by offering specials during the weekend, Restaurants had Caribbean Style specials 
on the menus, and most businesses participated by decorating their windows for the contest. 

The committee involved the community from the beginning with a contest for a Logo which would be 
used in and on all print and social media platforms. The contest was judged by the community on 
Facebook. The Logo will be used every year the Festival is running. 

Although C.A.L.I.P.S.O. 2020 was canceled the committee had already obtained permission from the 
Central Elgin Special Events Committee for the festival as long as we met all the criteria that the 
Municipality of Central Elgin set out when they presented it at the council meeting. 

There were new volunteers that came forward to help with the planning, and there were new events 
that are going to be offered. 
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Question #8  How will your festival or event ensure accessibility and accommodate increased 
participation (i.e. persons with a disability.) 

The festival events are at many different locations that are accessible for persons with disabilities 
throughout the village. The vendors and boat parade are both along the Harbour which is wheelchair 
accessible. 

Question #9 What changed about your festival or event?( i.e. how will you build on your success ,grow 
your reach, enhance the quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new features , 
programs, services, outreach methods or revenue or sources?) 

Our C.A.L.I.P.S.O. Festival 2019 was a great success. We had an information booth and asked many of 
the visitors what they liked about the festival and what we could do to improve it.  

This information was used to help plan for the 2020 Festival. 

The C.A.L.I.P.S.O. 2020 was already in the planning stages when the government canceled all Festivals 
and Events because of Covid 19. 

The committee will continue with the plans set out for the 2020 festival, following all government rules 
and regulations as they are put in place. 

The Festival will feature new events such as live entertainment, Youth Activities, Childrens Amusement 
Company, and Food trucks to fill the areas that were lacking at the 2019 Festival. 

 Suggestions were taken from the 2019 C.A.L.I.P.S.O. Festival survey as well as input from participants, 
businesses, and new advisors on the committee. 

  To improve the festival the boat parade will be moved to Saturday afternoon as suggested by the 
boaters. More activities for youth have been added and a live entertainment booth will be set up near 
the berm that will house several events. 

The B.I.A. has agreed to help monetarily and providing signage through-out the town.  

Since the C.A.L.I.P.S.O. Festival 2019 was a successes. There have been more sponsors and volunteers 
come forward to offer financial, and other assistance as needed. 

Question #10 How will you measure the success of the event or festival? 

The success of the C.A.L.I.P.S.O. Festival will be measured by 

 #1 financial statement. 

#2 Increased Revenue for the businesses 

#3 Amount of participants entered in the events 

#4 Amount of people attending the events 

#5 Smooth operation of the Festival 
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#6 Feedback from the Public on what they liked or disliked 

 

Question #11  Attachment of budget information (i.e. estimated volunteer hours, government 
funding, sponsorships) 

See Attachment #2 
 
Question #12- Attach financial information, including revenue and expenses for the previous year. 

See attachment # 3 

Question #13 Why is this critical to your operation? Please be as specific as possible. 

This funding is critical for the C.A.L.I.P.S.O. 2021 Festival as the Covid19 has hit many businesses and 
services hard and they may not be able to donate the funds and items that are needed to run the 
festival in 2021. 

The money would be used for but not limited to the following- 

Supplies- (ink, paper) 

Marketing materials 

Advertising 

Insurance 

Volunteer T-Shirts for easy identity  

Any expenses that are deemed allowed under the Festivals and Events Community Grant Program. 

 

 



Attachment # 2 Question # 4 

Friday July 30th                                                          Location                                 Time 

Lions Antique Car Show-                      Mackies parking lot Main Beach    5 p.m.-8 p.m. 

Opening Ceremonies-                                 Glover Park                              7 p.m. -8 p.m. 

Leos/Lions Youth Activities   Lip Sync Contest   Glover Park                    8:00-10:00p.m. 

Pirate Thom                                                    Harbour                                6 p.m.-9 p.m.  

Port Stanley Festival Theatre                         PSVT                                    8 p.m.-10 p.m. 

Vendors-                                                         Harbour                              10 a.m.-10 p.m. 

Photography Contest                                     Various  

Children’s’ Amusement Company                    End of Main St/Berm                TBA 

There is also a Best Decorated Business and Best Decorated House Contests 

Saturday July 31st  

Kids Sandcastle Competition                     Main Beach pavilion                10 a.m.-2 p.m. 

Leos/Lions Youth Activities Video Games Completion   TBA                        1-5p.m.                    

Children’s’ Amusement Company                 End of Main St/Berm               TBA 

Local Authors Book Signings                    Port Stanley Library             10 a.m-12:00 p.m. 

Pirate Thom                                                 Harbour                                 10 a.m.-8 p.m. 

Vendors                                                       Harbour                                 10 a.m.-10 p.m. 

Limbo Contest                                             Pierside Beach Bar                   6:00 p.m. 

Fish Fry Fireman                                           Fire hall                                4 p.m.-7 p.m. 

Twilight Boat Parade                                     Harbour                                 8:30 p.m. 

Port Stanley Festival Theatre                      Theatre                               2 p.m. and 8 p.m. 

 Entertainment Tent                                 End of Main St.                       2 p.m. and 8 p.m. 

Photography Contest                                     Online 

There is also a Best Decorated Business and Best Decorated House Contests 

Specials at local shops, restaurants and bars all weekend 

 

 



 

Sunday August 1st   

Kids Bike Decorating                 Main Beach Pavilion                       11:00 a.m.- 1:00 p.m. 

Leos/Lions Youth Activities Scavenger Hunt  Glover Park                  1:00 p.m. start  

 Pirate Thom                                                Harbour                                 10 a.m.-8 p.m. 

 Buffalo Burger B.B.Q.                      Christ Anglian Church                      TBA 

 C.A.L.I.P.SO. Costume contest-              Barnacles                                 TBA 

Vendors                                                     Harbour                                   10 a.m.-10 p.m. 

Entertainment Tent                           End of Main St.                              2 p.m. and 8 p.m.  

Photography Contest                                Online                              Submit by 11:59 p.m.   

Fireworks                                                  Berm                                        9:30 p.m. 

Specials at local shops, restaurants and bars all weekend 

*There is also a Best Decorated Business and Best Decorated House Contests 

Monday August 2nd  

Pirate Thom                                         Harbour                                    10 a.m.-6 p.m. 

Vendors                                                Harbour                                    10 a.m.-10 p.m. 

Specials at local shops, restaurants and bars all weekend 

 

*There is also a Best Decorated Business and Best Decorated House Contests 

 

 



Attachment #3 

C.A.L.I.P.S.O.  BUDGET 2019 

 
Income     
Sponsors            5,964  
Vendors            1,650  
Online Auction            1,809  
T-shirt Sales            1,040  
Glo-sticks                245  
Water                  35  
Go-Fund-Me                145  
Other   
Total Income       10,888 
    
    
Expenses   
Insurance            1,013  Paid  
Pirate            1,000  Paid  
Municipality                800  Paid  
Banner                316  Paid  
Canopy                 146  Paid  
ice, paper plates                  59  Paid  
Rosita (ribbon cutting)                  15  Paid  
Bank Fees              8.53  Paid  
Fireworks            4,000  Paid  
MyFM                904  Paid  

Scott's Printing                373  Paid  
Police            1,167  Paid  
T-shirts                944  Paid  
Glo Sticks                175  Paid  
Total Expenses       10,920 
    
Profit / (Loss)              (32) 

      
 



Attachment #4         

Question #12 

C.A.L.I.P.S.O. PROPOSED BUDGET 2021 

Opening Ceremonies $500 

Policing $1500 

Insurance $1200 

Staging for activities $1500 

Fireworks $10,000 

Pirate $1,200 

Bands $1,500 

MYFM $1,000 

Banners $500 

Printing $500 

Social Media Ads $500 

Contest Prizes $500 

 

Expenses $24,000 

 



Elgin County Plowing Match















Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse



FESTIVALS AND EVENTS APPLICATION 
CULTIVATE GRANTS ONLY 

Application Deadline: November 1, 2020 (intake 1) 
 
 

Please submit a paper copy or fill out the online form and refer to the application checklist at the 

end of the application to ensure your application is complete. 

 
General Organization/ Applicant Information 
Name: Karen Bechard 
Title:  Board of Directors - Vice President  

Organization: Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse Inc.  

Festival or event: 2021 Playbill and Events 
 

Grant request (in dollars*): $ $10,000 
(*request should represent no more than 50% of the total program or service budget and must not exceed 
$10,000} 

 

 
Organization 

 
1.) Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin County, 

information about your legal status (not -for-profit, etc., mandate or mission statement), and 

description of the implementation team. 

 

Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse Mission:  

“We are a not-for-profit corporation dedicated to promoting and facilitating local theatre performances 

and cultural activities that enrich the community, while supporting and enabling community 

involvement and engagement in a positive, innovative and inspirational way.” 

 

We were incorporated in November 2011 (Reg #793657-5). 

 

The Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse (The Playhouse) is completely run by community volunteers, 

including an 8-member Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors is responsible for the management, 

administration and control of the property, revenue, finances and governance of The Playhouse.  In addition, 

we have an Operating Committee (OC) comprised of 13 members.   The OC plans, coordinates and 

manages the events that the Playhouse will showcase each season.   

 

The Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse serves the community not only by providing quality plays and music 

productions.  The facility is also utilized by other community groups, such as the Horticultural Society, to 

hold monthly meetings and the Vienna Lioness Club who have plans to rent the facility in 2021. Additionally, 

MPP Karen Vecchio has utilized the Playhouse facility for her general public meeting during her election 

campaign. 

 

We have strong community support which has resulted in our Playhouse becoming a tourist ‘go-to’ or ‘must-

see’ attraction which has created a strong sense of community pride. 

 

 



 

 

2.) How is your organization funded? 

 

As a not-for-profit corporation, the Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse is funded by way of private donations and 

through fundraising ventures. We have a spring ‘Pie Auction’ and run 50-50 draws throughout the season.  The 

50/50 funds are used to finance the costume and set design/construction for each play.  
 

Design 
 

3.) Please provide a brief description of the festival or event you are proposing, including the 

steps you are taking to ensure a well-planned program or service. 

 

The Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse is enthusiastically anticipating a 2021 Playbill and Special Events 

program that will include plays, concerts, open-mic comedy and music nights, fundraisers and other 

tourist/community unifying events.  

 

Over the past few months, the OC has been meeting to plan and strategize how we can best prepare the 

Playhouse for a 2021 season.  We have secured an opportunity to purchase an ‘event trailer’ that is 8.5’ 

wide and 45’ long that would become a permanent fixture on the Playhouse property.  This will allow us to 

re-open operations while maintaining social distancing and managing safe gathering protocols.  Acquisition 

of this item provides an opportunity to move forward with play productions, concerts and other events.  We 

are currently working with the Alcohol and Gaming Commission of Ontario (ACGO) and the Municipality of 

Bayham to extend our current liquor licence to include the outside area of the Playhouse and to ensure that 

we are complying with all by-law requirements. 

 

As of March 16, 2020, our 2020 season was significantly shortened, and we have not been able to open our 

doors or engage in fundraising events due to Government restrictions in response to the COVID-19 

pandemic.  The Playhouse Operating Committee is taking advantage of this hiatus and will be working over 

the next four months (November 2020 to February 2021) to confirm dates and acts that are anticipated to 

bring approximately 10 outdoor events to the Playhouse during the 2021 season. 

 

4.) Please provide details of key dates and scheduled activities for the festival or event. 
 

Due to the outdoor venue, Periscope Playhouse events and performances will occur from May 22, 2021 (Victoria 

Day long weekend) through to October 11, 2021 (Thanksgiving long weekend).  Events will be either no-cost or low-

cost admission events. 

 

The following is our anticipated event schedule that will be finalized over the next four months: 

• May 2021: 

o One Saturday – Annual “Pie Auction” fundraiser – no cost/low cost 

• June 2021: 

o Three weekends (8 shows) – “Old Love” play by Norm Foster – low cost 

o One Saturday – Open Mic night – no cost admission 

o One night – Music band TBD – low cost admission 

• July 2021: 

o One Saturday – Open Mic night – no cost admission 

o One Weekend (2 shows) – “Rocky Horror Picture Show” play – no cost admission 



• August 2021: 

o One night – Music band TBD – low cost admission 

o One Saturday – Open Mic night – no cost admission 

• August/Sept 2021: 

o Three weekends (8 shows) – “Sex Please We’re Sixty” – Play production – low cost 

• September 2021: 

o One night – Music band TBD – low cost admission 

o One Saturday – Open Mic night – no cost admission 

• October 2021: 

o One night – Music band TBD – low cost admission 

o One Saturday – Open Mic night – no cost admission 

o Fall themed fundraiser TBD – Potentially over the Thanksgiving weekend to end the season. 

 

5.) How many people do you hope your festival or event will reach? 

 

With the proposed outdoor venue area, we will be able to safely seat between 80-100 patrons on the grounds at 

minimum 6' distance in accordance with COVID-19 safety guidelines.  Our goal is to have the events/dates noted 

above which will result in a range of approximately 1750 – 3000 visitors over the season.   

 

We have budgeted for radio advertising which will reach a broader area that will have the potential of attracting 

more visitors to Elgin County and the Playhouse.  

 

Needs/Impact 
 

6.) Who is your targeted audience and does it fill a need in the community? 

 

The Port Burwell geographic area, as home of both the Periscope Playhouse and the very busy Port Burwell 

Provincial Park, attracts visitors from throughout southwestern Ontario.  

 

According to our patron database, in addition to local/Elgin residents, patrons come from the neighbouring 

counties of Oxford and Norfolk and as far as Windsor, Stratford, Milton and London areas. 

Within immediate and neighbouring areas, we are surrounded by a very diverse societal cross-section of clientele. 

Patrons of the Playhouse originate from demographics such as low-German Mennonite communities and farming 

communities, to name a few.   

 

Additionally, the Playhouse caters to the significant local population of senior citizens who are not able to travel to 

cities for their cultural experiences. We cater to this demographic with our no-cost or low-cost ticket price and our 

proximity to their homes.  Also of note is our awareness of some socioeconomic disadvantaged community 

members who have been positively impacted by the availability of local, low cost/no cost entertainment.  Further, 

we have been able to enrich their lives by encouraging them to participate, through volunteering, in plays and other 

scheduled events.   

 

Our previous theatre productions saw an increase in local youth involvement and we are working to continue this 

trend. Students from the East Elgin Secondary School were invited to and attended a preview presentation of 

"Opening Night" which resulted in local youth inquiring how they can contribute to theatre and musical productions 

staged by the Playhouse. One such youth operated lighting and sound during our “Opening Night” shows.  

 



Due to the challenges within the community presented by the onset and restrictions of COVID-19, our Board and 

Operating Committee members have been approached by many in the community and surrounding area inquiring 

when we will re-open our doors as they miss the theatre very much.   Being able to work towards re-opening the 

Playhouse with the planned outdoor venue will bring hope and much needed positivity to the community. 

 

7.) Please describe how widely the festival or event is accessible to the target population and 

how you've aligned resources accordingly. 

 

We share our community with the Port Burwell Provincial Park and a beautiful family friendly public beach that 

draws thousands of visitors to Port Burwell each season.  With planned social and print media advertising, posters 

and radio advertising in the area, we feel we will be in a great position to draw patrons from all over Ontario.   

 

For patrons not able to drive or lacking access to personal conveyance, we plan to utilize the transit system that is 

in place that is currently available from Tillsonburg to Port Burwell. 

 

We believe our planned strategies align with the Elgin County strategic plan to serve and grow Elgin County 

specifically by providing a place to ‘live, work and play’ in Elgin county. 

 

8.) How will your festival or event ensure accessibility and accommodate increased participation (i.e. 

persons with disabilities)? 

 

As part of the over-all design of the outdoor venue, we will be utilizing the main theatre building as a “one-way in - 

one way out” format.  For example, the main front doors will be one-way direction into the playhouse where 

patrons will access the box office, refreshment stand and washrooms.  There will be a one-way direction leading 

out to the south side of the building back into the grounds.  

 

The main theatre is one level/ground level with wheelchair accessible doors.  In compliance with the Accessibility 

for Ontarians with Disabilities Act (AODA), venue access/egress, washrooms, refreshment areas, and seating 

areas are in compliance with accessibility standards. Additionally, we will be building a ramp off the rear of the  

Playhouse to allow for easy return access to the outdoor venue.  The ramp will allow for seamless access for 

wheelchair(s) and for those with mobility concerns.     

 

Cultivate/Renewal 
 

9.) What has changed about your festival or event? (e.g. how will you build on your success, grow 

your reach, enhance the quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new features, 

programs, services, outreach methods or revenue sources?) 

 

Although we were on our way to a promising 2020 season, the COVID-19 pandemic cut short our hope for a very 

successful year at the Playhouse.  This opportunity to re-open and offer a 2021 season will allow us to remain 

open for business allowing us to sustain our not-for-profit organization and continue to be a tourist attraction and 

landmark within the community. 

 

10.)  How will you measure the success of the event or festival? 

Success of our 2021 season will be measured by attendance records and/or ticket sales.  Further, we will be 

monitoring both our website and our Google reviews for patron satisfaction.     

 



 

Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability 
 

11.)  Please attach a detailed budget of your festival or event including all revenues, expenses and 

in-kind contributions and information about other sources of funding (e.g. estimated volunteer 

hours, government funding, sponsorships). 

 

See attached appendices: 

- Appendix A – Projected Expenses 

- Appendix B – Projected Revenue 

 

12.)  Please attach your organization's financial information, including revenue and expenses for 

previous year (i.e. audited financial statements) and explanation of line items (e.g. annual 

membership fees or notes for significant variances), if available. 

 

See attached appendices: 

- Appendix C - Balance Sheet Report as of September 30 2020 

- Appendix D - Profit and Loss Comparison Report YTD and 2019 

- Appendix E - Profit and Loss Report 2019 Fiscal Year 

 

13.)  Why is this funding critical to your operations? Please be as specific as possible. 

 

The Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse prides itself on its ability to ethically and responsibly manage programing 

and finances.  Our 2020 season playbill and entertainment line-up was very promising with advance ticket sales 

moving well.  On March 16, 2020, we were forced to temporarily close our doors due to COVID-19.  As such, our 

revenue ceased and we have been in a ‘wait and see’ position.  Our main theatre has 74 seats and we are unable 

to run plays or events due to social distancing requirements under COVID-19.   

 

Our current financial situation would allow us, under normal pre-COVID circumstances, to be self-sufficient with 

regards to our anticipated operating expenses in 2021.  However, the outdoor venue opportunity, as outlined in 

this application, requires funding assistance in order to make it possible for the Playhouse to continue as an 

important and vital entity to the social fabric of the Port Burwell area.  Our volunteers are ready to make this project 

a reality, but we can only move forward with such a project if we receive funding assistance. 

 

In addition, the public showed its desire to gather in open spaces versus enclosed spaces as we observed a large 

number of visitors to Port Burwell’s beaches and outdoor patios this past summer while maintaining social 

distancing requirements.   We feel the Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse will see similar results in 2021.  

We feel that the outdoor venue project will bring hope and inspiration to Port Burwell and surrounding 

communities.  We, from what we have researched, will be the only such venue available in the immediate area and 

will potentially become a sought-after entertainment venue for years to come. 
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If your application is successful and you receive a CGP contribution for your festival or event, the following Terms and 

Conditions apply. When you sign off on the application form, you consent to having reviewed and consent to abiding by the 

following Terms and Conditions: 

 
1. Once a contribution is approved, the amount of the contribution will not increase. 

2. Because funding is limited, applications will be evaluated based on the eligibility and evaluation criteria. 

3. Any festivals or events conducted on municipal property will be carried out in partnership with the municipality involved. Al l 

such applications must be reviewed by the municipality prior to submission and a letter of support from the relevant 

department is required. 

4. Applications/Applicants will be considered only if they are submitted before the festival or event begins and any eligible 

costs associated with the festival or event are incurred. Festivals and events will not be funded retroactively. 

5. Organizations that receive contributions through the CGP must acknowledge the support of the County of Elgin in all 

advertising, publicity, signage, etc. related to the festival or event. Logo usage pertaining to the County of Elgin must be 

approved by: [communitygrants@elgin.ca] prior to use or inclusion in any marketing or communications materials. 

6. CGP contribution approval in a given year does not set a precedent or guarantee approval for future years. All  applicants 

are subject to a fresh review and must reapply each year. 

7. CGP recipients (and their sponsors, if applicable) are entirely responsible for planning promoting, staffing and all other 

resources required for their festival or event. The County of Elgin will not be involved. 

8. CGP recipients will be responsible for conducting surveys and/or use metrics to measure impact. 

9. Recipients agree to indemnify and hold harmless the County of Elgin from any and all claims arising out of the 

providing/withdrawal of funds or any other use of contributions provided as a result of the CGP process. 

10. AII applicants consent to the public release and County use of information contained in their applications and reports 

submitted to the CGP and agree that the content of the application may form a public record that can be accessed by the 

public. 

11. If information in the application proves to be inaccurate or if the project is not completed in accordance with the application 

information, or if the applicant does not follow the CGP Terms and Conditions, the County of Elgin reserves the right, at its 

sole discretion, to withhold payment and not issue any further funds. 

12. The County of Elgin shall have the right to review the applicant's financial information and records regarding the  CGP. 

13. By accepting the CGP contribution, the applicant consents to the release to the County of Elgin of financial/program 

information by any other organization providing funding or financial support to the applicant regarding the same festival or 

event. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Recipients will be required to submit an annual outcome report in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the 
Contribution Agreement. This report will demonstrate that grant funds were spent on the festival or event as described in the 
application and will be publicly available on the County's website. This important step ensures the County can keep rate payers 
informed of how their money was spent and report on the impact of the Community Grant Program. This may include, but is not limited 
to: 

 
• Financial Statement with actual program costs; 
• Festival or event summary; 
• Outcome/Evaluation Report including available statistics and metrics; and 
• Special conditions, as required by the County. 
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Appendix A – Projected Expenses

Category Item Note / Vendor Cost/Item
 Total

Estimate 
Venue Exterior 45' x 8.5' event trailer Purchase from Mr. Albert White - Eden Ontario  $ 3,500.00 3,500.00$     
Venue Exterior Trailer roof and siding repair Mr. Albert Luce 300.00$        
Venue Exterior Paint & Painting Supplies (ie: drop cloths, brushes, rollers) W. Saunders Painters in Delhi to match existing Playhouse colours 800.00$        
Venue Exterior Mural design/painting on the main side of event trailer. Same artist who did the main mural on the Playhouse 500.00$        

Venue Exterior
Leveling of property for smooth grounds.  Seed and/or sodding of 
space.

Plan to use seed for the most part however some areas will need actual sod.  500.00$        

Venue Exterior
Exterior electrical access points from the main Playhhouse building 
to the event trailer - includes electrical cabling

Electrician required 500.00$        

Venue Exterior Event fencing to enclose the outdoor space
200' of used event fencing available.  10' x 8' sections with a total of 20 sections at a cost of $50.00 each 
($1,000).  Additional panels available at $75.00 each x 10 panels ($750) 

1,750.00$     

Venue Exterior Fence privacy screening / fence covering (landscaping barrier?) 6' commercial grade all weather landscaping fabric in 100' length rolls x 3.   $169.00 each (Home Depot) $169.00 507.00$        
Venue Exterior Mosquito/Bug Netting 2 x Rolls of netting to cover stage/lighting .  Rolls are 8' x 50' and cost $298.00 each (Home Depot)  $    298.00 596.00$        

Venue Exterior Lawn marking environmentally-friendly paint
Identification of areas for seating that will be 6' apart.  ULINE Canada Rust-Oleum inverted marking paint.  Cost 
for case = $7.80 x 12.

 $        7.80 93.60$          

Venue Exterior
Outdoor signage to be displayed when the Playhouse has an event 
planned (10 signs)

2' x 2' corrigated sign boards with Playhouse advertising. 
See quote from Johan Harder of Aylmer:
$19.88 each x 10 signs.  No stakes (use existing stakes).  Purchase of 2 poles and flags to be positioned ouside 
the venue area for advertising.  Re-usable throughout the season/years $350.00

 $             -   548.80$        

Venue Exterior Pathway lighting - Solar Lights
Illumination of rear door/ramp area and along the length of pathway from parking area to outdoor venue/tent 
to be lit with inexpensive solar lights.  

100.00$        

Venue Exterior Outdoor portable washroom/hand washing stations
Monthy rental fees for use and maintence of 2 portable washrooms with sinks for the 5-month season.  Jimmi-
Jons 2 x $180.00 x 5.  Includes weekly servicing of units. 

1,800.00$     

Venue Exterior Accessibility Ramp Waiting for quote from Tim Wells 500.00$        

Venue Interior Heaters x 6
Home Depot
Hampton Bay 87-inch Outdoor Steel Propane Patio Heater in Painted Finish
(Model # PH02-ST|Store SKU # 1001485954)

 $    180.00 1,080.00$     

Venue Interior Stage/flooring - outdoor venue Surface with weather proofing material for sound absorption 250.00$        
Venue Interior Scaffolding - lighting/technical For use to install lighting and sound equipment for each event requirement- rental fees 300.00$        

Venue Interior Folding lawn chairs 
50 folding lawn chairs for patrons who are deemed 'walk-in' that don't have their own chairs.  Sturdy chair 
with folding side table.  Altitude Sports - 'Coleman' chairs $59.99 ea. Working to secure better pricing that will 
allow for purchase of 80 chairs. 

 $      60.00 3,000.00$     

Venue Interior Pest control (bee/wasp) spray Raid wasp/hornet  and/or lawn and garden spray. $12.99 per can =  $155.88 per Case  $      12.99 155.88$        

COVID-19 PPE
Plexi-glass partition(s) for main theatre building that will create a 
barrier between volunteers serving refeshments or at the box 
office. 

Portable (on wheels) for ease of movement and positioning / placement according to needs.  Sheets of 
plexiglass 30"x60" - Lowe's $84.99 10 sheets (these will transition into the main area of the playhouse when 
needed. 

 $      84.99 950.00$        

Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse Detailed Projected Budgetary Expenses
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Appendix A – Projected Expenses

Category Item Note / Vendor Cost/Item
 Total

Estimate 

COVID-19 PPE Hand sanitizing stations x 4
Placement at entrances/exits, inside and outside.  Amazon.ca each free standing unit (Benemax Co) with 
product $199 x 4

 $    199.00 796.00$        

COVID-19 PPE Masks for use by Playhouse staff / volunteers 10 boxes, 50 masks per box (Costco)  $      17.00 170.00$        

COVID-19 PPE Gloves for use by Playhouse staff / volunteers
St. John Ambulance
Disposable Nitrile Gloves, Powder Free, Large, 100 Gloves/Box
(Item F3424760) - 10 boxes

 $      37.00 370.00$        

Health & Safety Automated External Defibrillator (AED)
St. John Ambulance
Philips HeartStart OnSite AED Defibrillator (Item #M5066A)  (accessible at the rear door to outdoor venue)

 $ 1,547.00 1,547.00$     

Health & Safety AED Reponse Kit
St. John Ambulance
AED Response Kit (Item #AED-R) (accessible at rear door to outdoor venue)

 $      38.95 38.95$          

Health & Safety First Aid Kit
St. John Ambulance
Ontario-#3 Restaurant Kit, Large-enhanced (16-200 workers)
(Item #LGRK-01C) (accessible at the rear door to outdoor venue)

 $    260.00 260.00$        

Health & Safety Disinfectant and wipes
Disinfectant spray and wipes for overall cleaning of chairs, plexiglass, refreshment area, entry and exit 
doorways.

250.00$        

WEB SITE UPDATES Update programing on website
Custom Contact Solutions (vendor of record for website design and security management
($39.00/month x 5 months of updates/changes and improvements)

39.00$       195.00$        

PROGRAMING FEES Permissions/rights to "Rocky Horror Picture Show"
Not applicable  - fees to be paid by corporate sponsorship.  Criterion pictures to advise in late winter/early 
spring '21 actual cost

-$              

PROGRAMING FEES Permissions/rights to "Old Love" Not applicable as fees were paid in 2020 -$              
PROGRAMING FEES Permissions/rights to "Sex Please We're Sixty" Not applicable as fees were paid in 2020 -$              
VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION
RECOGNITION BBQ

Water/snacks for volunteers For consumption during Playhouse theatrical season. 300.00$        

VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION
RECOGNITION BBQ

Appreciation / Recognition BBQ at end of season -Oct Hot dogs, hamburgers, buns, condiments, non-alcoholic beverages.  Approximately 50 volunteers 300.00$        

VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION
RECOGNITION BBQ

Periscope Playhouse Golf Shirts with logo 15 x shirts for Playhouse volunteers  $      35.00 525.00$        

PROFESSIONAL FEES Architectural Site plan 
Barry Wade Design Build
Architectural Designer & Construction Management
Dorchester, ON

400.00$        

PROFESSIONAL FEES Township Fees Building Permit & Inspection - Not required -$              

ADVERTISING Radio advertising
CKOT-FM Easy 101.3 (Tillsonburg, ON) 
Broadcast area throughout south-western Ontario

1,500.00$     

ADVERTISING Newspaper advertising Aylmer Express - Based on 2020 Rates Quoted 500.00$        
ADVERTISING Posters Flyers/Posters for distribution within neighbouring communities.  Copy/print costs 100.00$        

24,983.23$  TOTAL ECCGP GRANT REQUEST (note: estimate cost does not include taxes)
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Appendix B – Projected Revenue

Dates Event  Number of potential seat sales Cost per seat  Max Seating 
 Maximum 
Revenue 

2021 Sponsorships Sponsorship
We will be canvassing for sponsorships in 2021.
We anticipate approximately 5 sponsorships

5,000.00$    

2021 Memberships Membership
We will be honouring 2020 memberships previously purchased for 2021.
We estimate an additional 20-30 memberships to be purchased in 2021.

 $          10.00 20                  200.00$       

May 29, 2021
Rain Date TBD

Annual Sprin "Pie Auction"
Fundraising event that includes local talent "Beastrow Band", Silent Auction of donated items and a very popular 'Pie Auction' 
showcasing homebaked pies by area residents and by local bakery establisments.  Based on 2019 reveune we anticipate the 
following: $800 pie sales/$675 silent auction/$300 donations + 80 seats sold at $20 ea for total anticipated revenue: $3375

 $          20.00 80                  3,375.00$    

June 4-6, 2021
June 12-13, 2021
June 18-20, 2021
Rain Dates TBD

"Old Love" Play A comedy play written by Canadian Norm Foster.  8 performances in total, including 3 Sunday matinees.  $          20.00 640                12,800.00$  

June 26, 2021 "Open-Mic" This is one of 4 evenings inviting local and visiting musicians, comedians and other entertainers to provide free entertainment  $                 -   80                  -$              
July 2, 2021 TBD - Concert This is one of 3 concert evenings  $          20.00 80                  1,600.00$    

July 24, 2021 "Open-Mic" This is the second of 4 evenings inviting local and visiting musicians, comedians and other entertainers to provide free entertainment  $                 -   80                  -$              

July 30-31, 2021
Rain dates TBD

"The Rocky Horror Picture Show" Event

This is a two evening event showcasing viewing of and participation in the 1970's move "The Rocky Horror Picture Show".     The 
planned event will be a corporate/privately sponsored event that will allow this to be a no-addmission event.  We are planning to 
offer concession stand 'participation' bags $15.00 will provide all the necessities to participate along to the movie.  Estimate 
approximately 80 bags to be sold of the 160 seats.   (Rain dates, if required, TBD)

 $          15.00 160                2,400.00$    

August 14, 2021 TBD - Concert This is the 2nd of 3 concert evenings  $          20.00 80                  1,600.00$    
August 28, 2021 "Open-Mic" This is the 3rd of 4 evenings inviting local and visiting musicians, comedians and other entertainers to provide free entertainment  $                 -   80                  -$              
September 4, 2021 TBD - Concert This is the 3rd of 3 concert evenings  $          20.00 80                  1,600.00$    
Sept 10-12, 2021
Sept 18-19, 2021
Sept 24-26, 2021
Rain dates TBD

"Sex Please, We're Sixty" Play A comedy play. 8 performances in total, including 3 Sunday matinees.  $          20.00 640                12,800.00$  

October 2, 2021 "Open-Mic" This is the last of 4 evenings inviting local and visiting musicians, comedians and other entertainers to provide free entertainment  $                 -   80                  -$              

October weekend Fall themed event - TBD - 
Plan is to have a low cost/no cost event. 
Likely a 'pick-your-pumkin' or something similar.

 $                 -   160                -$              

November/
December 2021

Second fundraiser event - ON-LINE 
auction

We will be working towards establishing an 'on-line' fundraiser options.  Our goal is to raise approximately $2500.00.  $    2,500.00 1                    2,500.00$    

2,240            36,175.00$  
NOTES: Youth related opportunities

Volunteers

Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse Projected Revenue for 2021 Season

TOTAL Projected Revenue for 2021 Season
At the time of this application and over the coming 6 months our Operating Committee will be working on updating our youth related no-cost/low cost entertainment options.
We anticipate that our volunteers will contribute the following hours:  Estimate 50 volunteers over the course of the season (28 events) at an average of 40 hrs each event 
(planning/preparing/participating) will equate to approximately 5600 volunteer hours for 2021.

1 of 1



Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse Inc.
BALANCE SHEET

As of September 30, 2020

Accrual Basis  Monday, October 26, 2020 06:03 PM GMT-04:00   1/1

TOTAL

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent

10100 Bank 15,242.69

10101 Building Fund 0.00

10102 Lottery Trust Account 1,209.19

10103 Share Account 35.00

15100 Undeposited Funds 0.00

Total Cash and Cash Equivalent $16,486.88

Accounts Receivable (A/R)

Accounts Receivable (A/R) 0.00

Total Accounts Receivable (A/R) $0.00

100104 GIC to Municipality 0.00

13100 Prepaid expenses 0.00

Total Current Assets $16,486.88

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 

14200 Lighting and Sound Equipment 7,328.95

14205 AA Equipment -976.00

16000 Playhouse Cultural Centre 124,890.16

Total Property, plant and equipment $131,243.11

Total Non Current Assets $131,243.11

Total Assets $147,729.99

Liabilities and Equity

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable (A/P)

20100 Accounts Payable (A/P) 0.00

Total Accounts Payable (A/P) $0.00

21100 Honor Wassing Scholarship 681.15

21110 Unearned Income 0.00

Total Current Liabilities $681.15

Non-current Liabilities

21200 Mortgage on Cultural Centre 63,000.00

Total Non-current Liabilities $63,000.00

Total Liabilities $63,681.15

Equity

Retained Earnings 84,016.89

Profit for the year 31.95

Total Equity $84,048.84

Total Liabilities and Equity $147,729.99



Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse Inc.
PROFIT AND LOSS COMPARISON

December 2019 - September 2020

Accrual Basis  Monday, October 26, 2020 09:40 AM GMT-04:00   1/1

TOTAL

DEC 2019 - SEP 2020 DEC 2018 - SEP 2019 (PY)

INCOME

40000 Ticket Sales 0.00 0.00

40119 Concert Series 0.00 3,725.00

40131 Suburban Standoff 0.00 6,243.00

40132 Feel the Burn Funraiser 0.00 1,230.00

40133 Opening Night 4,260.00 240.00

40134 Hot Flashes 0.00 11,775.00

40135 Roast Beef Dinner 0.00 1,242.00

40136 Tia McGraff 0.00 900.00

40137 Galea 0.00 1,240.00

40138 Kiley Joe Masson 0.00 260.00

40141 Double Trouble 5,880.00 0.00

40142 Jeff Plankenhorn 2020 1,260.00 0.00

40143 Old Love 200.00 0.00

40144 Pie Auction 80.00 0.00

Total 40000 Ticket Sales 11,680.00 26,855.00

40139 Legion Lunch -60.00 0.00

40140 Membership income 610.00 770.00

40160 Snack Bar Income 334.80 648.95

40161 Bar Sales 1,645.65 4,563.75

40170 Donations 5,131.59 8,117.51

40200 Rental of Centre 250.00 626.00

40210 50/50 draw income 737.50 1,382.50

40400 Gift Certificates 160.00 0.00

42120 Sponsorships 0.00 850.00

Total Income $20,489.54 $43,813.71

GROSS PROFIT $20,489.54 $43,813.71

EXPENSES

50100 Advertising 1,422.41 1,471.16

50110 Bank charges 128.50 235.00

50115 Cultural Centre Renovations 0.00 249.13

50120 Insurance 3,176.28 3,743.12

50135 Entertainers 1,000.00 3,890.00

50150 Meals and entertainment 0.00 1,513.20

50170 Printing - Flyers 134.70 322.91

50180 Printing - programs 597.18 568.36

50200 Repair and maintenance 1,304.07 1,209.30

50210 Licences & Scripts 3,012.75 2,059.74

50215 Arts People 586.46 1,216.48

50220 Set and production 340.59 640.53

50225 Props, costumes etc. -372.79 519.25

50230 Signs 144.34 0.00

50240 Website, galas, tables etc 1,984.79 530.00

50241 Bar expense 1,500.73 2,234.85

50245 Office supplies 518.59 233.84

50250 Fund raising 106.39 0.00

50270 Snack Bar Expense 159.29 167.60

50271 Utilities 3,696.81 3,051.06

50300 Lottery trust expenses 40.50 107.92

50310 Amortization 976.00 0.00

Total Expenses $20,457.59 $23,963.45

PROFIT $31.95 $19,850.26



Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse Inc.
PROFIT AND LOSS

December 2018 - November 2019

Accrual Basis  Monday, October 26, 2020 06:05 PM GMT-04:00   1/1

TOTAL

INCOME

40000 Ticket Sales 0.00

40119 Concert Series 3,725.00

40131 Suburban Standoff 6,243.00

40132 Feel the Burn Funraiser 1,230.00

40133 Opening Night 3,780.00

40134 Hot Flashes 11,775.00

40135 Roast Beef Dinner 1,242.00

40136 Tia McGraff 900.00

40137 Galea 1,240.00

40138 Kiley Joe Masson 1,360.00

Total 40000 Ticket Sales 31,495.00

40139 Legion Lunch 60.00

40140 Membership income 770.00

40160 Snack Bar Income 791.95

40161 Bar Sales 5,699.70

40170 Donations 8,222.51

40200 Rental of Centre 726.00

40210 50/50 draw income 1,730.00

42120 Sponsorships 850.00

Total Income $50,345.16

GROSS PROFIT $50,345.16

EXPENSES

50100 Advertising 1,979.77

50110 Bank charges 257.75

50115 Cultural Centre Renovations 249.13

50120 Insurance 4,912.22

50135 Entertainers 4,706.00

50150 Meals and entertainment 1,513.20

50170 Printing - Flyers 322.91

50180 Printing - programs 568.36

50200 Repair and maintenance 1,593.22

50210 Licences & Scripts 1,579.81

50215 Arts People 1,474.59

50220 Set and production 974.11

50225 Props, costumes etc. 519.25

50240 Website, galas, tables etc 760.60

50241 Bar expense 2,412.41

50245 Office supplies 233.84

50270 Snack Bar Expense 259.20

50271 Utilities 3,631.75

50300 Lottery trust expenses 148.42

Total Expenses $28,096.54

PROFIT $22,248.62



Port Stanley Festival Theatre



FESTIVALS AND EVENTS APPLICATION 
CULTIVATE  GRANTS ONLY 
 
Application Deadline: November 1, 2020 (intake 1) 
 

Please submit a paper copy or fill out the online form and refer to the application checklist at the end of the application to 
ensure your application is complete. 

 
General Organization/Applicant Information 
Name: _T_o_n_y_S_c_la_f_a_n_i ____________________________________ 
Title: _P_ro_d_u_c_t_io_n_M__a_n_a_g_er_________________________________ 
Organization: _P_o_rt_S_t_a_n_le_y_F_e_s_t_iv_a_l _T_h_e_a_tr_e____________________ 
Festival or event: _P_la_y_R__e_a_d_in_g_S_e_r_ie_s______________________ 
 
Grant request (in dollars*): $ _$_5_0_00____________ 
(* request should represent no more than 50% of the total program or service budget and must not exceed $10,000) 

 

Organization 
 
1.) Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin County, information about your 
legal status (not-for-profit, etc., mandate or mission statement), and description of the implementation team. 
 
The Port Stanley Festival Theatre is a 200-seat theatre located in the former Town Hall building on 
the North Shore of beautiful Lake Erie in Port Stanley, Ontario. Our mandate is to produce appealing 
summer theatre that highlights Canadian works in drama, comedy and musical comedy, along with 
other celebrated works.  
 
Port Stanley Festival Theatre participates in the Ontario Arts Council’s Theatre Creators’ Reserve 
program, which assists Ontario-based professional theatre creators and informal collectives of 
creators by funding them to create work. Theatre creators who are interested in participating in the 
program are encouraged to contact the Theatre’s Artistic Director, Simon Joynes.  
 
New play development is a priority. The Port Stanley Festival Theatre hosts a Playwrights’ Festival 
every September helping to develop new Canadian stories.  
 
Port Stanley Festival Theatre, a registered not-for-profit charitable organization, registered charities 
number 1357 73604 RR0001, is managed by a Board of Directors, elected by the members of the 
organization at the Annual General Meeting. Our mission is to Create, Inspire, Develop and Sustain. 
 

2.) How is your organization funded? 

 
We receive funding from the Ontario Arts Council, and other grants that we apply for on an annual 
basis. Funding is never a guaranteed form of income when applying for grants. We also rely on box 
office sales as a revenue stream as well as tenant rentals. We rent other units in our building to 
Central Elgin Public Library and Connections gift shop. We also rent our theatre to production 
companies that wish to bring shows to Port Stanley.  
 

 

 



 

Design 
 
3.) Please provide a brief description of the festival or event you are proposing, including the steps you are taking to ensure a 
well-planned program or service. 

 
We are creating a play reading series on our stage at the theatre. Four, well known Canadian plays 
will be read by professional actors in front of a live audience over a period of 4 months prior to our 
regular summer season.  We have begun to take steps to ensure we have a safe and enjoyable 
experience for our staff/volunteers and patrons.  With the guidance of South Western Public Health, 
we have implemented measures that allow us to safely and effectively have live theatre for patrons.  
We have started by investing in proper sanitization stations at various points throughout the building, 
we have implemented enhanced cleaning to protect everyone in the building.  We are looking to 
invest in creating a “no touch” service for patrons when buying concessions as well as ticket 
handling. We are looking at internally hiring a staff person to oversee all health and safety protocols 
that are created in conjunction with SW Public Health.  
 

4.) Please provide details of key dates and scheduled activities for the festival or event. 
 
Event will begin in February 2021 and run through to May of 2021. Actual dates for each of the four 
shows has yet to be determined. 
 

5.) How many people do you hope your festival or event will reach? 
 
We are hoping to reach 50 people per performance, with a total of 200 people over the four shows. 
 

Needs/Impact 
 

6.) Who is your targeted audience and does it fill a need in the community? 

 
We are targeting our regular patrons as well as anyone looking to find live theatre. Live theatre has 
come to a standstill since this pandemic began, and the need to return to some form of live theatre is 
in great need. We have participated in many surveys throughout South Western Ontario, theatre 
goers are eagerly awaiting an opportunity to safely return to live theatre. With what we have done 
thus far, and what we continue to plan to do to ensure we have a safe and enjoyable return to 
theatre; we will certainly meet the community's needs.  
 

7.) Please describe how widely the festival or event is accessible to the target population and how you've aligned resources 
accordingly. 
 

Historically, our audience base is from all-over South-Western Ontario. Approximately 40% of our 
audience base is from London Ontario, and the rest are scattered throughout, with a small 
percentage coming from the United States and the GTA. We have aligned ourselves with senior tour 
bus operators and offer group discounts to groups of 10 or more. The retired community is the bulk of 
our audience base. In the last 3 years we have seen an increase in our patron base from 9000 
patrons to 17,000 patrons. A thousand of those patrons are regular subscribers, roughly 2600 of 
those tickets are from tour operators. When Covid hit our industry all this stopped, so we are looking 
to slowly and safely bring patrons back into our seats by adding more smaller events to keep theatre 
alive in South Western Ontario. 
 

 

 

 



 

8.) How will your festival or event ensure accessibility and accommodate increased participation (i.e. persons with 
disabilities)? 
 
Our facilities are equipped with an elevator for those needing it, as well as hearing assisted devices 
for those with hearing disabilities. We are also equipped with automatic doors, and wheelchair 
seating area for those who need to remain in their wheelchair during the performance. 
Cultivate/Renewal 
 

9.) What has changed about your festival or event? (e.g. how will you build on your success, grow your reach, enhance the 
quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new features, programs, services, outreach methods or revenue 
sources?) 

 
We are changing the way we market our festival by using more new methods of advertising. Using 
our previous success, we are establishing new sponsors, and new partners that want to work with us 
because of our success and reach and patron base.  Each year we use the success and revenue to 
create bigger and higher production value shows for our patrons.  We have hired an individual to 
work on researching and writing grants and applications like this one, to increase and create new 
revenue streams.  We are looking at new ways to bring in more new patrons, and existing patrons 
into the theatre.  Creating a play reading series of four Canadian plays is a new feature to our already 
prominent festival. 
 
 
10.) How will you measure the success of the event or festival? 
Success is measured by auidence atttendance. 
 
Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability 
 

11.) Please attach a detailed budget of your festival or event including all revenues, expenses and in-kind contributions and 
information about other sources of funding (e.g. estimated volunteer hours, government funding, sponsorships). 

 
12.) Please attach your organization's financial information, including revenue and expenses for previous year (i.e. 
audited financial statements) and explanation of line items (e.g. annual membership fees or notes for significant variances), 
if available. 
 

13.) Why is this funding critical to your operations? Please be as specific as possible. 

 
As a result of this pandemic, we have lost 113% of our revenue for this fiscal year. We have 
cancelled all of our off-season and regular season programming. Refunding over $80,000 is ticket 
revenue, and deferring over $100,000 is ticket revenue in hopes of doing a season next year should 
restrictions allow us to return to normal working conditions. The likelyhood of us returning to normal 
operating conditions is highly unlikely, so we will most likely end up refunding the deferred ticket 
revenue, as we re image our programming and how we deliver that programming to an audience that 
wants us to re-open. 
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ROD GEER, C.P.A.,C.A.

Telephone 519-631-7695
Fax 1-877-387-0228

10 NEW STREET
ST. THOMAS, ONTARIO, N5P 2N1

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To Board of Directors of
Port Stanley Festival Theatre

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of Port Stanley Festival Theatre which comprise the
statement of financial position as at September 30, 2019, and the statements of operations, net
assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
Paragraph, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Port Stanley Festival Theatre as at September 30, 2019, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In common with many charitable organizations, the organization derives revenue from donations,
the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, my
verification of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the
organization and I was not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to
donation revenue, excess of revenue over expense, assets and unrestricted net assets

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the organization
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial
statements in Ontario, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing these financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
organization or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization's financial
reporting process.

1.



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, I exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the

organization's ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures am inadequate, to modify

my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of

my auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that I identify during my audit.

2.



Signature
Date : November 28, 2019
Address
10 New Street
St Thomas, Ontario
N5P-2N1
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PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - CAPITAL CAMPAIGN

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT
Cash -Capital Campaign $ 28,920 $ 88,148

Building & Auditorium renovations (Note 4) 2,277,898 2,311,654

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,306,818 $ 2,399,802

LIABILITIES
CURRENT

Due to Theatre - 3,469
Current portion of long term liabilities(Note 6) 9,246 6,260

Total current liabilities 9,246 9,729

Long term debt (Note 6) 83,439 155,154

DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS RELATED TO CAPITAL
ASSETS(Note 5) 2,113,518 2,147,107

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS 2,206,203 2,311,990

NET ASSETS

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 100,615 87,812

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,306,818 $ 2,399,802

5.



PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS -THEATRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2018
REVENUE
Ticket Sales $ 535,044 $ 489,407
Concessions 14,036 5,999
Youth Theatre 6,916 6,904
Sponsorships 18,119 19,325
Memberships 6,360 6,430
Donations 35,779 29,111
Fundraising/Special Projects 59,818 52,803
Grants and other 89,456 69,498
Advertising playbill 6,384 6,483
Ontario Arts Council Grant 39,289 37,364
Total Revenue 811,201 723,324

EXPENSES
Management & Administration 240,750 212,425
Advertising/Promotion 71,854 62,524
Production Costs & Royalties 341,847 354,607
Concession Supplies 6,504 6,298
Special events/Licenses 200 -
Office Expense 17,450 15,567
Telephone 3,116 2,221
Professional Fees 2,150 2,150
Association Fees 1,521 2,544
Bank charges and interest 2,838 2,908
Transaction charges 16,168 11,463
Occupancy Cost 37,200 37,200
Fundraising Cost 8,746 8,631
Youth Theatre 5,476 4,252
Miscellaneous 6,034 3,921
Operations reserve - 20,000
Building reserve 87,422 -

Total Expenses 849,276 746,711

Surplus theatre operations (38,075) (23,387)

Surplus building operations 38,077 23,387

Surplus for the year $ 2 $ -
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PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS-BUILDING

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2018

REVENUE
Retail lease $ 24,036 $ 21,797

Library Lease 82,681 80,899

PSFT Lease 37,200 37,200

Other building revenue 843 825

Total Building Revenue 144,760 140,721

EXPENSES
Amortization (Note 10 & 11) 24,624 24,624

Mortgage interest 2,543 3,938

Cleaning 18,670 18,720

Building Insurance 7,506 6,743

Elevator Inspection 5,627 5,104

Utilities 20,442 22,166

Repairs and maintenance 21,231 29,500

Security/Inspections 1,229 1,465

Bank Charges 31 31

Bookkeeping 1,152 1,334

Taxes 3,628 3,709

Total Building Expense 106,683 117,334

Building Surplus for the year $ 38,077 $ 23,387

7.



PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS -CAPITAL CAMPAIGN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2018
REVENUE
Donations 150 2,340

Theatre levy & other 57,998 56,437

Grants - -

Interest 108 280

Total Revenue 58,256 59,057

Less: donations reallocated to
deferred capital contributions (53,927) (52,038)

Total Revenue 4,329 7,019

EXPENSES
Operations expense 42 4
Interest expense 4,287 7,015
Construction permits & drawings 4,120 -
Construction costs 66,116 6,293
Total costs 74,565 13,312

Less: Capitalized costs (70,236) (6,293)

Total Expenses 4,329 7,019

Surplus for the year $ - $ -
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PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2019 2019 2018
Unrestricted Capital Campaign Total Total

Balance, beginning of year 51,591 87,812 139,403 139,403
Surplus/(Deficit) 2 - 2 -
Interfund Transfers (12,802) 12,802 - -

Balance, end of year 38,791 . 100,614 139,405 139,403

2018 2018 2018 2017
Unrestricted Capital Campaign Total Total

Balance, beginning of year 26,972 112,431 139,403 147,843
Surplus/(Deficit) - - - (10,440)
Transfer from reserve funds - - - 2,000
Interfund transfers 24,619 (24,619) - -

Balance, end of year 51,591 87,812 139,403 139,403
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PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2018

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 2 $ 1
Items not requiring an outlay of cash:

Amortization 24,624 24,624
Reserve allocation 93,422 37,289

118,048 61,914

CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL:
Increase in accounts receivable (4,750) (4,558)
Decrease (increase) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (4,375) 41,004
Increase in prepaid expenses 1,611 422
Canadian Equity Actors' Association Bond (559) (860)
Decrease in HST receivable 144 217
Increase in last month's rent - (310)

110,119 97,829

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in bank loan - (4,000)
Increase in deferred revenue (14,628) 17,303
(Decrease) in long-term debt (116,685) (33,562)

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (131,313) (20,259)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to capital assets (70,236) (6,293)
Increase(decrease) in deferred contributions 53,927 52,038

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (16,309) 45,745

NET DECREASE (INCREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (37,503) 123,315

NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF
YEAR 266,130 142,815

NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 228,627 $ 266,130

Cash consists of:

2019 2018

General Account $ 65,420 $ 85,196
Lottery Account 15,481 12,711
Building Account 72,305 54,117
Capital campaign 28,920 88,148
Investment 46,501 25,958

$ 228,627 $ 266,130
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PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

1. PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION

The vision of the Port Stanley Festival Theatre is to be a developer of first class, live, Canadian theatre and
to enhance the community entertainment experience.

Port Stanley Festival Theatre is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act and is exempt from tax
under Section 149 (1) (l) of the Income Tax Act.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Deferral method of accounting for contributions

Port Stanley Festival Theatre follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured. .

(b) Fund accounting

Revenues and expenses related to performances are reported in the Operating fund.

Revenues and expenses related to building construction and operations are recorded in the building
fund.

Revenue and expenses related to the capital campaign are recorded in the capital campaign fund.

(c) Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Amortization is provided annually at rates calculated to write-
off the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Building - 20 years straight line
Building & Auditorium renovations - 20 years straight line

(d)Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenditure during the reporting
period Actual results may vary from current estimates. These estimates are reviewed
periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in the periods in which
they become known.
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PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

(e)Revenue recognition

Revenue received for a particular use is deferred and recognized as revenue in the
appropriate fund in the year in which the related expenditures are incurred. Receipts that are not
restricted are recognized in revenue in the appropriate fund when received.

(f)Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue in the Operating Fund includes subscription sales.

Deferred revenue in the Capital Fund includes donations and revenue received for capital
purchases for which the asset has not been amortized yet. Deferred revenue is recognized into
revenue at the same rate as the related asset is.

(g)Contributed services

Volunteers contribute significant hours each year to assist the theatre in carrying out its
activities. Because of the difficulty of determining their fair value, contributed services are not
recognized in the financial statements.

(h)Financial instruments

Measurement of financial instruments

The theatre initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. The
theatre subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities cost or amortized
cost.

Financial assets measured at amortized costs on a straight-line basis include, cash, investments
and accounts receivable.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost on a straight-line basis include accounts payable
and mortgage payable.

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Cost Amortization
Net

2019
Net
2018

Buildings $ 441,922 $ 300,874 $ 141,048 $ 153,024
Furniture & Equipment 12,686 - 12,686 -
Renovations - Building and
auditorium 2,577,188 311,976 2,265,212 2,311,654

$ 3,031,796 $ 612,850 $ 2,418,946 $ 2,464,678
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PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

5. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS RELATED TO CAPITAL ASSETS

Deferred contributions related to capital assets relates to funding received from various donors for the
purchase and renovating of the building. Contributions for the purchase and renovation of the building
have been received from the following sources The contributions are being amortized on the same basis
as the building. 2019 2018

Balance beginning of year $ 45,856 $ 49,684
Less: amortization for the year (3,828) (3,828)
Balance, end of the year $ 42,028 $ 45,856

DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS RELATED TO CAPITAL CAMPAIGN
2019 2018

Balance beginning of year $ 2,147,107 $ 2,182,585
Add: contributions for the year 53,927 52,038
Less: amortization for the year (87,516) (87,516)
Balance, end of the year $ 2,113,518 $ 2,147,107

6. LONG- TERM DEBT 2019 2018

Capital Campaign

Libro Financial Group - repayable
in monthly installments of $1,085
principal and interest. Interest rate
is 4.26% The loan matures
February 26, 2021. $ 92,685 $ 161,413

Less: Current portion (9,246) (6,260)
Long-term portion $ 83,439 $ 155,153
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PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

LONG- TERM DEBT CONTINUED

Theatre

Libro Financial Group - repayable
in monthly installments of $5,000
principal and interest.Interest rate
is variable and the current rate is 2019 2018
5.45% The mortgage matures
December 5, 2020. $ 17,792 $ 65,749
Less: current portion (17,792) (28,760)
Long-term portion $ - $ 36,989

Estimated principal payments for the next three years are as follows:

Capital
Theatre Campaign Total

2020 17,792 9,246 27,038
2021 - 9,647 9,647

7. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS.

As is common among theatres, Port Stanley Festival Theatre enters into agreements with various
individuals and organizations to secure production rights for Port Stanley Festival's Theatre’s use in future
periods. These rights and other production costs are recorded when the production occurs.

Port Stanley Festival has a security bond in favour of the Canadian Actors’ Equity Association as the
beneficiary. This is a requirement for theatres for the purpose of ensuring Association members will be
properly compensated in the event of financial difficulties.

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risks and concentrations

The theatre is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments, without being exposed to
concentrations of risk. The following analysis provides a measure of the organization's risk exposure as at
September 30, 2019.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the theatre will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. The theatre is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its long-term debt and accounts
payable.
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PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The theatre is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its
investments and mortgages payable.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. The theatre's main credit risk relates to its accounts receivable.

9. RESERVE FUNDS

The Board of Directors has internally restricted funds to create a reserve fund to allow for improvements
to the Theatre IT networks and theatre capital upgrades, a building reserve to fund future building
expenditures, and an operations reserve to offset any future unforeseen operating expenses. The reserves
are funded as follows:

2019 2018

Technology Reserve NIL NIL
Operations Reserve 45,000 45,000
Building Reserve 157,711 64,289
Total $ 202,711 $ 109,289

10. AMORTIZATION PROVISION

2019 2018

Amortization of capital assets $ 115,968 $ 115,968
Amortization of DCC (91,344) (91,344)
Net Amortization $ 24,624 $ 24,624

11 BUILDING RENOVATION AND EXPANSION PROGRAM

The Theatre’s “Expand the Experience” capital campaign was completed during the fiscal ended year
September, 30, 2019. Amortization of the building and auditorium renovations and the related deferred
capital contributions will continue to be reported as amortization expense on the Statement of Operations -
Building.
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PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2019 2019
Unrestricted Capital

Campaign
Total

ASSETS

CURRENT

Cash - General Fund 65,420 - 65,420

Cash - Lottery Account 15,481 - 15,481

Cash - Building Account 72,305 - 72,305

Cash - Capital Campaign - 28,920 28,920

Due from Capital Campaign - - -

Investment 46,501 - 46,501

Accounts receivable 15,680 - 15,680

Prepaid expenses 925 - 925

Canadian Actors' Equity Association Bond 29,750 - 29,750

Total current assets 246,062 28,920 274,982

CAPITAL ASSETS 141,048 2,277,898 2,418,946

TOTAL ASSETS 387,110 2,306,818 2,693,928

LIABILITIES

CURRENT

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 50,553 - 50,553

HST payable 170 - 170

Due to Theatre - - -

Deferred income 34,166 - 34,166

Current portion of long term liabilities 17,792 9,246 27,038

Total current liabilities 102,681 9,246 111,927

LONG TERM DEBT - 83,439 83,439

DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS CAPITAL ASSETS 42,028 2,113,518 2,155,546

LAST MONTH'S RENT 899 - 899

TOTAL LIABILITIES 145,608 2,206,203 2,351,811

NET ASSETS

RESERVE FUNDS 202,711 - 202,711

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 38,791 100,615 139,406

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 387,110 2,306,818 2,693,928
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PORT STANLEY FESTIVAL THEATRE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2019 2019 2019
Theatre Building Capital Campaign Total

REVENUE

Ticket Sales 535,044 - - 535,044

Donations 35,779 - 150 35,929

Fundraising 59,818 - - 59,818

Grants 89,456 - 2,628 92,084

Ontario Arts Council Grant 39,289 - - 39,289

Other revenue 51,815 - 55,478 107,293

Rental revenue - 144,760 - 144,760

Reallocated to DCC - - (53,927) (53,927)

TOTAL REVENUE 811,201 144,760 4,329 960,290

EXPENSES - - - -

Management & Administration 240,750 - - 240,750

Advertising 71,854 - - 71,854

Production Cost & Royalties 341,847 - - 341,847

Occupancy costs 37,200 - - 37,200

Fundraising 8,746 - - 8,746

Other 61,457 15,545 42 77,044

Amortization - 24,624 - 24,624

Repairs & Maintenance - 39,901 - 39,901

Mortgage interest - 2,543 4,287 6,830

Utilities - 20,442 - 20,442

Property taxes - 3,628 - 3,628

Building Reserve 87,422 - - 87,422

Construction permits & drawings - - 4,120 4,120

Construction costs - - 66,116 66,116

Capitalized costs - - (70,236) (70,236)

TOTAL EXPENSES 849,276 106,683 4,329 960,288

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (38,075) 38,077 - 2
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Expenses Revenue
Artists $4,500 Sponsorship $250
Transportation $2,000 Ticket Sales $3,200
Technician $500 Cultivate Grant Request $6,550
Marketing $500
Administration $500
Box Office & Front of House $1,000
Cleaning/PPE $800
Printing $200

Total Expenses $10,000 Total Revenue without Grant $3,450

Total Revenue With Grant $10,000



Wallacetown Agricultural Society



FESTIVALS AND EVENTS APPLICATION 
CULTIVATE  GRANTS ONLY 
 
Application Deadline: November 1, 2020 (intake 1) 
 

Please submit a paper copy or fill out the online form and refer to the application checklist at the end of the application to 
ensure your application is complete. 

 
General Organization/Applicant Information 
Name: _K_im__C_a_r_d_e_r ______________________________________ 
Title: _S_e_c_re_t_a_ry_________________________________________ 
Organization: _W_a_l_la_c_e_to_w_n__A_g_ri_c_u_lt_ur_a_l_S_o_c_ie_t_y_________________ 
Festival or event: _W_a_l_la_c_e_to_w_n__F_a_ir________________________ 
 
Grant request (in dollars*): $ _1_0_,0_0_0___________ 
(* request should represent no more than 50% of the total program or service budget and must not exceed $10,000) 

 

Organization 
 
1.) Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin County, information about your 
legal status (not-for-profit, etc., mandate or mission statement), and description of the implementation team. 

 
The Wallacetown Agricultural Society is a Registered Charity in the heart of West Elgin.  The purpose 
of the Society shall be in accordance with the Agricultural Societies Act 
 
The objects of a society are to encourage interest, promote improvements in, and advance the 
standards of agriculture, domestic industry and rural life by, 
 
(1) (a)      Supporting and providing facilities to encourage activities intended to enrich rural life 
 
(b)           Organizing and holding agricultural exhibitions and awarding premiums and exhibiting 
displays of farm products, equipment displays and agricultural issues 
 
(c)           Organizing fundraising events to provide financial support to ensure the financial stability of 
all the purposes of the Society 
 
(d)          Encouraging young people to become interested in and adopt better agricultural and 
domestic practices and for such purposes to hold competitions 
 
(e)          Drawing together both rural and urban citizens for their mutual benefit 
 
(f)           Promoting agricultural awareness through the use of educational displays and activities 
 
(g)          Supporting and providing facilities to encourage 4-H and other youth activities 
 



Our Implementation Team will be chaired by Kim Carder, Secretary with 4 key members.  Our current 
President Sheri Lackey, Director Ron Ross, Director Kelso McConnell and Treasurer Shirley Mullin.   
Kim Carder will be applying for funding, researching online lottery companies affiliated with AGCO, 
artwork and development of advertising with billboard and printing companies.  Shirley Mullin will 
account for all treasurer duties, keep funding in line with budgets and allocate funds.  Ron Ross and 
Kelso McConnell will be supervisory team on the grounds and ensure technical and logistical needs 
are met.  Sheri Lackey as President will be Director of Operations and ensure all guidelines are being 
met and carried out as per grant guidelines.    
 
2.) How is your organization funded? 
 
The Wallacetown Agricultural Society is solely funded by donations and fundraising in the community.  
A small group of 14 directors and associates and volunteers work tirelessly in their spare time to 
fundraise through drive thru dinners, working bingos, silent auctions and of course our annual fall fair.  
 
Design 
 
3.) Please provide a brief description of the festival or event you are proposing, including the steps you are taking to ensure a 
well-planned program or service. 
 
The Wallacetown Fair dates will be October 1, 2, 3 in 2021.  We are working to ensure the safety of 
our patrons by adding touchless options in our washroom facilites, plexiglass to protect staff in the 
office, PPE for volunteers working at the fair on our behalf and reviewing our safety protocals.  We 
will work with Public Health, the Municipality of Dutton Dunwich and Elgin County Guidelines to 
promote a safe and healthy fair.   
 

4.) Please provide details of key dates and scheduled activities for the festival or event. 

 
Wallacetown Fair dates will be October 1, 2, 3 in 2021. Currently we are in negotiations with 
entertainers but due to Covid have had to place a Covid Clause in our contracts.  These include a 
thrill show which over $15,000, animal entertainment and education, musical acts, carnival rides and 
food, mud bog, demolition derby and keynote speakers.   We are also hoping to run an online 50/50 
draw in January 2021 pending licensing, an online auction in December 2019, drive thru dinners 
montly, drive up bingo starting in May of 2021 under Covid Guidelines.   
 

5.) How many people do you hope your festival or event will reach? 
 
25000 people 
Needs/Impact 
 

6.) Who is your targeted audience and does it fill a need in the community? 

 
We have a broad target audience from children to elderly.  We fill a great void in the community as 
we are the longest running fair in the community by bringing families and friends together.  
Agricultural competitions for youth and adults create pride in our farming roots.  4-H achievement 
shows teach youth to make the best better through competition.  We provide an outlet for the 
community to come together by experiencing unique and new events each year such through our 
entertainment choices which are all free once entering the grounds.  Our target audience is always 
our community but we want to reach out to a more extensive base from neighbouring areas such as 
London and St. Thomas.  This will promote tourism to Dutton ,Wallacetown, Tyrconnell, Shedden and 
villages on the route to our fair.   
 

 



 

7.) Please describe how widely the festival or event is accessible to the target population and how you've aligned resources 
accordingly. 

Our fair is very accessible to the target population but we need to further enhance the resources of 
advertising our community event.  The current population encircles the communities of Dutton, 
Wallacetown, Shedden, Eagle, West Lorne and Rodney.  We do have some outside traffic from 
neighbouring counties but this is where we need to align resources to advertise our event and 
promote further tourism in our community.  Currently our advertising budget consists of local 
newspaper ads, our Fair Prize book which is distributed to each child at St. Mary's Catholic School in 
West Lorne, West Elgin High School and Dutton Dunwich Public School.  They are also distributed to 
every mailbox and home in Dutton Dunwich and to many of the business inside and outside of our 
community.  Over 150 posters are distributed across Elgin County and radio advertising for the week 
prior to the fair on BX93.  Our current advertising budget is only $3500 in radio advertising and 
printing of posters and fairbooks totalling $4000.  We feel with the help of a grant from Elgin County 
we can promote our event through radio advertising in St. Thomas, billboards in St. Thomas and 
London and possibly Chatham and increased activity through advertising on facebook to improve 
traffic to our website.   
 

8.) How will your festival or event ensure accessibility and accommodate increased participation (i.e. persons with 
disabilities)? 

Accessibility is always a concern at our fairgrounds.  We are lucky to have Yureks Pharmacy who 
provides ramps to all our buildings making them totally accessible.  We recently built the new Ellis 
Sifton Pavilion with a dedicated family/ accessible washroom with automated doors.  Our 2 other 
washroom facilites have been retrofitted to accomodate wheelchair accessibility.  Our gate volunteers 
are trained with protocol for service animals, and customers vs support persons.  Wheelchairs are 
available at the main gate as well as Golf Carts for disabled persons to use.   
 

Cultivate/Renewal 
 

9.) What has changed about your festival or event? (e.g. how will you build on your success, grow your reach, enhance the 
quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new features, programs, services, outreach methods or revenue 
sources?) 

 
The Wallacetown Fair has grown with leaps and bounds whereas other small fairs are being sorely 
hit with lack of volunteers and resources.  Each year we see great improvement in our gate receipts ( 
weather pending ) as we bring higher quality entertainment so that we can retain our community base 
and further reach outside of the area.  To grow our reach we must advertise more outside of Elgin 
County.  We fundraise constantly so that we can access new programs such as Agri- Magic to 
promote our mandate, Thrill shows to entertain young and old, new features such as Poultry 
Exhibitions and Milking demonstrations that teach youth where their food comes from. We will create 
a team to improve outreach methods and revenue sources by asking members in our community with 
social media knowledge, influencers and potential partners to sit on a committee and create a voice 
for our organisation.  Our goal is to connect with our current community but reach out to communities 
in urban areas that can benefit from our annual event.  This ccommittee will increase advertising of 
our association and what we do in the area and most importantly, bring those targetted with our 
advertising campaign to Wallacetown and surrounding communities and promote tourism through our 
campaign.  Partnering with local tourist attractions for daytripping events and encouraging a day out 
in the country.   
 
If the fair is unable to go on as scheduled due to Covid - 19, we would like to use the advertising 
budget for further projects that are scheduled for 2021.   
 
1.  To promote our online 50/50 draw in January 2021 with billboard signage, facebook advertising 
and newspaper advertisements. 
2.  To promote Drive Up Bingo starting in May of 2021.  The Dutton Lions Club has been contacted 



and they will work with the association in providing us with bingo paper at cost and bingo equipment.  
A major advertising campaign will need to be launched to make this viable.  Similar efforts in Windsor 
have been successful.  We will need to obtain a frequency from radio so that the caller can be heard 
over car radios.  Budgeting for washroom facilities to be opened and cleaned and volunteers to follow 
guidelines of public health will need to be trained.   
 
These events will help to raise much needed funds to sustain the grounds.  We are a public entity 
unlike other fair grounds that are managed by their local municipalities.  Grass cutting alone has a 
budge ot $11,000 with Insurances of up to $10,000 just to cover liability, fire and theft.  A new water 
line is also under construction to allow adequate water flow to the new Ellis Sifton Pavilion.  Upkeep 
to buildings and general maintenance of felling trees, roads and roofing will also be addressed.   
 
This grant will help two fold.  It will promote awareness of the Fair and in lieu of the fair due to Covid, 
will invest in advertising costs for fundraising to sustain the fairgrounds and bring new programs to 
the next fair.    
 
 
10.) How will you measure the success of the event or festival? 

 
We will measure the success of the fair by our gate receipts. 
 
 
Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability 
 

11.) Please attach a detailed budget of your festival or event including all revenues, expenses and in-kind contributions and 
information about other sources of funding (e.g. estimated volunteer hours, government funding, sponsorships). 

 
12.) Please attach your organization's financial information, including revenue and expenses for previous year (i.e. 
audited financial statements) and explanation of line items (e.g. annual membership fees or notes for significant variances), 
if available. 

 

13.) Why is this funding critical to your operations? Please be as specific as possible. 

We need to advertise to create awareness of our annual fair. This year marked 160 years of 
memories for our community but we must accept the fact that we will not thrive unless we bring more 
people to the fair. Advertising can target your audience and can amplify awareness. If people do not 
attend, gate receipts will decline thus leaving us the inability to bring substantial and creative 
entertainment and competitions to our target audience. The fair will eventually wither away and our 
community and tourism partners and local business will suffer. 



 
 

























BUDGET FOR 2021 ADVERTISING  
 

3 FOCAL POSSIBILITIES  
 
1.  Advertising for Fall Fair – October 1, 2, 3, 2021 
2.  Advertising for Drive Up Bingos – Commencing in May 2020 – bi- weekly or monthly  
3.  Advertising for 50/40 online Draw  
 
BILLBOARDS – The following are quotes from Pattison Billboards with 3 options   
 
London Digital Billboards (see attached Overview for photos, locations and loop length details): 
3 billboards for 4 weeks each (or 1 billboard for 12 weeks): $3,150+HST 
6 billboards for 4 weeks each (or 3 billboards for 8 weeks or 2 billboard for 12 weeks): $5,700+HST 
  
London Static Billboards (over 300 faces in the city, shown by red icons 
here: http://maps.pattisonoutdoor.com/) 
3 billboards for 4 weeks each (or 1 billboard for 12 weeks): $3,650+HST 
6 billboards for 4 weeks each (or 3 billboards for 8 weeks or 2 billboard for 12 weeks): $6,575+HST 
  
St Thomas Static Billboards (see attached map with photos): 
3 billboards for 4 weeks each (or 1 billboard for 12 weeks): $3,125+HST 
6 billboards for 4 weeks each (or 3 billboards for 8 weeks or 2 billboard for 12 weeks): $5,525+HST 
*or if adding 1 St Thomas billboard for 4 weeks to a London billboard package, the St Thomas billboard cost 
will be $900+HST 
 
PRINTING OF FAIR PRIZE BOOK - 60 PAGES (including advertising of events at the fair and entry categories. 
 
Platinum Printing -     $3705.27 - to print 2000 books (pending US paper product pricing)  
                $6700.54 – to print 4000 books  
Wish List – to double this circulation to broaden advertising net  
 
RADIO ADVERTISING - BX93 London and My FM St. Thomas  
 
BX93 – 46 pd and 46 no charge 30 second ads - $4158.00  
MYFM – approximate quote at time of budget was $2560  
              30 pd and 30 no charge 30 second ads 
 
TRIFOLD FLYERS -   Printing per 10,000- $1977.50  
Flyers would have full schedule of 3 days of the Fair, Oct 1, 1, 3 in high resolution colour to attract patrons to 
the fair.  These would be distributed in St. Thomas, London and possibly Chatham and Strathroy.   
 
DIRECT MAIL FLYERS - Based on 25000 Flyers (one page) - $5740.00 through Canada Post mailboxes  
Plus the price of flyers – (as above) or  
Rack Card Flyer – 25,000 cards - $1635.00 (full resolution colour)  
 
FACEBOOK ADVERTISING - $500 - $1000  
 
 
 

http://maps.pattisonoutdoor.com/


 
 
SUMMARY OF BUDGET  
 
Billboards   $5700 + HST 
   $3125 + HST 
Fair Prize Books $6700.54 
Radio Advertising  $6718.00 
Printing Costs  $3612.50 
Direct Mail   $5740.00 
Facebook Ads   $1000.00 
 
Total    32,596.00  
    
 
 
 
 
 
 



Rodney Fair:



November 9, 2020 
 
 
To the County of Elgin: 
Community Grant Committee: 
 
 
We are the Rodney Aldborough-Agricultural Society a not-for-profit organization, that the main 
objective is to continue with the long-lasting community agricultural fair and maintain the integrity of 
the fair as it has been for the last 165 years, to keep agricultural alive in West Elgin and promote youth 
interest in the community going forward.  The fair is a big part of our community heritage and the 
Rodney Aldborough-Agricultural Society having up to 15 directors, many associate directors, 
superintendents and about 400 volunteers ,that some of these volunteers are high school students that 
shows that the future generation is interested in their community and hopefully will continue living here 
in West Elgin and the County of Elgin to keep our traditions and heritage alive. The fair is for all ages 
from babies to our many seniors who still participate in entering their exhibits to just coming out and 
supporting the community as a life time tradition. 
 
We are submitting this letter and application with the hope to be considered for a grant for the 2021 
year. In the past the County of Elgin has been very supportive and has recognized the importance of 
keeping the community of West Elgin and its rural traditions. We request an amount of $10,000.00 as 
indicated in the grant application. 
We had applied for a grant for 2020 fair but due to the situation with the Coronavirus we did not hold 
our 166th fair, which was a huge disappointment to the board and the community, therefore we did not 
get any funding from the County this year. 
So, going forward we are hopeful that we can host the 166th fair in 2021 and start up some of our 
fundraisers once we can use the Municipality building for our events. 
Due also to the virus our normal fundraisers where cut short in March so our funds for the 2021 year 
we have a huge shortfall going forward. 
 
Our mandate is to encourage agricultural awareness and promote improvement in the life of persons 
living in the agricultural community of West Elgin and the County of Elgin and encourage the youth of 
the community to participate in the agricultural societies of the future and to continue living in this 
wonderful municipality and county for futures to come. We also work with other services groups in 
West Elgin doing different fundraisers to benefit the community. Also, many of the local service groups 
in West Lorne and Rodney benefit from the local fair by having their food booths on site for the fair 
weekend. Also supporting local businesses in purchases made doing fundraisers and the fair. It is a 
benefit for everyone. 
Our main objective is the fair, everything we do from fundraisers to collecting for advertising in the prize 
book, corporate donators, sponsors donations for the different classes for exhibitors to better our fair 
and be competitive with other rural fairs so that we can keep agricultural alive and growing. We also 
offer our ambassador and, bursary program for our youth and do not forget our prince and princess 
competition for the most points for entries in 1st,2nd and 3rds, which is quite an achievement for the 
youths chosen. It is also 4-H achievement awards day for the youth showing sheep. This gets our future 
adults interested in the community and participating in their heritage of community spirt. 
 



We where trying to become self-sustainable; we had added a few new fundraisers in 2019 but again due 
to the virus most of those have been on hold, we had got a couple of fundraisers in prior to March then 
since we could do the normal ones, we only got to do a couple of little fundraisers. 
 
The big objective is giving back to the community and to the great county and municipality we live in, we 
are all volunteers and we can not continue doing what we do without the on-going support from the 
many avenues of support we receive. The fair is a real community effort and truly belongs to the 
community of West Elgin. 
Our plans for the grant for 2021 if we are awarded it would be similar to 2019 and to expand on the 
youth programs because the youth is the future of West Elgin not just for the fair but for the local 
businesses and the community as a whole. 
 
The budget I have submitted was done in January when we thought everything was normal so we never 
redid it to reflect us not having a fall fair. We had also started our ad collecting, tractor pull donation and 
corporate donation so those that had paid decided to leave their money with us to put forward to the 
2021 fair. 
 
I have enclosed: 
-2020 budget with up to date Financial Statements 
-2019 audit report from Silver Lake Accounting Firm (this was submitted at end of 2019 but I have 
included it again since we wouldn’t have another audit report until December 31, 2020. 
-application form 
-2019 budget and financials 
-I have requested a letter from the Municipality of West Elgin to show their support that we have 
received in the past I have not received it yet but will forward it as soon as I have it. 
 
Thanks again for you support and for letting us present this application for a consideration again for a 
2021 grant. 
  
 
Janet Johnston 
Treasurer/Director 
Rodney Aldborough-Agricultural Society 
P.O.Box 130 
Rodney ON N0L 2C0 
Email: d.j.johnston.farms@hotmail.com 
519-695-2930 
 
 
 

mailto:d.j.johnston.farms@hotmail.com






 

Rodney Aldborough Agricultural Society 

Sorry I couldn’t get it to work on lines of the application provided so I hope you will accept this as our 
application. 

 

#1)-We are not-for-profit organization that has been in existent for 166 years.  We have been 
maintaining the integrity of the rural fair in the Municipality of West Elgin. 

Our Board of directors, associate directors, superintendents and over 400 volunteers start the ground 
running as soon as the fair is finished and start planning on what worked, what didn’t work, how to 
improve for the next fair, what fundraisers we need to do to get the desired results we strive for. It is a 
community event and the community volunteer’s help out when they can. 

#2) We apply for grants, fundraisers, ad collection for the prize book, tractor pull donations mostly from 
local farmers, corporate sponsors from local business, class donations, an in kind donation from the 
Municipality of West Elgin.  

#3) We hold an agricultural fall fair that we work on planning for a full year as soon as the last fair is 
done. We hold monthly meetings to discuss what is going to happen, how we are going to support those 
decisions, set up sub committee so that we have all the bases covered for entertainment, food, 
education every aspect of the fair. The last 2 months before the fair we hold more frequent meeting to 
make everything run as smoothly as possible. 

#4) The fair is always the third weekend in September (Friday/Saturday/Sunday). We have set up the 
week of the fair and registration on the Thursday for all fair entries. I have included a prize book from 
2019 fair to show activities. 

#5) Our attendance in 2019 was 1646 adults. We count as they come in the gate but the children under 
12 are free so they are not counted coming in the gate. 

#6) We target the very young to the very old and every age in between. There is something for 
everybody. It is the only rural fair in the Municipality of West Elgin. It brings the community together 
and other surrounding areas in the County of Elgin and other people in other surrounding Municipalities 
attend. It has been a constant to the community for 166 years. This year when we couldn’t hold the fair 
it was event that the community was going miss attending and that they has been supportive that we 
can continue the tradition in 2021. 

#7) People attend year to year and what they are looking for and get is an old fashion county fair, with 
many homemade exhibits, the excitement of the red ribbon, animals- cattle, sheep, horses judging of all 
classes, tractor pull competitions sometimes lawn mower races then we end off with the demolition 
derby where else can you get a little bit of everything but in rural Ontario. 

#8) We have the Quad County Workshop come as a special outing for them with free admission and 
provide lunch as well.  The grounds are accessible and so are the building and washrooms. With all our 
volunteers at fair time there is help available for those in need. So, we have never had any complaints 
about anything being inaccessible.  We also have a couple of atv’s if someone needed a ride on the 



grounds. Our fair still has that safe, friendly, community minded event where everyone is willing to help 
another person. 

#9) With having to cancel this year event for sure our 2021 fair will look different. Depending on the 
status of restrictions we will have to offer some assurance to make the community feel safe to attend 
and bring their families and any of the surrounding areas are secure in visiting West Elgin. We will be 
looking at repeating activities with smaller groups to ensure more social distances. Depending on our 
revenue’s resources in 2021 this will Definitely control what we offer, and how we offer it. Hopefully 
since entertainment has been at a limit for 2020 that the community will just be happy to attend the 
Rodney Fair and would look forward to a safe rural fair that has been a success for the last 165 years. 

 

#9) A budget is attached- We receive an in-kind donation from the Municipality of West Elgin which is 
not listed on our budget either in revenue or expenses. Last year if we had, had a fair it would be around 
$2000.00.  This $2000.00 isn’t just for the fair it includes paying for the cleaning of the recreation centre 
at fair time, man power for shutting the roads for the parade, then part of the money is for a band for 
the fish fry. We also have an agreement since 1948 that the buildings and fairground, bleachers, lighting, 
and washrooms are to be provided not as part of the in-kind donation but as part of the agreement.  

We also get a grant from the province for $3000.00 which is reflected on the budget, and our 
sponsorships are also reflected on the budget. 

We have about 400 volunteers during the setup and actual fair days -Some help at set up and tear down 
others help the whole time, or off and on during the week of the fair so it is hard to determine numbers 
of volunteer hours altogether.  

#10) attached 2019 financials, audited statements, and other notes 

#11) This funding from the County of Elgin is very critical for the 2021 year due to the set backs we 
received in 2020, the lack of fundraisers because of shut downs. Also, we depend on the community and 
local business for their continuing support whether in supplies or money and they are hurting also due 
to the shut downs in 2020 so their support may be less, due to they may not be able to afford to give the 
support that they gave in the past. It will cost us more to supply and instill safety measures if we are 
able to hold our fall fair as in more hand washing stations, more cleaners for the washrooms and 
building, masks for the directors and all the volunteers just to name a few. 

So, this year of all years your grant is very critical in how we proceed with what we can offer at our fall 
fair so we can make it a success and give the people of Elgin County a fair to remember after all the 
disappointment in 2020. 

#12) Our success is mostly measured by our gate attendance, our revenue taken in by all aspect of the 
fair. Also the feed back on Facebook and our website and the comments made by our local community. 

 

 

 



















RODNEY ALDBOROUGH-AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY

DEC31/18 BUDGET NOV30/19 DEC31/19 BUDGET 2020
2019 PROJECTED PROPOSED

OPENING BALANCE 15234.16 13483.85 13483.85 13483.85 7030.56
1300 PETTY CASH
4200 SALES-PRIZE BOOK AD 2036.66 5608.5 5608.5 5600
4420 GRANTS 7500 7500 8400 9000 9000
4425 GUN SHOW-KITCHEN 0 434.27 434.27 500
4430 FISH FRY 1104.93 1200 889.79 889.79 900
4435 WILD DINNER 1600 1186.58 1186.58 1500
4440 INTEREST REV 426 0 0 0 0
4450 DONATIONS 2751.5 3000 451 451 500
4455 BOTTLE DRIVE 0 0 589.2 589.2 600
4460 MISC REV 2001.08 0 338.22 338.22 350
4465 GARAGE SALE 702.82 800 321.8 321.8 350
4475 FARMERS NIGHT 1494.68 0 0 0 0
4490 BBOS 4257.49 5000 3826.39 3826.39 3900
4610 GATE REV 21363.9 22012 15480 15480 18000
4620 FOOD BOOTH REV 2582.65 1600 2478.05 2478.05 2500
4630 BEER GARDEN REV 7578.95 5000 3740 3740 4000
4640 ENTRY FEE REV 2579 1000 2077 2077 2000
4650 TRACTOR PULL 7345 7500 9185 9185 9100
4670 DONATION-CORP 8190 8700 6995 6995 3000
4680 $1/ACRE 1050 2000 100 100 0
4685 RUN-FAIR 0 0 380 380 400
4690 DONATIONS CLASSES 2951 3200 5487 5487 5400
4695 PIE AUCTION 0 0 400 400 500

FAIR 50/50 0 0 121 121 200
TOTAL REVENUE 91149.82 83595.85 81972.65 82572.65 75330.56

5200 PURCHASE PRIZE BOOK 527.42 0 0 0 0
5510 FAIR ADV 3755.8 3000 698.24 698.24 800
5520 FOOD BOOTH EXP 988.08 0 799.69 799.69 800
5530 BEER GARDEN EXP 4076.54 0 2654.63 2654.63 2650
5550 TRT PULL EXP 13305 13500 11005 11005 13000
5555 FAIR SUPPLIES 0 0 751.24 751.24 750
5565 INS-LIB 4042.4 4100 4609.26 4987.08 5000
5575 PRIZES 12947.33 13000 13711.29 13711.29 13700
5580 ENTERTAINMENT 24098.54 26000 26645.16 26645.16 25000
5585 SERVICES 2100 2200 2200 2200 2200
5590 RIBBONS/STICKERS 0 0 1774.49 1774.49 500
5595 JUDGES 700 700 840 840 840
5610 ANNUAL MTG 181 200 140 140 160
5615 ADV//PROMOTIONS 0 0 466.23 466.23 460
5620 BAD DEBTS 377.2 100 159.76 159.76 150
5630 DONATIONS 500 500 310 310 300



5640 COURIER/POSTAGE 294.15 400 121.07 121.07 150
5645 CREDIT CARD CHARGES 0 0 12 12 12
5670 REG FEE/DUES 519.51 600 376.61 376.61 400
5685 INS-DIRECTORS 272.41 300 259.49 283.08 285
5690 INT/BANK CHARGES 12 12 413.61 413.61 0
5700 OFFICE SUPPLIES 954.52 500 628.52 628.52 650
5705 COMPUTER EXP 258.18 1000 785.35 785.35 800
5740 MISC 0 0 254.73 254.73 250
5785 TRAVEL/ACCOM 634.1 1500 702.23 702.23 800
5790 MEALS/ENTERTAINMENT 30 0 188.82 188.82 200
5795 HONORARIUM PD 4650 500 2475 2700 2050
5800 AMBASSADOR EXP 2441.79 2500 907.01 907.01 1000

AMBASSADOR EXP 0 1000 1000 1000
BANK SER CHARGE 50/50 0 22.5 26.25 45

77665.97 70612 74911.93 75542.09 73952
BALANCE YEAR END 13483.85 12983.85 7060.72 7030.56 1378.56

bank-1060 7378.99 4171.45 4546.45
prepaids-1300 6104.86 2810.25 2408.84
50/50 ACCOUNT 79.5 75.75
GL BALANCING 13483.85 7061.2 7031.04

OUT 0.48 0.48















BUDGET 2020 JAN 31/20 FEB29/20 MAR31/20 APR30/20 MAY 12/20 AUG 31/20 SEPT 30/20 OCT 31/20
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

OPENING BALANCE 7652.74 7652.74 7652.74 7652.74 7652.74 7652.74 7652.74 7652.74 7652.74
4200 SALES-PRIZE BOOK AD 5600 0 690 2070 3410 4305 4665 4665 4665
4420 GRANTS 9000 0 0 0 3390.3 3690.3 3690.3 3690.3 3690.3
4425 GUN SHOW-KITCHEN 500 0 0 477.57 477.57 477.57 477.57 477.57 477.57
4430 FISH FRY 900 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4435 WILD DINNER 1500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4445 FUN FAIR FOOD 351.68 351.84
4450 DONATIONS 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4455 BOTTLE DRIVE 600 38 38 38 38 38 89.3 89.3 89.3
4460 MISC REV 350 -50 -50 -5 -5 -5 -5 -5 -5
4465 GARAGE SALE 350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4490 BBOS 3900 0 -2767.6 3638.49 3638.49 3638.49 3638.49 3638.49 3638.49
4610 GATE REV 18000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4620 FOOD BOOTH REV 2500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4630 BEER GARDEN REV 4000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4640 ENTRY FEE REV 2000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4650 TRACTOR PULL 9100 0 1110 1360 1910 2160 2160 2160 2160
4670 DONATION-CORP 3000 0 1100 5580 5680 5680 5680 5680 5680
4685 RUN-FAIR 400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4690 DONATIONS CLASSES 5400 0 150 270 1495 1545 1845 1845 2095
4695 PIE AUCTION 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

FAIR 50/50 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
RAFFLE BO HORVAT 0 0 0 220 335 335 335 335 585
GUN RAGGLE-BBOS 0 0 0 1110 1110 1110 1110 1110 1110
50/50-BBOS 0 0 0 740 740 740 740 740 740
TOTAL REVENUE 75952.74 7640.74 7923.14 23151.8 29872.1 31367.1 32078.4 32430.08 32930.24

5200 PURCHASE PRIZE BOOK 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5510 FAIR ADV 800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5520 FOOD BOOTH EXP 800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5530 BEER GARDEN EXP 2650 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5550 TRT PULL EXP 11100 0 1400 1400 1400 1400 1400 1400 1400
5555 FAIR SUPPLIES 550 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



5565 INS-LIB 4500 377.82 755.64 1133.46 1511.28 1889.1 3022.56 3160.98 3299.4
5575 PRIZES 13700 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5580 ENTERTAINMENT 21000 0 0 2000 2000 2000 0 0 0
5585 SERVICES 2200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5590 RIBBONS/STICKERS 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5595 JUDGES 840 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5610 ANNUAL MTG 140 140 140 140 140 140 140 140 140
5615 ADV//PROMOTIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5620 BAD DEBTS 150 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5630 DONATIONS 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5640 COURIER/POSTAGE 150 0 0 51.98 51.98 51.98 51.98 51.98 51.98
5645 CREDIT CARD CHARGES 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5670 REG FEE/DUES 400 0 226 272.61 272.61 272.61 272.61 272.61 272.61
5685 INS-DIRECTORS 650 59.4 118.73 178.06 237.39 296.72 474.71 534.04 593.37
5700 OFFICE SUPPLIES 650 122.23 122.23 122.23 122.23 122.23 122.23 122.23 122.23
5705 COMPUTER EXP 800 0 0 0 0 0 200.16 200.16 759.51
5740 MISC 250 0 90.4 90.4 90.4 90.4 90.4 90.4 90.4
5785 TRAVEL/ACCOM 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5790 MEALS/ENTERTAINMENT 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5795 HONORARIUM PD 2050 325 400 475 475 700 700 700 700
5800 AMBASSADOR EXP 1300 0 660.33 660.33 660.33 660.33 660.33 660.33 660.33

AMBASSADOR EXP 1000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
BANK SER CHARGE 50/50 45 3.75 7.5 11.25 16.48 20.23 31.48 35.23 38.98
BURSARY 250
50/50-BBOS 0 0 370 370 370 370 370 370
GUN-BBOS 0 0 527.35 527.35 527.35 527.35 527.35 527.35
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 67137 1028.2 3920.83 7432.67 7875.05 8540.95 8063.81 8265.31 9276.16
BALANCE YEAR END 8815.74 6612.54 4002.31 15719.13 21997.05 22826.15 24014.59 24164.77 23654.08

NOTE: BALANCING YEAR END 4214.22 1332.09 12317.16 18922.46 20192.46 21042.56 21394.24 21085.05
2326.32 2601.97 2164.82 1727.67 1290.52 1640.11 1442.36 1244.61

72 68.25 1237.15 1346.92 1343.17 1331.92 1328.17 1324.42
6612.54 4002.31 15719.13 21997.05 22826.15 24014.59 24164.77 23654.08



  



 










   

  
   
  
   











 
 
  
 
 



 

  
 


 






 
 
  
  
  
   
  
  
  
  
  
  





 

 
 
  
   
   
  
  
  
  
   
  
 
  
 
   
   
   
  
  
  
 
 
  
  
 

  




 





 


 
  
  
  
  
   
 

 
  
  
  
   
  
   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  


 

 


 

 


 


  


 
  
  
  
  
  






 














 


















 
 
 



 




 
 
 
 
 
 




 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 


  
 

 
  
  



 
 
 
 
 


 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 







 







 
 

 























 
  







 




  

 
 

  




 




















 






 




 












 




 
 
 
 
 

   





 




 



   










 
  

 




 





















 
    



  
       
 


 






 

 



 











 

 






 


 
 











  



 

  
 


 




  
  

 


 















 



 

  
 








































 
 
 









































 









 




 



 



 














 























 










 

 







 





 


 
















































 






         


 












 
 



 
 

     




 





 






 

 

 





 














 

 














 
 
 


 























 








 









 

 

















 



 

















 












 






 























 



 




 


 





























 




 
 

 



 




































































 













 








 


   

 










 



 






            

 


























































 



 


  


 





  
 


  



     
  










   








 













   
     

 
















 

 
 



 









 















   




























  







 




 






















  
 

 










 


































 

  








 








   
  

 



 















 



 

 






































 












 



 













  




 




 





































      









 













  







 

 


  

  


   








 

 




 
 














          












 






     













  
  





















  







            













 








 














 
  







 
  




 








        
       


 




 







































      

     
      
 











 








 



       
 


 
  
 
  
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 
 











 



 





 
  

    
 








 











 



  
 



 


 


 
 







 




 



 







 





 
 







 





 


       





































































 



 













 


















 




































































 





 






 















 




 

 


 











 

 









 
 
 

 











 






















 




 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  




























   
  















 


  










             




 





 




  


 



   






  



 







 







  

 


 








 











 



 





  

 


 




 






 

















 





 
















 





  







































 









  






 

  

 

   

 

  






 


 



















 



 


 


 






 

















 
























 











 

 


 






 









 




 




 







 


 



 

























    





















 







 













 











          







 

    




































 
 
 
 




 
  


 




















 










 



  

  


  



 







































        



        







 



 



  
 
 


 


 


 




 


  





 


 
 


 



 


 


 
 
 


 
 









  













 

 


 














  
 
  
 
 











 

 



 


 



 


    


 


 





 


 






 



 


 



 



 



 








 



 



 





  


















 

 

 



 


 




 





 


 
 


 



 


 


 


  
 
 

 
 



 




  



 



 

  
    

  









    



 








 




 







  



















 





























 
 




































 



 









 






 




 



 























 



 



 






 





 






 



Shedden Agricultural Society:

Shedden Fair

























VON Middlesex-Elgin:

Seniors Day in the Park



FESTIVALS AND EVENTS APPLICATION 
CULTIVATE  GRANTS ONLY 

 
Application Deadline: November 10, 2020 (intake 1) 

 

Please submit a paper copy or fill out the online form and refer to the application checklist at the end of the application to 
ensure your application is complete. 

 
General Organization/Applicant Information 
Name: _S_h_e_rr_i _W_il_s_on______________________________________ 
Title: _P_ro_g_r_a_m_C__oo_r_d_in_a_to_r_f_or_C__S_S_w_i_th_V_O__N_E_l_gi_n________________ 
Organization: __________________________________________ 
Festival or event: _S_en_i_or_s_D_a_y _in_th_e_P_a_rk_(_fo_rm__er_ly_S_e_ni_o_r's_P_ic_n_ic_i_n _th_e_P_a_rk_) 
 
Grant request (in dollars*): $ _1_5_00_____________ 
(* request should represent no more than 50% of the total program or service budget and must not exceed $10,000) 

 

Organization 

 
1.) Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin County, information about your 
legal status (not-for-profit, etc., mandate or mission statement), and description of the implementation team. 

 
The Seniors’ Day in the Park Committee is a volunteer-run committee of VON Middlesex-Elgin 
providing seniors with a free day of entertainment, and health and social education geared directly to 
seniors. 
 
2.) How is your organization funded? 

 
Through grants and donations within our Community 
 
Design 
 

3.) Please provide a brief description of the festival or event you are proposing, including the steps you are taking to ensure a 
well-planned program or service. 

 
Bring education and awareness to the seniors in our community of supports that are available to 
them. A day out in our beautiful Pinafore Park with live local music and entertainment. 
 
4.) Please provide details of key dates and scheduled activities for the festival or event. 
 
July 14, 2021 from 9:00am to 4:00pm 
 

5.) How many people do you hope your festival or event will reach?  

 
between 1000 and 1500 members of our community  
 

 

 

 



Needs/Impact 

 
6.) Who is your targeted audience and does it fill a need in the community? 

 
Seniors ages 55+ and/or Adults living with a disability. 
 

7.) Please describe how widely the festival or event is accessible to the target population and how you've aligned resources 
accordingly. 

 
8.) How will your festival or event ensure accessibility and accommodate increased participation (i.e. persons with 
disabilities)? 

 
Pinafore Park is accessible for persons with disabilities. 
 
Cultivate/Renewal 
 

9.) What has changed about your festival or event? (e.g. how will you build on your success, grow your reach, enhance the 
quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new features, programs, services, outreach methods or revenue 
sources?) 

 
During this time of COVID our seniors are isolated with no interaction with their community. We the 
Seniors Day in the Park committee would like to extend the event out virtually to those whom are 
unable to join in the activities in person. We would also like to do a Facebook page and possibly a 
website where seniors and their families can access information, up coming events or just to reach 
out when they seek information of what is available in the community. Virtually can also be used as a 
marketing tool for the follow years as a little taste what Seniors Day in the Park is all about. This 
would reach out to audiences further out in the community and bring in more visitors and community 
members into our beautiful city. 
 
 
10.) How will you measure the success of the event or festival? 

At the event we hand out a set number of reusable bags with programming for the day, and they can 
use to house all the information that they collect from the businesses and organizations that come out 
and support our community event. Online activity can be monitored by number of views or platforms 
like Zoom where an invited is sent out the participant.  

 
Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability 

 

11.) Please attach a detailed budget of your festival or event including all revenues, expenses and in-kind contributions and 
information about other sources of funding (e.g. estimated volunteer hours, government funding, sponsorships). 
 
12.) Please attach your organization's financial information, including revenue and expenses for previous year (i.e. 
audited financial statements) and explanation of line items (e.g. annual membership fees or notes for significant variances), 
if available. 
 

13.) Why is this funding critical to your operations? Please be as specific as possible. 
 

According to Healthy Aging, a Canadian Community Health survey, 80 percent of seniors are 
frequent participants in at least one social activity throughout the year. As the number of activities 
increase, the likelihood of being unsatisfied with life decreases and the likelihood of feeling positive 
about their well-being rises. The Seniors Day in the Park provides seniors with a free day of 
entertainment and health and social education geared directly to their demographic.  
Each year the Seniors Day in the Park draws 1300 – 1500 seniors from Elgin County and St. Thomas 



but also from the surrounding areas such as London, Middlesex and Oxford Counties, resulting in 
increased tourism and revenue to local businesses. The Seniors Day also attracts several of our 
long-term care and retirement facilities for a fun-filled outing for their residents, to the beautiful 
Pinafore Park. The St. Thomas Seniors Centre, one of the food vendors at the event, generates 
income to support its programs serving seniors in St. Thomas / Elgin. 
 
We rely on donors to provide each participant with a reusable bag on entrance and any free coupons 
or giveaways we are able to secure. Many organizations or individuals provide a donation for the 
extensive door prize table attendees are eligible to win. 
 

 
 
 



Bank Balance September 30 2,713.00$                   1,975.35$                   

150.00$                       
5,000.00$                   

Receipts Less Disbursements -$                             <737.65> -$                             
5,000.00$                   

1,975.35$                   

Totals

-$                             
400.00$                       
400.00$                       
200.00$                       
350.00$                       

2,500.00$                   
2,500.00$                   
5,000.00$                   

5,000.00$                   
-$                             

2,500.00$                   
-$                             

2,500.00$                   
-$                             

2,250.00$                   

4,750.00$                   

1,950.00$                   
1,517.65$                   

2,500.00$                   
4,750.00$                   

-$                             

2,500.00$                   
250.00$                       

2,250.00$                   
-$                             

500.00$                       
400.00$                       

678.00$                       
480.00$                       
373.00$                       

1,600.00$                   

Entertainment

150.00$                       
150.00$                       

2,500.00$                   
4,100.00$                   

5,000.00$                   

2,000.00$                   
1,600.00$                   

200.00$                       

900.00$                       

Park Rental
Supplies
St. John's Ambulance

-$                             

1,500.00$                   
150.00$                       

1,350.00$                   
250.00$                       

Lunches
Insurance

Less 10% holdback from 2019

Grant from the City of St. Thomas

Totals
Sponsorships and vender booth rentals

Disbursements

Grant - County of Elgin
Less 10% holdback

Advertising
20th anniversary fridge magnets

Seniors Day in the Park 2021

188.00$                       
151.00$                       
150.00$                       

5,487.65$                   

2,000.00$                   
1,500.00$                   

2021 Budget 2019 Actual 2019 Budget

1,975.35$                   2,713.00$                   2,713.00$                   Bank Balance October 1

Receipts



Seniors Day in the Park – 2021 

 
October 29, 2020 

Dear Grant Review Committee, 

We are pleased to apply for a community grant for the Seniors Day (formerly Picnic) in the Park, 
a day out for seniors at Pinafore Park, organized by local volunteers, scheduled for July 14, 
2021. 

Legal name of Organization: Victorian Order of Nurses Canada - Ontario Branch - Middlesex-
Elgin, 175 South Edgeware Rd, St. Thomas, ON N5P 4C4 519-637-6408 or 1-800-201-0909 

Revenue Canada Charity status and provincial non-profit status: VON Canada Charitable 
Registration # 137508057RR001 

Mandate of the Organization: The Seniors’ Day in the Park Committee is a volunteer-run 
committee of VON Middlesex-Elgin providing seniors with a free day of entertainment, and 
health and social education geared directly to seniors. 

Planned use for the grant: In July annually, the Seniors Day in the Park provides seniors of our 
community with access to arts, culture, environment, heritage, recreation, lifelong learning and 
health activities through a partnership with the County of Elgin, City of St. Thomas and vendors 
that participate the day with their booths showcasing a wealth of information about goods and 
services available to our senior population throughout Elgin County. 

The grants from Elgin County will pay a portion of out-of-pockets costs for entertainment, 
advertising, lunches for volunteers, insurance, supplies, park rent and St. John’s Ambulance, as 
per the attached budget. 

Amount of grant request: $1500 

Other sources of funding: $2,500 grant application to the City of St. Thomas, and the City also 
provides free bussing for disadvantaged seniors in St. Thomas to attend. Sponsorships and 
vendor booth rentals are budgeted to make up an additional $1,000. Throughout the year, VON 
supplies meeting space for the organizing committee and offers part-time administrative 
support pro bono for this project. 

Forecasted economic and social impact of the initiative: According to Healthy Aging, a 
Canadian Community Health survey, 80 percent of seniors are frequent participants in at least 
one social activity throughout the year. As the number of activities increase, the likelihood of 
being unsatisfied with life decreases and the likelihood of feeling positive about their well-being 
rises. The Seniors Day in the Park provides seniors with a free day of entertainment and health 
and social education geared directly to their demographic.  

Each year the Seniors Day in the Park draws 1300 – 1500 seniors from Elgin County and St. 
Thomas but also from the surrounding areas such as London, Middlesex and Oxford Counties, 
resulting in increased tourism and revenue to local businesses. The Seniors Day also attracts 
several of our long-term care and retirement facilities for a fun-filled outing for their residents, 



to the beautiful Pinafore Park. The St. Thomas Seniors Centre, one of the food vendors at the 
event, generates income to support its programs serving seniors in St. Thomas / Elgin. 

We rely on donors to provide each participant with a reusable bag on entrance and any free 
coupons or giveaways we are able to secure. Many organizations or individuals provide a 
donation for the extensive door prize table attendees are eligible to win. 

Economic and social benefit are intertwined when it comes to vendors. In 2019 the following 
organizations from Elgin County participated as vendors in the Seniors Day: 

County of Elgin – Archives 

County of Elgin – Library 

County of Elgin – Museum 

County of Elgin – Tourism 

Taoist Tai Chi – Port Stanley 

Elder Abuse – West Lorne 

Future plans to become self-sustaining: The organizing committee is requesting $1,500 for 
2021($1,000 less than in 2019). As the volunteer organizing committee develops reliable 
revenue streams, we plan to reduce this request to $1,000 in 2022, $500 in 2023 and $0 in 
2024.   

Attached you will find a copy of our 2020 budget. Please contact our Treasurer Sherri Wilson at 
519-637-6408 ext 227 if you have any question. 

 

Yours very truly, 

 

Brian May 
Chairperson, Senior Day in the Park 
C\O Sherri Wilson 
175 South Edgeware Rd 
St. Thomas, ON 
N5P 4C4 
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Optimist Club Port Stanley
Optimism and COVID Project with Port Stanley School



COMMUNITY  SERVICES  APPLICATION 
CULTIVATE  GRANTS ONLY 

 
Application Deadline: November 10, 2020 (intake 1) 

 

Please submit a paper copy or fill out the online form and refer to the application checklist at the end of the application to 
ensure your application is complete. 

 
General Organization/Applicant Information 
Name: _E_m_i_ly_F_in_c_h_______________________________________ 
Title: _C_lu_b__P_re_s_id_e_n_t _____________________________________ 
Organization: _O_p_ti_m_is_t_C_l_ub__o_f _P_or_t_S_ta_n_l_ey______________________ 
Service or Program: _C_o_m_m__un_i_ty_S_e_r_v_ic_e_s_- _C_u_lt_iv_a_te_G__ra_n_t __________ 

 
Grant request (in dollars*): $ _3_,2_6_4_.0_0__________ 

(* request should represent no more than 50% of the total program or service budget and must not exceed $10,000) 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Organization 

 
1.) Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin County, information about your legal 
status (not-for-profit, etc., mandate or mission statement), and description of the implementation team. 

 
The Optimist Club of Port Stanley was chartered in 1970.  Since that time it has served Port 
Stanley and community, especially its' youth and families.  Over the last 50 years this club has 
donated hundreds of thousands of dollars to local sports programs, local charities and other 
worthwhile causes in the community.  We create community partnerships to assist local youth and 
families.  Eg. Kettle Creek Public School, Eva Circe Cote French Immersion Public School, 
Municipality of Central Elgin, Port Stanley and local Foodbanks, Christmas Care programs, Port 
Stanley Public Library and local youth programs.  In addition our club supports the following 
Optimist International programs: Conductive Education - children with physical disabilities, 
Canadian Children's Optimist Foundation, Canadian Children's Health Foundation, Bravery Beads 
- childhood cancer and HOBY - Hugh O'Brian Youth Leadership Camps.  The Optimist motto is 
"Friend of Youth".  Children are the major focus of our efforts.  We currently have 30 members and 
are always looking for new members and ideas. Each year the general membership votes to elect 
the position of president, vice presidents and directors.  Our president assigns secretary and 
treasurer positions.  We have a Certificate of Status dated March 15, 1971, Ontario Corporation 
No. 241570.  The Optimist Club of Port Stanley is one of 8 clubs in Elgin County, and one of 4000 
clubs around the world. 
 
2.) How is your organization funded? 
 
Our club is funded solely by fundraising.  We are thankful to have St. Thomas Jackpot City Gaming 
as a fundraising opportunity.  Our funds raised here are approximately 90% of our budget.  We also 
have had past success with Optimist International sponsored Fruit Cake fundraising, Aunt Sarah's 
Chocolate Bars, Christmas Trees and Memorial Angels for the Angel Tree at the Port Stanley Library.  
Our community options for fundraising are greatly diminished during the Covid19 pandemic. 
 
Design 

 

3.) Please provide a brief description of the program or service you are proposing, including the steps you are taking to ensure a 
well-planned program or service. 

 
Due to Covid19, there has been a drastic change in the way our local school is providing daily 



learning.  Technology has taken a front seat for not only our school, but many students and families 
are lacking the technological equipment needed to succeed.  We are proposing a school competition 
among all classes in the school.  Currently, there are two of most of the Grade 1-8 classes.  We 
would like to provide16 Google Chromebooks to the school.  The teachers propose that their 
students prepare presentations with the theme of "Optimism and Covid19".  This will align with the 
schools culture goal and address this topic through gratitude and optimism.  It will support the mental 
health of students and staff.  A student from each classroom will be awarded the primary use of a 
Google Chromebook for the remainder of the school year.   The technology will become the property 
of the school to assist future students as needed. 
 
4.) Please provide details of key dates and scheduled activities for the program or service. 
 
As soon as we receive confirmation of this grant and funds, we will be able to source the Google 
Chromebooks and implement this plan.  It is our goal to have the technology sourced and to the 
school by March 1, 2021.  At that time we would like to schedule a donation event to publicly thank 
The County of Elgin and promote the Optimist Club of Port Stanley 
 
5.) How many people do you hope your program or service will reach? 

 
After discussions with the principal of the school, it is projected that these Google Chromebooks will 
ultimately assist all 430 students plus staff and potentially parents and caregivers both now and in 
the future.  Should Covid19 go into a future lock down all technology that the school has will be 
assigned to students for home use.  Parental engagement through technology will be promoted for 
School Council and home and school meetings. 

 
Needs/Impact 

 

6.) Who is your targeted audience and does it fill a need in the community? 

 
The targeted audience are the students of Kettle Creek Public School in Port Stanley.  The 
Covid 19 pandemic has greatly changed the learning process for our students.  Todays' 
learning has an increased technology based component and our local school does not have 
the capability to provide each child with their own digital device.  Also with more computer 
based classes and homework, local families are struggling with the lack of technology for their 
children.  It is our hope that by providing additional technology to the school, both the students 
and families can benefit.  Please see the attached letter of support from the principal of the 
school. 
 

7.) Please describe how widely the services are accessible to the target population and how you've aligned resources 
accordingly. 
 
With the success of this partnership, the technology will be accessible during the school year.  The 
Optimist Club of Port Stanley has budgeted for 50% of the funds required for this project.  It is our 
intent to purchase 16 Google Chromebooks for the school and to deliver one to every class.  Grades 
1-8.   

 

8.) How will your program or service ensure accessibility and accommodate increased participation (i.e. persons with 
disabilities)? 

 
Google Chromebooks can be used by all students and the school has the  perfect teaching 
environment for these devices. Chromebook technology provides students with Learning Disabilities 
the tools they need to be able to articulate and express their feelings clearly in written format.  When 



students with Learning Disabilities have a Chromebook, they are able to access software such as 
Google Read and Write.  This software allows students to speak their ideas and the software will put 
their ideas into print.  This equalizes the playing field for such students and helps them recognize 
that they too have creative and brilliant ideas and they begin to get the confidence needed to 
express themselves fully and make academic gains. 
 
 
Cultivate/Renewal 

 

9.) What has changed about your program or service? (e.g. how will you build on your success, grow your reach, enhance the 
quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new features, programs, services, outreach methods or revenue 
sources? 

This is the first grant that we have applied for.  We felt that during the Covid19 pandemic we would 
like to expand our clubs' ability to assist those in need.  Our fundraising efforts have been challenged 
with the new Covid19 rules and this grant seemed like the perfect opportunity to support our local 
youth.  The County of Elgin Community Grant is a way for us to show resilience by searching for new 
fund sources which could directly have a positive outcome for all.  How will we build on our success?  
In the future we would love to do the same program at our other community school - Eva Circe Cote 
French Immersion Public School.  Perhaps there will be a future grant to assist us with future dreams 
- we are Optimists :) 

 
 

10.) How will you measure your success? 
 
 By the school involvement, including the students contest submissions. 

And by the smiles on the kids and teachers faces! 
Teachers will be able to monitor improvements of academic achievements for all students but especially those 
with learning disabilities.  Staff will also have decreased stress levels as they will be able to accommodate 
technology to more students.  The principal tells me she will be happier as this project will be better for the 
environment.  Curiously, I asked her to explain!  Currently keyboards have to be covered in Saran Wrap and 
changed with each student use during Covid19. 
 
 

Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability 
 

11.) Please attach a detailed budget of your program or service including all revenues, expenses and in-kind contributions and 
information about other sources of funding (e.g. estimated volunteer hours, government funding, sponsorships). 

 
12.) Please attach your organization's financial information, including revenue and expenses for previous year (i.e. audited 
financial statements) and explanation of line items (e.g. annual membership fees or notes for significant variances), if available. 

 
13.) Why is this funding critical to your operations? Please be as specific as possible. 
 
 

Funding is critical to this project as the required amount exceeds our budget and our fundraising 
opportunities are limited at this time, due to Covid19.  We would love to accommodate 100% of the 
school needs with Google Chromebooks, however with a 50% grant we must be mindful of our club 
budget and other community needs.  We are certain that we can meet the projected donations we 
have budgeted for (see attached Proposed Budget 2020-2021).  50% of this project will be covered 
by the Kettle Creek Public School and Contingency Fund budget lines.  Due to Covid 19, some of our 
projected donors will not be requiring funds so we will still be able to maintain a contingency fund.  
During this time we are still receiving St. Thomas Jackpot City Gaming funds.

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

14.) Please describe the ways you will measure your success. 

The Optimist Club of Port Stanley will measure our success - class by class and student by student. 

Our contest entries will be evaluated in conjunction with the class teachers and a deserving student will win bragging 
rights to the new Google Chromebook.  This will be a school wide project and will be promoted to enhance mental 
health at the school. 

We have ongoing open communication lines with the principal of the school and will keep current on updates regarding 
this project. 

As always, it is our hope to make a difference by enhancing the opportunities for our youth. 

 

 
 
 

























St. Thomas Elgin Second Stage Housing
Violence Against Women Program



COMMUNITY  SERVICES  APPLICATION 
CULTIVATE  GRANTS ONLY 

 
Application Deadline: November 1, 2020 (intake 1) 

 

Please submit a paper copy or fill out the online form and refer to the application checklist at the end of the application to 
ensure your application is complete. 

 
General Organization/Applicant Information 
Name: _S_ta_c_e_y_R__o_b_in_s_o_n__________________________________ 
Title: _F_u_n_d_D_e_v_e_lo_p_m__e_n_t _C_o_o_rd_i_n_a_to_r________________________ 
Organization: _St_Th_om_as_E_lgin_S_ec_ond_S_tag_e _Tra_ns_itio_na_l R_esi_de_nce_lo_ca_lly _kn_ow_n a_s S_t T_ho_ma_s _Elg_in _Se_con_d _Sta_ge_H_ou_sin_g 

Service or Program: _V_io_le_n_c_e_a_g_a_in_s_t_w_o_m_e_n_s_e_r_vi_c_e______________ 
 

Grant request (in dollars*): $ _1_0_,0_0_0___________ 
(* request should represent no more than 50% of the total program or service budget and must not exceed $10,000) 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Organization 

 
1.) Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin County, information about your 
legal status (not-for-profit, etc., mandate or mission statement), and description of the implementation team. 

For twenty-six years, St. Thomas–Elgin Second Stage Housing (STESSH) has offered the women of 
St. Thomas and Elgin County, in Southwestern Ontario, a safe place to re-establish their lives. The 
transitional residence offers women — with or without children — leaving abusive relationships, a 
secure and comfortable place to stay, support services, and the knowledge and tools they need to 
begin a new life free from violence.  
 
The programs offered at STESSH support women in identifying choices, provide resources so they 
may develop safety plans, offer emotional support by helping them with coping strategies, and a 
strong understanding of the negative effects of abuse.  
 
Empowering these women to understand how control is in their own hands, and not in the hands of 
others, is a means to change their lives and reinforce these positive changes. STESSH also aims to 
help women build social networks, enhance their self-esteem and develop a realistic plan for a violent 
free future. 
 
STESSH also supports the women’s children, offering individual counselling and group-based 
support programs. The support programs offer the children the opportunity to identify and deal with 
feelings and emotions, increase their knowledge about abuse, and develop social skills.  
 
The support provided for the women and their children focus on enabling them to work together as a 
family unit and move forward in a healthy manner towards a brighter, happier future. 
 
* please note: St. Thomas-Elgin Second Stage Transitional Residence is a non profit and referred to 
in our community as St. Thomas–Elgin Second Stage Housing, and its short form STESSH.*  
CRA 137010674RR0001 
 
Our Mission is to provide transitional support and housing to women, with or without children, who are 
leaving abusing relationships. 
Our Goal is to provide a safe environment in which information, access to practical resources, time 
and support are available to all women regardless of race, colour, religion, education level, economic 
status, or disability. 



 
2.) How is your organization funded? 

 
St. Thomas-Elgin Second Stage Housing has many great community partners to help support our 
operations and services, but STESSH faces funding shortfalls with the costs of all the programs we 
offer. STESSH needs to develop resources and materials, and strengthen our counselling and 
support programs. We are able to provide these services adequately, but are at a point where we 
need to make improvements to successfully adapt to changing needs of the women and children 
who use our services. 
 
STESSH aims to address the funding shortfalls through event fundraising, grant writing, working with 
community leaders & partners, businesses, and service groups so the staff can adequately provide 
the counselling and support the women and children need. 
 
Funding for the programs come from Ministry of Community and Social Services, fundraising, and 
rent.  The United Way assists by providing funds to employ a Children’s Advocate. The City of St. 
Thomas provides an annual rent supplement to support the residence. We receive a grant from 
County of Elgin to assist in program costs. STESSH receives support from granting foundations, 
including ESCF. Support from businesses and community members including +40 donors who 
support the monthly giving “100 club”. 
 
The operation costs to run the residence, services, and counselling programs are more than 
$356,000 annually. Our current support from donations, grants, including funding from United Way 
does not completely cover the costs, and we need to fundraise approximately $73,000 annually to 
fully support our services and programs. These revenues and costs are broken down further on the 
attached financial statements. 
 
 
Design 

 

3.) Please provide a brief description of the program or service you are proposing, including the steps you are taking to 
ensure a well-planned program or service. 

 
On average, 30 women, and 38 children live in residence each year. The programs are offered 
according to the situation and need of each individual woman and child. Each woman is provided 
approximately 550 hours of individual counselling, and 70 hours of group counselling. Life skills 
groups, parenting support, referrals and advocacy are also offered to the women who live at the 
residence. The children’s program offers aged-based activities. There are preschool groups, school-
aged groups and individual counselling along with recreational groups. 
 
Transitional Housing & Support Program  
 
Transitional support is offered to women that are waiting to move into the residential program. This 
includes emotional support, and safety planning, so the women can transition into the program in a 
safe manner. These referrals and advocacy are offered based on identified needs. Once the women 
leave the residence, follow-up support is offered as they exit the program. 
 
Residential Counselling Program 
 
Group and individual counselling sessions are offered to the women residing in the program. Group 
counselling focuses on helping residents to gain an understanding of the impact of abuse, 
understand feelings and emotions, develop problem-solving skills and coping strategies.  
 
There is a focus on building social networks, enhancing self-esteem, identifying and understanding 
the issues of power and control. Staff members assess personal options, which help the women to 



develop a strong skill set to establish future goals.  
 
The educational groups are offered on a weekly basis. In the week that follows the group sessions, 
women meet one-to-one with a staff member to discuss group content, and apply it personally. Each 
woman has one staff member dedication to their assistance. 
Children’s Program 
 
Witnessing and experiencing abuse negatively impacts children in many different ways, and 
influences their daily lives and future. STESSH offers counselling and support programs to the 
children living at the residence, and includes psycho-educational based family activities, individual 
support, recreation based programs, and advocacy.  
 
Due to the personal history and experiences of the children, our staff evaluate each child through 
psychological-based assessments. These assessments help staff gain an in-depth understanding of 
each child’s behaviour, reaction, learning style and their potential to learn in future. The staff then 
individualize each child’s counselling and support programs to accommodate their needs. 
 
Ultimately, the assessments reveal the child’s intellectual, social, coping, and emotional state. They 
also look at memory, attention, behavioural, social and emotional functioning. The assessments can 
also help staff identify cognitive and academic strengths and weaknesses, which is then used and 
applied to individualize the support programs for each child. 
 
The psycho-educational based programs are designed to increase safety skills, self-esteem, 
confidence, coping strategies, and learn about topics that allow them to recognize healthy social and 
life management skills. 
 
The children's programs offers education about family violence, safety planning, problem solving 
skills and emotions. The one-to-one programs available provide emotional support, allowing them to 
talk about issues privately. The learning and changing process is then encouraged and guided during 
daily connections the staff have with each family. Having the freedom to assist the children through 
daily challenges as they are occurring increases opportunities for success and growth.  
 
Ultimately, the counselling and programs have a strong impact on the children. We have seen 
positive results in many aspects of their lives including: the ability to trust, increased comfort, sense 
of security, self-confidence, positive communication, self-control, understanding of personal feelings, 
increased self-worth, healthy coping strategies, sense of belonging and identity, and increased self-
esteem. 
 
 
4.) Please provide details of key dates and scheduled activities for the program or service. 
 

Our program runs on an annual basis from April 1 to March 31. One to one counselling is provided to 
women and children weekly as well as on an as needed basis. In addition, family support meetings 
are held weekly with each family. Group support meetings are not currently running due to the 
requirement to physical distance however, the material that is learned in group support meetings is 
now learned on a one to one basis with each woman and child. 
 
5.) How many people do you hope your program or service will reach? 
 
Our 2019/2020 Statistics are a reflection of how many women and children benefit from our programs 
each year.   
 
Residential Counselling Program 
 
9      Months – average length of stay 
31    Women served 
41    Children served 
550   Individual counselling hours (women) 



275  Support & recreational group hours (children) 
31    Safety plans completed 
 
Transitional Housing & Support Program 
 
118      Number of women served 
350    Individual counselling hours (women) 
118    Transitional plans completed 
15      Number of follow-up women served 
98      Hours of follow-up support offered 
 

Needs/Impact 
 

6.) Who is your targeted audience and does it fill a need in the community? 

 
The reality is that Canada spends more that $7 billion a year to address domestic violence which 
places great pressure on the healthcare, protection and legal systems. St. Thomas-Elgin Second 
Stage Housing works to address this violence and support the women and children to transition into 
our residence and services in a safe manner. For every family who resides at STESSH’s and uses 
our support programs and counselling, their lives are made safer. As they transition out of 
STESSH’s programs, they are given the knowledge, tools and safety plans to begin a new life free 
from violence. Ultimately, each family that is impacted by support and counselling services offered 
by STESSH lessens the chance of them needing to rely on the government services for domestic 
violence, allowing for incremental systemic change, reducing costs and pressure off of those 
government services. Second stage housing is still an essential service, and STESSH will continue 
to provide support for the women in St. Thomas and Elgin County, so long as it is needed. 

 
 
7.) Please describe how widely the services are accessible to the target population and how you've aligned resources 
accordingly. 
 
Since STESSH opened its doors in 1994, more than 540 women and 845 children have used the 
services and housing. In 2019-20, STESSH offered support and services to 31 women and 41 
children, while maintaining a 98% occupancy rate in the housing units. In addition, the 
transitional housing and support program offered assistance to 118 women in Elgin County. The 
Second Stage Housing is still an essential service, and STESSH will continue to provide support 
for the women in St. Thomas and Elgin County, so long as it is needed. 
 
8.) How will your program or service ensure accessibility and accommodate increased participation (i.e. persons 

with disabilities)? 

 
Our Goal is to provide a safe environment in which information, access to practical resources, time 
and support are available to all women regardless of race, colour, religion, education level, economic 
status, or disability. From the first meeting through to using the program, women and children can 
have an interpreter present as needed and our units and offices are all accessible. 
 
 
Cultivate/Renewal 

 

9.) What has changed about your program or service? (e.g. how will you build on your success, grow your reach, enhance the 
quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new features, programs, services, outreach methods or revenue 
sources? 



St. Thomas-Elgin Second Stage Housing has many great community partners to help support our 
operations and services, but STESSH faces funding shortfalls with the costs of all the programs we 
offer. STESSH needs to develop resources and materials, and strengthen our counselling and 
support programs. Under the strain of adjusting to COVID and physical distancing, we have ceased 
our group support and move to strictly one to one counselling and support programs. We are able to 
provide these services adequately, but are at a point where we need to make improvements to 
successfully adapt to changing needs of the women and children who use our services. This is 
allowing us to address each woman and child that have unique needs based on their experiences, 
and staff need to be able to respond and provide individualized assistance. Having extra funding will 
allow staff to provide the right support and counselling, and have the resources available to assist 
every woman and child using our programs. 
 
 
 
10.) How will you measure your success? 
 
 
The children living at the residence are offered on-going support throughout the week. The programs are 
designed to increase safety skills, self-esteem, confidence, coping strategies, and learn about topics that allow 
them to recognize healthy social and life management skills. 
 
Due to the personal history and experiences, our staff evaluate each child through psychological-based 
assessments. These assessments help staff gain an in-depth understanding of each child’s behaviour, 
reaction, learning style and their potential to learn in future. The staff then individualize each child’s counseling 
and support programs to accommodate their needs. 
 
The learning and changing process is then encouraged and guided during daily connections the staff have 
with each family. Having the freedom to assist the children through daily challenges as they are occurring 
increases opportunities for success and growth. 
 
Ultimately, the program has a strong impact on the children. We have seen positive results in many aspects of 
their lives including: the ability to trust, increased comfort, sense of security, self-confidence, positive 
communication, self-control, understanding of personal feelings, increased self-worth, healthy coping 
strategies, sense of belonging and identity, and increased self-esteem. Program success is measured through 
intake and exit assessments. The intake assessments identify what the woman knows upon entry to the 
program as well as their goals. An exit assessment reviews entry goals, identifies their sucesses, and areas of 
improvment and growth. During the women's and children's stay in the program they attend group and family 
support. Semi annually, women and children respond to assessments regarding areas of improvement and 
growth. 
 
 

Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability 
 

11.) Please attach a detailed budget of your program or service including all revenues, expenses and in-kind contributions and 
information about other sources of funding (e.g. estimated volunteer hours, government funding, sponsorships). 

 
12.) Please attach your organization's financial information, including revenue and expenses for previous year (i.e. audited 
financial statements) and explanation of line items (e.g. annual membership fees or notes for significant variances), if available. 
 
13.) Why is this funding critical to your operations? Please be as specific as possible. 
STESSH has many great community partners and volunteers to help support the women and 
children, however we need to fundraise to fully support the women and children we serve. Ultimately, 
our staff has a strong impact on the women and children, and have seen positive results in many 
aspects of their lives so they can make healthy social and life choices, move forward in a positive 
manner, and make goals for the future. With your financial assistance, we can help support the 
women and their children, and enable them to work together as a family unit and move forward in a 
healthy manner towards a brighter, happier future. 

 



 
 
 
14.) Please describe the ways you will measure your success. 

We measure our success by tracking metrics such as dollars raised, women and children served, and 
successfully managing overhead costs. These metrics are certainly important as well we take pride in 
the 26 years that our organization has been fulfilling and achieving its mission to provide transitional 
support and housing to women, with or without children, who are leaving abusing relationships. 

 
 



STESSH’s 2020 Budget

Income Program Budget

United Way Elgin-St. Thomas  
(amount received to support children’s advocate salary) $40,000

Government funding (all three tiers - MCSS & City of St. Thomas) $173,500

Program Fees 0

Fundraising  
(grant writing, individual and corporate donations, events) $86,000

Rent Income $65,000

Other $10,500

Total Income $375,000

Program and Operational Expenses

Salaries & Benefits $255,000

Rent, Maintenance & Utilities $78,000

Banking Costs $3,000

Fundraising, Marketing & Communication $20,000

Computer Expenses $3,000

Program Supplies & Professional Services $12,000

Travel & Insurance $2,000

Administration (misc. audit, phone, postage) $2,000

Total Expenses $375,000

Surplus (deficit) $0































 
How can you help? 
100 Club  

The 100 Club is a planned giving initiative, which aims to get 

100 individuals, families or groups to commit to making an 

annual donation of $120 or more to our agency. All it takes is 

a onetime sign up with a voided cheque or credit card and a 

minimum of $10/month. The objective is to generate 

sustainable funding for our programs for women and children 

leaving abusive relationships. Please contact us for more 

information or to sign up today! 

 

Volunteer Opportunities 
Bingo Worker 

Must be 18 years old and complete training prior to 

volunteering. Duties include cleaning tables in between 

games and greeting players.  

 

Donations Organizer 

Sort, organize and display various clothing and household 

items donated by our community for our residents. Tasks 

include unpacking items, tidying cupboards and shelves, 

recycling extra items to another donation centre in our 

community.  

 

We have a number of other volunteer opportunities available; 

please contact the office for more information.  

 

We offer educational resources and presentations upon 

request. 
 

We can be reached at 519-637-2288 or 

secondstage.stessh@rogers.com 

Monday - Friday 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. 
 

                      
 

Violence is not a private or personal matter! 

It’s hard to leave... 
 

...if you don’t know where to go! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

St. Thomas - Elgin 

Second Stage Housing 
      519-637-2288  Toll Free: 1-877-396-2288 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Women have a right to be safe in their  

own homes - but sometimes the only 

safe place is somewhere else 

  



 

St. Thomas - Elgin Second Stage Housing  

A safe place for women and children... 
 
What we offer? 
 
Our program provides transitional supports and safe housing to 

women with or without children, who are leaving abusive 

relationships. Our affordable, well-maintained twelve apartment 

complex offers a stable environment in which women may access a 

variety of supports to help them make long term plans for 

independent living. Information, support and practical resources are 

available to women regardless of age, colour, religion, education, 

economic status or ability, who have identified a commitment to 

move beyond the abuse. The longer-term support women receive 

while residing at Second Stage is intended to empower and enable 

them to live independently in our community, free from abuse.  

Women’s Program 
 Support group (psycho educational) 

 Individual counselling supports to develop transition plans, 

safety plans, and independent living skills 

 Parenting supports 

 Referrals and advocacy 

 

Children's Programs 
 Support groups 

 Individual support to develop skills such as personal safety,  

communication, non-violent problem solving, coping skills 

and self confidence 

 Recreational programs 

 Referrals and advocacy 

 

        If you are being abused help is available  

 

 
Who may access Second Stage Housing? 
A woman who has:  

 experienced physical, psychological, emotional, 

sexual, verbal abuse or neglect 

 identified a need for ongoing support and counselling 

for herself and her children  
 

 
How do you access Second Stage Housing? 
We accept referrals from agencies, professionals, or 

individuals. It is as simple as making a phone call.  

 

  

 We can be contacted at: 
 

 Phone: 519-637-2288 

 Toll Free: 1-877-396-2288 

 Fax: 519-637-2213 

 Email: secondstage.stessh@rogers.com 

 www.secondstagehousing.net 

 Monday - Friday 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

For too many women and children, woman abuse is part of 

everyday life. Second Stage Housing plays a significant 

role working with other community supports to stop the 

violence and to assist in creating a safe future for women 

and children in Elgin County. Our mandate is to assist in 

the elimination of violence against women by addressing 

the social and cultural issues that allow violence to 

continue. 
Please turn the page over to see how you can help

 



STEAM Centre
re//BUILD.IT Community computer donation program



 
 

 
 
Please submit a paper copy or fill out the online form and refer to the application checklist at 
the end of the application to ensure your application is complete.  
 
General Organization/Applicant Information  
Name: Jessica Gransaull  
Title: Executive Director  
Organization: STEAM Education Centre  
Service or Program: re//BUILD.IT Community computer donation program 
Grant request (in dollars*): $ 10,000  
(* request should represent no more than 50% of the total program or service budget and must not exceed $10,000) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Organization  
 
1.) Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin 
County, information about your legal status (not-for-profit, etc., mandate or mission statement), 
and description of the implementation team.  
 
Our charitable mission is to educate and inspire learners to imagine, innovate and create the 
future using science, technology, engineering, art/design and math. Since 2016, STEAM Centre 
has designed and delivered coding and creative workshops for ~9000 students and ~600 
teachers from across Elgin - St. Thomas.  In partnership with Elgin County Libraries, we also 
reclaimed 300,000lbs of e-waste over that time. Since covid arrived, we have launched several 
community programs to serve the community, including iSTEAM (a year-long program with 
Antler River Elementary School students and teachers in grades 5-8, aimed at improving digital 
literacy skills and integrating technology into Indigenous art, heritage and cultural studies), and 
re//BUILD.IT Community (a computer donation program serving students, Indigenous 
communities, and people with limited means who are suddenly without consistent access to a 
computer due to covid restrictions). 
 
The STEAM team is small but dynamic! The organizations is led by Jessica Gransaull (founding 
Executive Director), and all education programs are led by Fred Cahill (founding Director of 
Education). iSTEAM is led by Dakota Ireland, and re//BUILD.IT Community is led by Stan 
Laskewich. Together, we are designing and delivering essential digital devices and workshops 
to ensure all of our neighbours across Elgin County are the best connected and best equipped in 
this digitally driven world. 
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2.) How is your organization funded?  
We are a registered charity, funded entirely through the generosity and visionary support  of 
donors, private and public granting bodies, service clubs, and pre-covid, program revenue 
provided some funding. 
 
Design 
 
3.) Please provide a brief description of the program or service you are proposing, including the 
steps you are taking to ensure a well-planned program or service.  
 
re//BUILD.IT Community launched after receiving frequent requests from the community for 
computers after schools, centres and libraries closed due to covid restrictions. Since June, 
we've provided 85 refurbished computers, and continually have a list of 20+ people patiently 
waiting. The program focuses on ensuring students, Indigenous communities and people with 
limited means can remain connected to school, family, friends and one's community at this 
difficult time.At this time, we have a solid intake and output system so we are prepared to 
handle an influx at any time, on top of meeting our current output. 
 
4.) Please provide details of key dates and scheduled activities for the program or service.  
 
Launched in June, the program aims to distribute 5-10 computers each week, reaching 300 
units donated at July 1, 2021. If funding is available, and the need still exists, we will extend the 
program until every request can be satisfied! There are a lot of reusable resources available and 
we are committed to reclaiming good electronics from becoming e-waste, while putting 
essential technology into the homes of every person in need from our region. 
 
5.) How many people do you hope your program or service will reach?  
 
We hope to distribute 300 computers before July 1, 2021. The impact of providing a computer 
to a family is multiplied for each person who comes to use and rely on the device. 
 
Needs/Impact  
 
6.) Who is your targeted audience and does it fill a need in the community?  
 
Students, Indigenous Communities and people with limited means are the target audiences. 
 
7.) Please describe how widely the services are accessible to the target population and how 
you've aligned resources accordingly.  
 
The program is accessible to everyone in need across Elgin - St. Thomas. We try to reduce all 
barriers to access so even if one cannot pick up their computer, we make every effort to deliver 
it to them. The program also continually reclaims electronic waste, redirecting usable tech to 
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new homes. We also provide the tools that each person would need to access the internet, such 
as free wireless adapters and/or ethernet cables.  
 
8.) How will your program or service ensure accessibility and accommodate increased 
participation (i.e. persons with disabilities)?  
 
We are actively communicating with regional agencies serving a diverse community of people in 
need, which helps ensure our most vulnerable can access the program, including Canadian 
Mental Health Association, Community Living Elgin, Family and Children’s Services, and Literacy 
Link South Central.  
 
Cultivate/Renewal 
 
9.) What has changed about your program or service? (e.g. how will you build on your success, 
grow your reach, enhance the quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new 
features, programs, services, outreach methods or revenue sources?  
 
We will grow our impact by continually seeking computer donations and financial support to 
ensure the program survives until the need from across Elgin - St. Thomas ceases.  
 
10.) How will you measure your success?  
 
We measure success by comparing output goals against an ultimate target of 300 computer 
donations/year, which means we need to distribute 5-7 computers each week, at minimum. We 
have excellent tracking and reporting systems in place to closely monitor our success. 
 
Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability  
 
11.) Please attach a detailed budget of your program or service including all revenues, expenses 
and in-kind contributions and information about other sources of funding (e.g. estimated 
volunteer hours, government funding, sponsorships).  
 
12.) Please attach your organization's financial information, including revenue and expenses for 
previous year (i.e. audited financial statements) and explanation of line items (e.g. annual 
membership fees or notes for significant variances), if available.  
 
13.) Why is this funding critical to your operations? Please be as specific as possible.  
 
This funding will ensure we can afford to purchase replacement parts and accessories required 
to refurbish and repurpose computers, including power cords, keyboards, mice, monitors, repair 
hand tools, computer cleaning products, wireless internet adapters, web cameras with 
microphone, etc. 
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14.) Please describe the ways you will measure your success.  
 
We will measure success using our current recording procedures and maintaining our current 
pace of refurbishing and donating at least 5 computers each week. Every computer put back 
into the community is one more computer towards successfully reaching our goal of 300 
computers donated. 
 
Application Checklist 
:  

✓ Ensure your application is complete, and you have filled in and enclosed all of the 
necessary information including Financial Statements and Budget Submission.  

✓ Include additional supporting materials including marketing materials (brochures, 
pamphlets, posters, etc.), if available.  

✓ I have read the Terms and Conditions.  
❏ Include a letter of support from the relevant municipal department if the initiative is 

linked to municipally owned land or facility.  
 
Declaration: I acknowledge that the County's investment is not to exceed 50% of the total for the 
program or service for the calendar year and understand that my application will be posted to the 
County's website and shared with the RIPA Committee and Elgin County Council. I have reviewed 
the Terms and Conditions and understand that if my application is successful, I agree to abide by 
the Terms and Conditions. I understand that all materials that are submitted as part of this 
application and the final report will be shared publicly to ensure accountability and transparency. I 
am not a County of Elgin employee, Councillor or lower-tier municipality in Elgin County. I 
understand I may be required to provide a presentation to the Rural Initiatives and Planning 
Advisory Committee to discuss my application.  
 
Authorized Signature(s) (two (2) needed if not incorporated):  
 
Name: Jessica Gransaull 
Position: Executive Director   
 
Signature:  
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re//BUILD.IT Community - 12 month Program Budget
(300 computer goal)

Budget
Income: Requested: Notes:
Federal Government Sources 
(specify):
Gov. of Canada (United Way) $71,340.00 Received. 
Provincial / Territorial 
Government Sources 
(specify):

$ -
Other (list all sources)
Corporate / Donor Support: $1,000 Received

Total Income: $72,340.00
Proposed Expense:

Wages and Benefits $43,100 2 Part time program staff + MERCs x 12 months
Professional Fees: $3,000 Consultant (design program website, do updates, creative ads, flyers)
Travel for Staff and Volunteers: $550 Occassional computer donation pickups, drop offs

Printing and Communication: $1,500
Program postcards, social media ads, radio ads, Chamber of Commerce 
ads.

Utilities, Insurance, and Rental 
of Premises $10,000

Pro-rated space costs (ie. inventory storage, refurbishing, distribution 
activities), insurance

Equipment 
Purchase/Rental/Lease/Maint
enance: $4,400

Supplemental cords, keyboards, mouse, monitors, components, hand 
tools, computer storage racks, Health and Safety/PPE supplies, sterilizing 
products, specialized computer cleaning products

Wireless access tools $16,800 Ethernet cord or wireless adapters, web camera with microphone
Administration Costs: $9,043 Staff training, supervision, and program tracking, reporting, evaluation
Other Project Materials and 
Supplies: $500 Volunteer tshirts, safety equipment,
Small Capital Costs: $0

Total Expense: $88,893
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Tel: (519) 512-0471   Fax: (519) 512-0501

www.markawales.ca

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To Board of Directors of STEAM Education Centres Incorporated:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of STEAM Education Centres Incorporated, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at June 30, 2020, and the statements of operations & changes in fund balances and cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
organization as at June 30, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the organization in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the organization or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

OUR REPORTS AND CERTIFICATES ARE ISSUED ON THE UNDERSTANDING THAT UNLESS THEY ARE REPRODUCED IN THEIR ENTIRETY, ANY SUMMARIES THEREOF, EXCERPTS
THEREFROM OR REFERENCES THERETO SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO US FOR OUR APPROVAL
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud

is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

organization’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant

doubt on the organization’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if

such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up

to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the organization to cease to

continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities

within the organization to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,

supervision and performance of the organization's audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

October 28, 2020 Mark A Wales Professional Corporation
St Thomas, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants

Authorized to practise public accounting by the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario

OUR REPORTS AND CERTIFICATES ARE ISSUED ON THE UNDERSTANDING THAT UNLESS THEY ARE REPRODUCED IN THEIR ENTIRETY, ANY SUMMARIES THEREOF, EXCERPTS
THEREFROM OR REFERENCES THERETO SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO US FOR OUR APPROVAL
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STEAM EDUCATION CENTRES INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

2020
$

2019
$

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Bank and cash 95,296 36,565
Accounts receivable - 7,696
Government remittances recoverable 690 15,612
Inventory 500 2,079
Prepaid expenses 460 3,392

TOTAL ASSETS 96,946 65,344

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Line of credit - Note 7 18 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 7,330 26,700
Government remittances payable 195 270
Deferred contributions - Note 3 104,855 14,192

112,398 41,162

CEBA LOAN - Note 8 40,000 -

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS - Note 4

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted funds (deficit) (55,452) 24,182

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 96,946 65,344

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

Director: Director:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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STEAM EDUCATION CENTRES INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020
$

2019
$

Balance - Beginning of year 24,182 (4,335)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses for the year (79,634) 28,517

Balance - End of year (55,452) 24,182

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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STEAM EDUCATION CENTRES INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Budget
2020

$

Actual
2020

$

Actual
2019

$

REVENUES
Opening balance - - 75,000
Unrestricted contributions and grants 95,000 46,288 64,765
Restricted contributions and grants 105,000 52,181 87,247
E-Waste recycling 6,500 4,142 6,237
Memberships - - 550
Space rental 400 940 21,048
Consultation and instruction 2,250 2,761 1,780
Retail merchandise and consumable fees 24,750 3,779 12,750
Enrolment fees 31,330 6,652 32,588
Events 40,000 - 20
School field trips 32,125 6,645 15,816
Raffle proceeds 2,000 - 1,720
Bank interest 250 116 130

339,605 123,504 319,651

EXPENSES
Advertising and marketing 6,792 2,159 4,722
Computer hardware and software 5,000 1,913 3,646
Direct programming expenses 35,300 12,305 17,327
Insurance 4,150 1,754 2,276
Event costs 8,000 - 571
Office expenses 5,100 3,260 10,038
Professional fees 14,210 14,926 10,179
Professional development 1,000 260 402
Retail purchases - - 1,223
Telecommunications 1,330 1,653 2,588
Travel 1,000 59 97
Utilities 21,550 20,967 33,325
Wages and benefits 192,281 143,882 204,740

295,713 203,138 291,134

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR 43,892 (79,634) 28,517

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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STEAM EDUCATION CENTRES INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2020
$

2019
$

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses for the year (79,634) 28,517

Changes in working capital items:
Change in accounts receivable 7,696 (6,689)
Change in government remittances recoverable 14,922 12,891
Change in inventory 1,579 1,005
Change in prepaid expenses 2,932 2,746
Change in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (19,370) 538
Change in government remittances payable (75) (4)
Change in deferred contributions 90,663 (77,299)

98,347 (66,812)

18,713 (38,295)

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of CEBA loan 40,000 -
Repayments to line of credit (8,982) -
Advances from line of credit 9,000 -
Repayments to note payable (10,000) -
Advances from note payable 10,000 -

40,018 -

NET CHANGE IN CASH FOR THE YEAR 58,731 (38,295)

CASH - BEGINNING 36,565 74,860

CASH - ENDING 95,296 36,565

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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STEAM EDUCATION CENTRES INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The organization was Federally incorporated on May 18th, 2016 in the Province of Ontario for the purpose
of empowering all learners and makers in Southwestern Ontario to create the future through play,
ingenuity and exploration using STEAM learning tools.  The organization is a Registered Charity without
share capital under the ITA (Canada).

The organization operates from the rented premises at 745 Talbot Street, St Thomas.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The organization follows accounting principles generally accepted for not-for-profit organizations and
these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations which include the following:

(a) Accrual Basis of Accounting

Revenue and expenditures are recorded on the accrual basis, whereby they are reflected in the
accounts in the period in which they have been earned and incurred respectively, whether or not
such transactions have been fully settled by the receipt of payment of money.

(b) Revenue Recognition

The organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include
government grants.  Restricted contributions and are recognized as revenue in the year in which
the related expenses are incurred.  Unrestricted contributions, fees, rent and interest are
recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be
reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

(c) Inventory

Inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  The cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out method.  Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business.

(d) Capital Assets

The organization has elected to expense capital assets as purchased in accordance with Section
4431 of the Accounting Standards for Non-Profit Organizations.  The following is a list of the
types of capital assets the organization utilizes:

Computer hardware

Office equipment

Program equipment

Leasehold improvements

Signs
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STEAM EDUCATION CENTRES INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(e) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired individually or as part of a group of other assets are expensed as
incurred.  The organizations intangible assets consist of computer software, which is expensed as
purchased.

(f) Contributed Services and Goods

Volunteers contribute an indeterminable number of hours per year to assist the organization in
carrying out its activities. Because of the difficulty in determining the fair value and the extent of
staff time required to gather and calculate the fair value, contributed services are not recognized
in the financial statements.

Used electronic goods are accepted by the organization through the E-Waste Recycling program.
Contributed goods, used in the normal course of operations, are recognized in the financial
statements when the fair value can be reasonably estimated and the materials would otherwise
have been purchased.

(g) Leases

Leases are classified as either capital or operating leases.  A lease that transfers substantially all
of the benefits and risks incidental to the ownership of property is classified as a capital lease.
All other leases are accounted for as operating leases wherein rental payments are expensed as
incurred.  At the inception of a capital lease, an expense and obligation are recorded at an amount
equal to the lesser of the present value of the minimum lease payments and the property's fair
value at the beginning of such lease.

(h) Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued.  In subsequent periods,
financial assets with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with any unrealized gains
and losses reported in income.  All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost, and
tested for impairment at each reporting date.  Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issue of
financial instruments are expensed when incurred.  The organizations's financial instruments
consist of cash, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and deferred grants.
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STEAM EDUCATION CENTRES INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

(i) Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period.  Such estimates are periodically reviewed and any adjustments necessary are reported in
earnings in the period in which they become known.  Actual results could differ from these
estimates.  The primary estimates made by management in these financial statements relate to
accruals.

3. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS

Deferred contributions represent the amount of restricted contributions that are related to expenses of
future periods. When expenses are incurred, the matching contribution will be recognized as revenue.
At year end, $104,855 of the cash balance is restricted to be used for future programs.

2020
$

2019
$

CIRA Grant 74,255 -
Ontario Trillium Grant 28,600 -
Canada Summer Training Grant - 12,192
Elgin-St Thomas Community Foundation Grant 1,000 -
Kinsmen Scholarship 1,000 2,000

104,855 14,192

4. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The organization is committed to payments for property and service contracts with varying terms.
Aggregate annual payments are as follows:

$

2021 20,243
2022 18,000
2023 9,000

47,243

- 9 -



STEAM EDUCATION CENTRES INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

During the normal course of operations, the organization has purchased and expensed the following
capital assets which would otherwise be capitalized and amortized under the alternative accounting
policy:

2020
$

2019
$

Office equipment - 2,480
Program equipment 974 -

974 2,480

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The organization is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments.  The following analysis
provides information about the organization's risk exposure and concentration as of Tuesday, June 30,
2020.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations.  The
organization is exposed to credit risk from donors and customers, however, the nature and cycle
of these obligations, and the number of donors and customers ensures that the organization's
exposure to credit risk is minimized.  It is uncommon for the organization to have any outstanding
amounts due from customers.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities.  The organization is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its receipt
of funds from donors and customers and accounts payable.  The predictable and cyclical nature of
the operating cycle reduces the organization's liquidity risk.  The organization manages budgets to
adjust expenditures when shortfalls are expected.
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STEAM EDUCATION CENTRES INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in the market prices.  Market risk comprises three types of risk:
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.  The organization does not have any
significant exposure to market risk.

7. LINE OF CREDIT

The organization has a line of credit facility with the Libro Credit Union.  The facility is to a
maximum of $10,000 and bears interest at the prime rate of the Libro Credit Union plus 5.0%.  At
year-end, $9,982 (2019 - $10,000) of the facility was available to use.

8. CEBA LOAN

During the year, the organization applied for the Canadian Emergency Business Account ("loan")
from the Government of Canada and received the $40,000 advance from the Libro Credit Union.
There are no repayment terms until December 31, 2022.  If the organization repays the loan before
December 31, 2022, the Government of Canada has agreed to forgive up to 25% of the loan.  If loan
is partially repaid by December 31, 2022 then the organization may enter into an arrangement with
the Government of Canada to repay the balance.

Principal repayments expected for the next five years:
$

2021 -
2022 -
2023 40,000

40,000

9. BUDGET AMOUNTS

The 2020 budget amounts are presented for information purposes only.  They were approved by the
board of directors and are unaudited.

- 11 -



Transition To Employment Program 
110 Centre Street 

St. Thomas, Ontario, N5R 2Z9 
Ph: (519) 633.1781 ext #284 

 

 

 

May 28, 2020 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 

I am a Mental Health Worker at Canadian Mental Health Elgin in the Transition to Employment 
Program. Our program focuses in the areas of Vocational Rehabilitation with education, 
employment and volunteering.  

I recently reached out to Steam Education around your Computer donating program and received 
a computer, which went to a very grateful home and opened opportunities for our client. As we 
move forward with the pandemic the need for technology with our clients has grown 
substantially.  

What your computer program offers our program is bridging client’s to success. Clients will be 
able to work independently at home on educational components and job searching to find 
employment. We see a high need now that we are living the new normal, but believe the need 
was always there and will continue post pandemic. We encourage and promote independence for 
all our clients, continuously looking for opportunities to increase their chance for growth and 
success.  

In conclusion, I personally would love to see this program grow with further success and close 
some of the gaps in our community with lack of educational tools for people. Please connect to 
discuss how we can work together if this is an interest to you.  

 
 
Michelle Crocker, SSW 
Transition to Employment 
Mental Health Worker 
 
CMHA Elgin Branch 
Tel: 519-633-1781 ext. 284 
Toll-Free: 1-855-633-1781 
 





D O N A T I O N S  N E E D E D !

Book a group tour with us and enjoy a huge discount!

GIVE YOUR OLD LAPTOP A NEW LIFE!
More people are learning and working from home but not everyone has access to a computer.  To help

them we're searching for laptop computers in good condition, wireless adapters and power cords.  Drop
off your donation and help us provide essential learning tools to families and students in need.  With over

20 people on the waiting list, this is urgent!

You can support this program and help create a better connected future for our children by also donating
to the STEAM Centre at CanadaHelps.org . 

STEAM Centre uses the services of a certified information systems security professional to destroy your
personal/corporate data from your hard drive.

DROP OFF Oct 30, Nov 6 & Nov 13 (12 - 4 pm or by appointment)

WWW.STEAMEDUCATION.CA      226-212-0048  
 INFO@STEAMEDUCATION.CA

745 TALBOT STREET, ST. THOMAS, ON.

https://www.canadahelps.org/en/charities/steam-education-centres-incorporated/


Tillsonburg and District Multi-Service Centre
Employment, Literacy and Home Support Services



COMMUNITY  SERVICES  APPLICATION 
CULTIVATE  GRANTS ONLY 

 
Application Deadline: November 10, 2020 (intake 1) 

 

Please submit a paper copy or fill out the online form and refer to the application checklist at the end of the 
application to ensure your application is complete. 

 
General Organization/Applicant Information 
Name: _K_a_th_r_yn__L_e_at_h_e_rla_n_d_________________________________ 
Title: _E_x_e_cu_t_iv_e_D_i_re_c_to_r___________________________________ 
Organization: _T_il_ls_o_nb_u_r_g_&__D_is_tr_ic_t_M_u_lt_i-_S_e_rv_ic_e_C__en_t_re_____________ 
Service or Program: _E_m_p_lo_y_m_e_n_t_, L_i_te_r_ac_y_a_n_d_H__o_m_e_S_u_p_p_o_rt_S_e_r_vi_ce_s__ 

 
Grant request (in dollars*): $ _3_,2_0_5____________ 

(* request should represent no more than 50% of the total program or service budget and must not exceed $10,000) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________
Organization 

 
1.) Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin County, information 
about your legal status (not-for-profit, etc., mandate or mission statement), and description of the 
implementation team. 

The Multi-Service Centre is a charitable organization providing excellence in employment, literacy and home 
support services to Oxford, Norfolk and Elgin communities through partnerships and innovation that allow others 
to embrace their personal independence.  Incorporated in 1978, the MSC has been supporting residents and 
businesses with employment needs, literacy upgrading and helping seniors age in place.  Many of these services 
are at no cost to the client.   We are a team of 73 staff and 125 volunteers,  governed by 6 Board of Directors.  
We are extremely thankful for the continued support from Elgin County.  Last year, your grant of $4,302 
supported volunteer activities like recruitment, training and orientation; the purchase of materials and technology 
for the literacy and seniors programs and helped to cover shortfalls in transportation and meals for needy 
individuals.  Thank you. 
 
2.) How is your organization funded? 
Each year, our non-profit organization receives core funding from various government bodies (SWLHIN and 
MTCU), however it does not cover all program costs. We rely greatly on donations and grant funds to enhance 
and expand current programs to meet the needs of our growing and changing community.  This year our 
fundraising goal is $32,053.  We are requesting $3,205 which is based on the proportion of the amount we need 
to raise for Elgin County clients assisted by our programs last fiscal year.   
 
Design 

 

3.) Please provide a brief description of the program or service you are proposing, including the steps you are 
taking to ensure a well-planned program or service. 
The Multi-Service Centre provides programming in three (3) program areas: Adult Literacy & Essential Skills; 
Employment Services and Home Support Services. We are asking for support for our community programs. MSC 
programs receives base funding from the Ministry of Training, Colleges & Universities (through Employment 
Ontario) and the SWLHIN. The remainder is funded through municipal support requests, fundraising, draws, and 
donor campaigns.  Since March 2020, our traditional in-person fundraising events (ie. Trail Walk fundraiser, golf 
tournament and more) have been cancelled due to COVID-19 and new safety restrictions put in place.  The 
necessities of physical distancing and the realities of virtual serve provision have resulted in increased 
challenges for our literacy clients continuing to reach their learning goals and the need for more funds to provide 
electronic tools to learners.  Support from our Municipal partners is needed now more than ever.  The safety of 
our clients, staff, donors, volunteers and community is the MSC’s top priority. 
    
 
4.) Please provide details of key dates and scheduled activities for the program or service. 



The MSC's fiscal year runs April 1st - March 31st each year.  At the beginning of each Fiscal, Government 
funders provide the MSC with targets for employment, literacy and home support services to achieve by end of 
year.  The MSC provides quarterly reports to the government to track progress. 
 
 
5.) How many people do you hope your program or service will reach? 
Last fiscal year, the MSC supported 59 Employment Services clients, 25 Literacy clients and 51 Home Support 
clients from Elgin County.  We anticipate our numbers will grow this year due to COVID-19’s impact on the 
employment sector. 
 

Needs/Impact 
 

6.) Who is your targeted audience and does it fill a need in the community? 
The MSC supports people of all ages: seniors, youth, adults, who all come from very different backgrounds.  
Within this group, there is a large portion of Low-German speaking clients who receive regular support through 
our Literacy program.  Once completed the Literacy program, this group of Low-German speaking clients have 
increased independence that improves their day to day lives and supports them in finding meaningful 
employment. 
 

7.) Please describe how widely the services are accessible to the target population and how you've 
aligned resources accordingly. 
The MSC operates out of 5 locations: The Livingston Centre in Tillsonburg, where all literacy & employment 
services are located; the literacy program in a satellite office in Woodstock (in Community Employment Services); 
MSC’s Home Support Services & several administration services in the Tillsonburg Town Centre (co-located with 
Stonebridge Community Services); out of the Norfolk Help Centre & in client homes.  All of our employment and 
literacy programs and workshops are offered in-person, over the phone or virtually through videoconferencing. In-
person appointments occur in our offices or at locations like the local public library in Straffordville. Evening 
appointments are available. 

 

8.) How will your program or service ensure accessibility and accommodate increased participation (i.e. 
persons with disabilities)? 

The MSC has two wheelchair vans that are available to clients with disabilities if they are experiencing 
challenges with transportation seeking our services.  These vans are also available to the public for 
transportation, so bookings must be made in advance.  The Senior Exercise Classes have transitioned 
from in person to online in order for participants to continue exercising in a safe way.  MSC 
Employment clients are provided with resources and support to help overcome barriers facing 
employment in their lives such as additions, low-income, etc. The MSC is fully compliant with the 
Accessibility for Ontarians with a Disability Act and has an up to date Accessibility Plan in place to 
prevent and remove barriers and improve access to our services. All staff and volunteers are trained on 
accessibility standards and the Human Rights Code. The MSC has an Accessible Customer Service 
Policy that ensures equal access and participation for persons with disabilities. The MSC has a 
Diversity and Equity Policy that commits to identify, prevent, and eliminate discrimination and 
harassment in all its forms with respect to race, colour, ancestry, place of origin, physical or mental 
disability, sex, gender identity or expression, sexual orientation, age, religion, political belief, marital 
status or family status.   
 
 
Cultivate/Renewal 

 

9.) What has changed about your program or service? (e.g. how will you build on your success, grow your reach, 
enhance the quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new features, programs, services, 
outreach methods or revenue sources? 
This year COVID-19 has forced changes to all MSC programs.  In the Spring of 2020, Employment and Literacy 
program was required to deliver services remotely to ensure the safety of our staff, volunteers and clients.  MSC 
Home Support Services continued to provide support to clients in their home when deemed their service(s) as 
essential to age in place.  The Meals On Wheels hot meal program was reduced from a lunch and supper route to 
just a lunch route.  Clients were provided frozen meals to help support seniors temporarily not receiving hot 
meals.  Today, MSC continues to serve with COVID-19 safety protocols in place and has returned to offering all 



of its services again and in the delivery format that best suits the client; in-person, telephone, texting, virtual 
platforms such as Zoom and MS Teams. During the pandemic a new program, titled Grocery Buddies, was 
started to address food insecurity of seniors and adults with a disability. MSC staff provide technological support 
to clients who are unable to independently operate on-line grocery ordering services so that needed food can be 
ordered and utilize volunteer drivers to deliver the groceries in a safe way to the client’s home. 
 
10.) How will you measure your success? 

 
All clients in our community programs have identified goals. These goals may include: ability to stay in 

their own homes (seniors); and for those in the literacy and employment programs: employment, improved 
job performance, upgrading for further training, improved employment prospects, ability to read materials 
like prescriptions and financial documents, technological literacy (email, internet use), as well as improved 
ability to help children with homework and loved ones with daily living activities. In all cases, achievement 
of these goals results in improved skills and enhanced personal independence. Progress towards the 
client’s goals is regularly assessed and the delivery plan changed if needed. 
 
 
Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability 

 

11.) Please attach a detailed budget of your program or service including all revenues, expenses and in-kind contributions 
and information about other sources of funding (e.g. estimated volunteer hours, government funding, sponsorships). - 
attached 

 
12.) Please attach your organization's financial information, including revenue and expenses for previous year (i.e. 
audited financial statements) and explanation of line items (e.g. annual membership fees or notes for significant variances), 
if available. - attached 

 
13.) Why is this funding critical to your operations? Please be as specific as possible. 

All of our programs receive base funding annually from two provincial government ministries. However, 
the agency must raise community support every year in order to meet program needs.  Technology 
literacy is more important than ever as many services are offered virtually. The MSC would like to 
establish a small lap top lending library for clients who do not have their own device so they can continue 
to make progress towards their literacy goals. Many employers are asking for skills operating other 
devices such as iPad and Chromebook. The MSC needs to purchase these tools so its clients can 
participate in this learning. The Grocery Buddies program has been a big success but is not funded by 
the government. The MSC needs to raise funds to continue to support the volunteers for the program in 
2021. 

 

14.) Please describe the ways you will measure your success. 
Volume targets are set for each service delivered by the MSC. The actual amount of services provided is 
gathered daily, analyzed weekly by staff and reviewed monthly by the Board of Directors for progress 
towards these targets. Other quality focused metrics are also set for each program. These include level 
of overall client satisfaction which is  determined by monthly client telephone surveys, days waited for 
first date of service (client wait times), number and type of client safety incidents and number of other 
agencies clients are connected to for additional services. Each program reviews monthly its progress 
towards all of its quality targets. The Quality and Safety Committee, comprised of the senior leaders of 
each department, the Executive Director as well as one volunteer from each of the Board of Directors 
and the community, review all programs’ progress towards quality targets, make recommendations to 
the Board of Directors for any needed changes and tracks the implementation status all recommended 
changes. The MSC has participated for the past twenty years in the voluntary accreditation process as 
administered by Accreditation Canada. In October 2019 the MSC earned the highest award possible at 
its on-site review, accreditation with exemplary status. 
 
Application Checklist: 

 

X Ensure your application is complete, and you have filled in and enclosed all of the necessary information including 
Financial Statements and Budget Submission. 

 
X Include additional supporting materials including marketing materials (brochures, pamphlets, posters, etc.), if 



Date: 2020.11.10 10:18:05 -05'00' 

available.  
 
X I have read the Terms and Conditions. 
 
X Include a letter of support from the relevant municipal department if the initiative is linked to municipally owned 
land or facility. 

 
 
 
 
 

Declaration: 
I acknowledge that the County's investment is not to exceed 50% of the total for the program or service for the calendar year 
and understand that my application will be posted to the County's website and shared with the RIPA Committee and Elgin 
County Council. I have reviewed the Terms and Conditions and understand that if my application is successful, I agree to 
abide by the Terms and Conditions. I understand that all materials that are submitted as part of this application and the final 
report will be shared publicly to ensure accountability and transparency. I am not a County of Elgin employee, Councillor or 
lower-tier municipality in Elgin County. I understand I may be required to provide a presentation to the Rural Initiatives and 
Planning Advisory Committee to discuss my application. 

 
Authorized Signature(s) (two (2) needed if not incorporated): 

 
Name: _K_at_h_ry_n_L_ea_t_he_rl_a_nd____________ 
Position: _E_xe_c_u_tiv_e_D_ir_e_ct_or____________ 
Signature: _Ka_th_ry_n_L_ea_th_er_la_nd__Dig_itally_sig_ned_by K_ath_ryn _Leat_herl_and_ 

Name:  _________________________ 
Position:  _______________________ 
Signature:  ______________________ 

 

Applicants should mail, email or deliver a signed copy of the Application Form and supporting materials to: 
communitygrants@elgin.ca or mail to: 

 
Corporation of the County of Elgin 

c/o Chief Administrative Officer/Clerk - Community Grant Program 
450 Sunset Drive, St. Thomas, ON N5R 5V1 

mailto:communitygrants@elgin.ca


2020‐21 2019‐20
APPROVED APPROVED

EXPENSES: BUDGET BUDGET
Wages & Benefits 2,905,202 2,884,029
Operating Expenses 652,793 617,159
MTCU Restricted Funds 549,361 549,361
Allocated Admin & Facility Costs 862,261 834,193
Staff & Volunteer Development 34,348 34,348
Capital Expenditures 45,000 42,500
   TOTAL EXPENSES 5,048,965 4,961,590

REVENUE:
Federal & Provincial Funding 3,935,755 3,935,755
Municipal Funding 50,000 50,000
Fees & Service Charges 968,157 874,837
Interest & Misc Income 18,000 12,000
TOTAL REVENUE 4,971,912 4,872,592
   NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) ‐77,053 ‐88,998
FUNDS TO RAISE:
Fundraising & Donation Goal 32,053 46,498
Transfer from Reserve 0 0
Transfer from Capital 45,000 42,500
   NET SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 0 0

Approved Budget for 2020-2021 Fiscal Year

Y:\Director of Operations\Board of Directors\MSC\2019 05 27 ‐ MSC 2020‐21 Approved Budget



EN KLOSLERGOOD REDD
Supporting Growth. Providing Direction.
Chartered Professional Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of the Board of:
TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tillsonburg & District Multi-Service Centre which comprise the
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, statement of change in net assets, statement of operations and statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-
For-Profit Organizations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

in common with many not-for-profit organizations, Tillsonburg & District Multi-Service Centre derives revenue in cash from
donations and fundraising, the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly,
verification of this revenue was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of Tillsonburg & District Multi-Service Centre.
Therefore, we were not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to revenue and net assets.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.We are independent of Tillsonburg & District Multi-Service Centre in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian
Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless managementeither intends to liquidate or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process.

Integrating Accounting, Advisory &Wealth Management Services goodcas.com
84 Colborne Street North, Simcoe, ON N3Y 3V1 38 Brock Street East, Tillsonburg, ON N4G 1Z5T519.426.5160 F 519.426.5174 T 519.842.4246 F 519.842.6656

Our Reports and Certificates are issued on the understanding that unless they are reproduced in their entirety, any summaries thereof,excerpts therefrom, or references thereto, shall be submitted to usfor approval.



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is

a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsible to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Good Redden Klocer LLP
CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

Licensed Public Accountants
Tillsonburg, Ontario

July 27, 2020



TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at March 31, 2020
(With comparative figures as at March 31, 2019)

Operating Capital Reserve Total Total
Fund Fund Fund 2020 2019

ASSETS S S S S S
Cash

. 717,043 50,000 622,305 1,389,348 1,145,628
Accounts receivable 72,865 - - 72,865 108,792

Total current assets 789,908 50,000 622,305 1,462,213 1,254,420

Long-term investments and receivables (note 3) 93,915 311,000 713,784 1,118,699 1,110,858

Equipment (note 5) - 3,392 - 3,392 5,478

Total Assets 883,823 364,392 1,336,089 2,584,304 2,370,756

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 4) 570,118 - - 570,118 917,204
Deferred revenue (note 8) 142,920 - - 142,920 88,079

Total current liabilities ,

713,038 - - 713,038 605,283

Fund Balances
Invested in property and equipment - 3,392 - 3,392 5,478
Invested in long-term investments - 311,000 713,784 1,024,784 1,016,942
Internally restricted - 50,000 622,305 672,305 515,844
Unrestricted 170,785 - - 170,785 227,209

Total fund balances -170,785 364,392 1,336,089 1,871,266 1,765,473

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 883,823 364,392 1,336,089 2,584,304 2,370,756

Approved by:

SA



TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the year ended March 31, 2020
(With comparative figures for the year ended March 31, 2019}

Operating Capital Reserve Mar. 31 Mar. 31
Fund Fund Fund 2020 2019

$ $ $ $ $

REVENUE
/

Provincial funding 3,910,262 - - 3,910,262 3,916,667
Local government and other grants 68,281 - - 68,281 64,564
Donations and fundraising 16,883 - - 16,883 34,383
Client fees 190,694 - - 190,694 168,686
Program income 52,176 - - 52,176 89,915
Allocated administration 639,984 34,872 - 674,856 644,328
Interest and miscellaneous income 42,882 1,177 16,982 61,041 24,506

Total revenue 4,921,162 36,049 16,982 4,974,193 4,943,049

\)



TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the year ended March 31, 2020
(With comparative figures for the year ended March 31, 2019)

Operating Capital Reserve Mar. 31 Mar. 31
Fund Fund Fund 2020 2019

$ $ $ $ $

EXPENDITURES

Wages and benefits 2,752,529 - - 2,752,529 2,705,835
Travel 85,279 - - 85,279 50,897
Program expenses 955,971 - - 955,971 1,007,575
Office and administration 397,656 24 - 397,680 409,150
Allocated administration 674,856 - - 674,856 644,328
Amortization of property and equipment - 2,085 - 2,085 2,409

Total expenditures 4,866,291 2,109 - 4,868,400 4,820,194

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over
Expenditures for the Year 54,871 33,940 16,982 105,793 122,855

Interfund Transfers, Net (111,294) (36,025) 147,319 - -

Change in Fund Balances
for the Year ‘

(56,423) (2,085) 164,301 105,793 122,855

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 227,208 366,477 1,171,788 1,765,473 1,642,618

Fund Balance, End of Year 170,785 364,392 1,336,089 1,871,266 1,765,473



TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - OPERATING FUND
For the year ended March 31, 2020
(With comparative figures for the year ended March 31, 2019}

Mar. 31 Mar. 31
Schedule 1 Schedule 2 Schedule 3 2020 2019

$s $ $ $ $

REVENUE
Provincial funding 2,161,449 1,748,813 - 3,910,262 3,916,667
Local government and other grants - 40,996 27,285 68,281 64,564
Donations and fundraising 16,299 - 584 16,883 34,383
Client fees 190,694 - - 190,694 168,686
Program income 10,215 15 41,946 52,176 89,915
Allocated administration - - 639,984 639,984 609,456
Interest and miscellaneous income - - 42,882 42,882 9,166

Total revenue 2,378,657 1,789,824 752,681 4,921,162 4,892,837

EXPENDITURES .

Wages and benefits 1,437,725 812,402 502,402 2,752,529 2,705,834
Travel 82,126 2,627 526 85,279 50,897
Program expenses 281,553 513,105 161,313 955,971 1,007,575
Office and administration 232,157 131,930 33,569 397,656 409,108
Allocated administration 345,096 329,760 - 674,856 644,328

Total expenditures 2,378,657 1,789,824 697,810 4,866,291 4,817,742

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over
Expenditures for the Year - - 54,871 54,871 75,095



TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
SCHEDULE 1

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES
For the year ended March 31, 2020
(With comparative figures for the year ended March 31, 2019}

South West Exercise Mar. 31 Mar. 31
LHIN Program 2020 2019
$ $ $

REVENUE
Provincial funding 2,089,965 71,484 2,161,449 1,766,965
Donations and fundraising 1,514 14,785 16,299 16,314
Client fees 190,694 - 190,694 168,686
Program income 215 10,000 10,215 10,000

Total revenue 2,282,388 96,269 2,378,657 1,961,965

EXPENDITURES

Wages and benefits 1,341,456 96,269 1,437,725 1,300,151
Travel 82,126 - 82,126 45,662
Program expenses 281,553 - 281,553 119,361
Office and administration 232,157 - 232,157 215,163
Allocated administration 345,096 - 345,096 281,628

Total expenditures 2,282,388 96,269 2,378,657 1,961,965

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over

Expenditures for the Year - - : .



TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
SCHEDULE 2
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - MTCU FUNDED PROGRAMS
For the year ended March 31, 2020
(With comparative figures for the year ended March 31, 2019)

Youth Literacy Basic Employment Vic/ CAN/ON Mar. 31 Mar. 31
Job Link Skills Services YJICS Job Grant 2020 2019

$ $ $s $ $ $ $s

REVENUE
Provincial funding - 190,185 1,038,700 400,040 119,888 1,748,813 2,113,302
Local government and other grants - - 40,996 - - 40,996 33,831
Donations and fundraising - - - - - - 1,225
Program income - 16 - - - 45 -
Interest and miscellaneous income - - - - - - 10

Total revenue - 190,200 1,079,696 400,040 119,888 1,789,824 2,148,368

EXPENDITURES

Wages and benefits : - 138,027 505,492 152,652 16,231 812,402 939,359
Travel - 295 2,332 - - 2,627 4,697
Program expenses - 6,507 224,916 180,723 100,959 §13,105 713,114
Office and administration - 16,427 104,484 10,973 46 131,930 128,498
Allocated administration - 28,944 242,472 55,692 2,652 329,760 362,700

Total expenditures : - 190,200 1,079,696 400,040 119,888 1,789,824 2,148,368

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over
Expenditures for the Year - - - - - - -



TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
SCHEDULE 3
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - ADMINISTRATION & OTHER PROGRAMS
For the year ended March 31, 2020
(With comparative figures for the year ended March 31, 2019)

VIP Mar. 31 Mar, 31
Admin Program 2020 2019

$ $ $ $

REVENUE
;Provincial funding - - - 36,400Local government and other grants 22,432 4,853 27,285 30,733Donations and fundraising 584 - 584 16,844

Program income 41,946 -
41,946 79,915

Allocated administration 639,984 -
639,984 609,456

interest and miscellaneous income 42,882 - 42,882 9,156
Total revenue 747,828 4,853 752,681 782,504

EXPENDITURES

Wages and benefits 502,402 - :

502,402 466,324
Travel 526 - 526 538
Program expenses 159,663 1,650 161,313 175,100
Office and administration 30,366 3,203 33,569 65,447
Total expenditures 692,957 4,853 697,810 707,409
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over
Expenditures for the Year 54,871 - 54,871 75,095
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TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended March 31, 2020
(With comparative figures for the year ended March 31, 2019)

2020 2019
$ $

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year 105,794 122,853
Amortization 2,085 2,409

107,879 125,262

Changes in non-cash working capital accounts
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 35,927 (15,452)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and deposits - 5,057
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accruals 52,914 (13,076)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 54,841 14,486

Cash flows from (applied to) operating activities 251,561 116,277

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Decrease (increase) in long-term investments and receivables (7,841) (7,842)

Increase in Cash During the Year 243,720 108,435

Cash at Beginning of Year 1,145,628 1,037,193

Cash at End of Year 1,389,348 1,145,628
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TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2020

1, NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Tillsonburg & District Multi-Service Centre (the "Centre") was incorporated without share capital in 1977
under the Income Tax Act of Canada as a registered charity. The Centre is exempt from tax under section 149 of
the Income Tax Act.

The purpose ofthe Centre is:

(i) To provide and render employment, home support and adult basic literacy services to a primarily adult
resident population;

(ii) To establish and operate a centre for the organization and dissemination of social services throughout
the Town of Tillsonburg and its surrounding district;

(ili) To co-operate and. co-ordinate with all other social service agencies; and

(iv) To receive, acquire and hold gifts, donations, legacies and devises.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Centre follows Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations; significant aspects of the
accounting policies adopted are as follows:

(a) Fund Accounting
in order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of the resources available to
the Tillsonburg & District Multi-Service Centre ("Centre"), the accounts are maintained in accordance with
the principles of "fund accounting". Under these principles, resources for various purposes are classified for
accounting and reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities or objectives specified.
Separate accounts are maintained for each fund.

{i) Operating Fund
The Operating Fund of the Centre records amounts used for the day to day operations of the Centre and
also records the assets, liabilities and net surplus carried forward relating to ongoing operations.

(ii) Capital Fund
The Capital Fund reports assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditures related to the Centre's property and
equipment.

(iii) Reserve Fund
Money in the reserve funds have been set aside for future expenditures for building maintenance, other
capital additions and contingencies and is to be used as authorized by the Board. Interest generated by the
reserve fund is maintained in the account.

-11-



TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Revenue Recognition
The Centre follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions.

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the fund to which they relate in the year in which they
are received. Restricted contributions for which there is no corresponding restricted fund, are recognized in

the Operating Fund using the deferral method, whereby the contributions are deferred and brought into
income when the applicable expenses are incurred.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the Operating Fund in the year in which they are
received or become receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is

reasonably assured.

Investment income earned on resources of the Capital Fund and Reserve Fund is recognized as revenue of
those funds. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue of the Operating Fund.

Program income and client fees are recognized as revenue in the Operating Fund when the service is

performed and the legal obligation to pay is created.

(c) Contributed Services
Volunteers contribute time each year to assist the Centre in carrying out its service delivery activities.
Because of the difficulty in determining the fair value contributed services are not recognized in the financial
statements.

(d) Government Assistance
Government grants and funding is recorded when there is reasonable assurance that the Centre has
complied with and will continue to comply with all necessary conditions to obtain the grants and funding.
Funding related to current expenditures is recognized in the current period determination of net income.
Funding related to expenses of future periods is deferred and amortized into income as related expenses are
incurred, or in accordance with the restricted fund method where a corresponding restricted fund is

presented.

(e) Income Taxes
As a registered charity, the Centre is exempt from Part | tax under paragraph 149(1)(f) of the Income Tax Act
(Canada).

(f) Allocated Administration
The Centre incurs administration costs that relate to the whole organization. These costs include human
resource costs for the executive director, business manager, accounting clerks, receptionists, as well as costs
for office supplies, equipment rental and staff development. These costs are allocated to the various
programs and departments using Ministry funding levels as an indicator of program activity, or when
identifiable, specific activities and resource consumptionofthe individual programs.
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TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Equipment
Equipment is recorded at cost and contributed capital assets are recorded at their fair market value at the
date of contribution. Capital assets funded through government programs or agencies are recorded at cost
and the corresponding revenue is deferred and amortized on the same basis as the asset. Ministry funding
received as outlined in lending agreements, is brought into income in the year received with the offsetting
capital purchase recorded as program expense. Ministry funded capital expenditures included in program
expense and Ministry funding was $113,391 in 2020 (2019 - Snil).

The equipment is amortized straight-line using the following rates:

Furniture 20 years

The Centre regularly reviews capital assets to eliminate obsolete items. Amortization is calculated at half the
normal annual rate in the year of acquisition; no amortization is recorded in the year of disposal.

(h) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, financial
assets with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with any unrealized gains and losses reported
in income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost, and tested for impairment at each
reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are expensed
when incurred.

Financial instruments are comprised of accounts receivable, short and long-term investments and
receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. All financial instruments in these financial statements
are subsequently carried at amortized cost.

(i) Jointly Controlled Enterprises
The Centre has elected to account for all such interests using the cost method. This applies to the
partnership interest in Tillsonburg Community Services Initiatives (TCSI).

(j) Measurement Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit
Organizations requires management to make estimates and assumption that affect the reported amount of
assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Such estimates are periodically reviewed
and any adjustments necessary are reported in earnings in the period in which they become known. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. The primary estimates made by management in these financial
statements relate to the useful lives of capital assets and accrued liabilities.
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TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2020

3. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS AND RECEIVABLES

2020 2019

Partnership Interest - related party
The Board approved an initial investment in Tillsonburg Community
Services Initiatives in partnership with Community Living Tillsonburg.
The investment is recorded at its original cost in accordance with the
cost method forjointly controlled enterprises. 311,000 311,000

Loan Receivable - related party
The Board approved long-term financing to a related company,
Stonebridge Community Services (SCS). The loan was advanced to
fund start up costs. The loan bears cumulative interest at 1% payable
annually in December. There are no set terms of repayment and no

payments have been received in the last twelve month operating
period. 655,000 655,000

Advance Receivable - related party
The Board approved a short-term advance to a related company,
Stonebridge Community Services (SCS). The amounts have been
advanced to fund operating needs and working capital
requirements. The loan bears cumulative interest at 1% payable
annually in December. There are no set terms of repayment and no

payments have been received in the last twelve month operating
period. 93,915 93,915

Interest Receivable on SCS outstanding balances. 58,784 50,943

1,118,699 1,110,858

4, GOVERNMENT REMITTANCES

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are amounts for government remittances payable totaling
$34,209 (2019 - 40,472).

5. EQUIPMENT

Accumulated
Cost Amortization 2020 2019
$ $ $ $

Furniture 48,177 44,785 3,392 5,478
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TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2020

6. LEASE COMMITMENT

The Centre leases its premises located at 96 Tillson Avenue from Tillsonburg Community Services Initiatives. The
initial lease period ran for 15 years and expired July 31, 2013. The Centre exercised its option to extend the lease
five years, ending July 31, 2018. The organization has entered into a verbal agreement to extend the lease for
another 5 years. See note 7 - Related Party Transactions.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Centre paid rent for office space and storage of $61,902 (2019 - $61,248) to and received
administration fees of $12,000 (2019 - $12,000) from an organization in which they have a partnership interest,
Tillsonburg Community Services Initiatives (TCS!). The Centre, together with Community Living Tillsonburg
formed a partnership known as Tillsonburg Community Services Initiatives. This partnership is a non-profit
corporation established for the purpose of contracting, owning, operating, leasing and managing a building to
support community agencies. The initiative represents a jointly controlled enterprise for the Centre. These
transactions are in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange amount, being the
amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

During the year, the Centre made payments to Stonebridge Community Services (SCS) of $91,201 (2019 -

$85,261) for rent and $96,269 (2019 - $96,166) for exercise and falls prevention classes. The Centre charged SCS
revenue of $12,000 in administration fees (2019 - $12,000). SCS is a non-profit corporation related by common
board control. The purpose of SCS is to assist aged, ill or disabled persons by providing such services as
housekeeping, meal preparation, nursing and shopping assistance. The organization also assists needy persons
who are unemployed and low skilled by providing an employment training centre, counselling and education
programs. These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange
amount, being the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

The Centre periodically lends funds to SCS which are considered to be long term in nature with no set repayment
terms. The year end loan balance to SCS was $748,915 (2019 - $748,915), of which $93,915 has been classified as
an operating advance with the remaining portion considered a long-term loan financing. All amounts are
classified as long-term on these financial statements as there is no expectation of repayment within the next
operating period.

Interest accrues on these amounts annually at a rate of 1% per annum and is cumulative. Interest accrued and
receivable from SCS at year end is $50,942 (2018 - $43,101) and is included in long-term investments and
receivables; the amount is not expected to be collected within the next operating period.
Other related parties include management and governance for the Centre as they have the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities. All transactions with management are in the
normal course of operations and are limited to salary and wages. There have been no transactions with directors
and officers during the period. No other amounts are outstanding from or due to related parties.
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TILLSONBURG & DISTRICT MULTI-SERVICE CENTRE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended March 31, 2020

8. DEFERRED REVENUE AND SURPLUS FUNDS

Some of the programs which are offered by the Centre are funded on a different year end reporting basis than
the Centre. The deferred revenue represents the funds which have been received by the Centre, and which
relate to expenditures to be incurred subsequent to March 31, but for which no specific restricted fund has been
established. These funds will be matched against expenditures during a subsequent period. Any remaining
surplus in the government funded programs has been included in accounts payable and will either be returned to
the funding agency in the subsequent year, or used in a manner as prescribed by the funding agency and
amortized into income on that basis.

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Centre is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive risk

management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks. The following analysis provides
information about the Centre's risk exposure and concentration as of March 31, 2020:

(a) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The Centre
extends credit to its clients in the normal course of its operations. It carries out, on a continuing basis, credit
checks on its clients and maintains provisions for bad debts. The Centre has a significant number of clients
which minimizes the concentration of credit risk, and the most significant receivables are from the
government.

(b) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk reflects the sensitivity of the Centre's financial condition to movements in interest rates.
The company receives interest on its investments based on the bank prime rate. These interest rates are
representative of current market rates for investments with similar terms, conditions and maturities. The
Centre does not carry any interest bearing debt.

10. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The organization receives the majority of its revenue through various government ministries and its ability to
continue viable operations is dependent upon continued funding from the governments. The funding is based on
approved expenditure levels for each program as set out by agreements between the Ministry and the
organization. Any excess of revenue over expenditures subsidized by the Ministry can either be requested by the
Ministry to be returned or offset against future years' funding.

11. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the prior year's balances have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In March 2020 the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak began disrupting commerce around the world. The Canadian
Government began limiting travel and encouraged self-isolation for those recently travelling or symptomatic. The
impact of COVID-19 on the company’s operational and financial performance will depend on certain
developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on customers, employees and vendors
all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent of which the COVID-19 may impactthe financial condition or results of operations is uncertain.
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As I write these words this morning, we 
are in the middle of a pandemic and the 
world as we know it has turned upside 
down.  We are not sure what the “new” 
normal will look like going forward.  What I 
do know is that our sta�, leadership team 
and volunteers have met the challenge, 
been nimble on their feet and changed and 
adapted to all of the new requirements.  
We are in good hands! 
 
2019 was an extremely busy year.  Getting 
ready for accredi��on was one of the 
main focus’ of the year.  Sta� worked 
extremely hard to meet the challenge of 
the accredita�on standards and I am 
pleased to announce that the Mul�-service 
Centre received Accredita�on with 
Exemplary Standing.  Congratula�ons to 
everyone involved! 
 
The Leadership Team con�nues to review 
and update the MSC Strategic Plan.  Both 
the Mission and Vision of the organiza�on 
were updated and are shown below: 
 

Vision 

Building a Community of Inclusiveness, 
innovation and independence together. 

 

Mission 

The Multi-Service Centre is a charitable 
organization providing excellence in 

employment, literacy and home support 
services to Oxford, Norfolk and Elgin 

communities through partnerships and 
innovation that allow others to embrace 

their personal independence. 
 

As a client centered organiza�on client 
sa�sfa��on is of great importance to 
everyone.  I am pleased that our client  
 

sa�sfa��on surveys show a high level of 
overall sa�sfac�on, in all areas of the 
services we deliver.  Kudos to the 
Leadership Team, the sta� and volunteers 
that have made this happen.  Without you 
we would not be able to provide the 
services to the community that are so vital 
and important.   
 
A priority this year has been to promote 
safety for our clients par�cularly in the 
area of falls preven�on.  I am pleased to 
note that the number of falls has steadily 
decreased.  We will con�nue to educate 
each other and our clients on how to be 
safe in the home. 
 
I say this every year, but on behalf of the 
Board, thank you to all of the volunteers 
who are truly the backbone of the MSC 
organiza�on.  Hundreds of hours each year 
are put in by the volunteers to drive clients 
to their appointments, deliver meals on 
wheels, fundraise or provide tutoring 
services.  Thank you to each and every 
volunteer who gives of their �me, e�ort 
and exper�se to help out. Your 
contribu�ons touch lives and make an 
amazing di�erence to our clients and the 
community! 
 
As we move forward in 2020, while we 
may have to modify some of the ways we 
provide our services due to the pandemic, 
we will not change the level of care or 
service we provide to the communi�es we 
serve.  Thank you to all of the Board who 
have been so suppor�ve this past year and 
who give so generously of their �me. 
 

                                              Fran Bell,  
                                        Board Chair 

Fran Bell 

Valerie Foerster 

Marian Muth 

Director 

Helen Lamos-Parker 

 

Lynda Van De Maele  
 

David Morris 
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It has been a successful and rewarding year for the 
Mul�-Service Centre. All our programs met their 
goals and many in fact exceeded these, providing 
even more service to our communi�es. We could 
not have achieved this without our excellent sta�, 
Board of Directors, volunteers and 
the support of our clients, donors, 
and funders.  
 
Much of our work this year centred 
around two key priori�es; a culture 
of accountability and client and 
family advocacy. Central to those 
core principles was our on-site 
survey from Accredita�on Canada 
in the fall. This was the fourth 
accredita�on survey for the MSC, 
and we achieved our best results 
yet earning the highest standing possible; 
accredi��on with exemplary standing. This result 
demonstrated our commitment to quality and is 
evidence of the e�e��veness of our policies and the 
care we provide every day. This work never stops, 
and we are already reaching towards new 
improvements in our services. 

This year the MSC also engaged its sta�, volunteers, 
Client and Family Council as well as community 
partners for their ideas on how we could grow and 
improve. This feedback informed the crea�on of our 
new Strategic Plan, including a revised Mission, Vision 

and Core Beliefs, that will guide our work 
over the coming two years. This plan 
focuses on four strategic priori�es; 
Building Conne��ons, Foster Excep�onal 
People and Teams, Advance Safe Quality 
Care and Service and Strengthen 
Organiza�onal Capacity. We are excited 
as we begin all our plans that will see the 
MSC realize these important priori�es. 
 
The MSC enters the 2020-21 year full of 
op�mism and ready to meet the 
growing needs of our communi�es. I 

hope you will join us on Face Book or Instagram so we 
can keep in touch all year. 

 
                                                    Stay well, 

 
                               Kathryn Leatherland,    
                         MSC Execu�ve Director 
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VISION 

Building a Community of 
inclusiveness, innov��on and 

independence together.  
 

VALUES 

Collabor��on  

Diversity  

Integrity  

Respect  

Quality  

MISSION 

 

The Mul�-Service Centre is a 
charitable organiz��on 
providing excellence in 

employment, literacy and 
home support services to 
Oxford, Norfolk and Elgin 

communi��s through 
partnerships and innov��on 
that allow others to embrace 
their personal independence.  

 

Since 1978, the Mul�-Service Centre has been providing high quality 
employment, literacy and home support services to those in need.   
 
We are an accredited, non-pro�t, charitable organiz��on dedicated to 
promo�ng high quality accessible community services in Oxford, Elgin 
and Norfolk Coun�es. 



5  

Change and evolving to meet the needs of our 
clients and community is part of our daily pra��ce in 
providing Home Support Services.  We hold 
steadfast to our commitment of suppor�ng seniors 
and adults living with disabili�es to age in place, 
remain independent and connected to our 
community.  Home Support con�nues to strengthen 
our rela�onship with our funder, Ontario Health 
(formerly the Southwest LHIN), our community 
partners, our sta� and most importantly our clients 
to achieve this goal.   
 
Ongoing use of our informa�on system Alayacare in 
our daily pra��ces allows us to improve efficiencies 
in communica�on and care.  We can communicate 
and respond in real �me to our frontline sta� of 
Personal Support Workers, Housekeepers and  
volunteers in support of our clients and their care 
needs.  E�ec�ve communica�on and responses to 
clients, sta� and other health care professionals 
assists in minimizing poten�al of an incident 
occurring and contributes to the physical and 

emo�onal wellbeing of our clients and sta�.  We 
look forward to ini�a�ng and use of the Client and 
Family Portal that will further enhance the ability of 
e�e��ve communica�on between all involved in the 
care of our clients and adults living with disabili�es.   
Our Assisted Living Program expanded seamlessly to 

create an addi�onal hub in an area that historically 
has been a challenge to serve geography.  We now 
support twice the number of seniors and adults with 
disabili�es then we had previously.  Client’s care 
plans are ini�ated and updated to re�ect their goals 
of care and required care needs. 
 
Central Intake con�nues to grow in use across 
Oxford County.  The ability for our seniors and 
adults living with disabili�es to call one number and 
tell their story once has been embraced by those 
poten�al clients in their search for needed services.  
We have the privilege of aiding this program in 
mee�ng those needs.  Outcomes of Central Intake 
have enhanced collabora�on across service 
providers in the coun�es and efficient 
communica�on resul�ng in decreased wait �me for 
accessing and ini�a�on of requested services.   
 

“I want to thank each and every one 

of my PSW’s who take care of me in 

my home. They do not realize what 

they mean to me, they are all doing a 

fine job . . . " 

 - Client 

Home Support 
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Our transporta�on program is robust and always 
growing.  This would not be possible without the 
unwavering dedica�on of our volunteers who drive 
our clients to requested appointments in and out of 
town.  The use of our wheelchair 
van has assisted in those clients 
with mobility issues a��nd 
appointments and social 
func�ons.  Our ability to respond 
to transporta�on requests is 
re�ected in surpassing our funder 
requirements for number of rides 
and clients served. 
 
Whether it is a hot or frozen meal 
a client or family member requests, this program 
surpasses our funder requirements for number of 
clients and meals served.  Meals on Wheels 
(MOWs) serve the Tillsonburg, Norwich, 
Burgessville and Stra�ordville communi�es in 
mee�ng requested nutri�onal needs.  Client 
sa�sfa��on is high in variety and taste of our meals 
as well as the friendly volunteers who deliver the 
meals.   
 
Foot care is a very important service that provides 
our clients with basic foot care in home or in a clinic 
setting.  Our trained and cer��ed Personal Support 
Workers work diligently to maintain foot care 
health in our community.  The clinics held at 
Ingersoll Services for Seniors, Hickory Hills 
Re�rement Community in Tillsonburg, Mt. Elgin, 
Caressant Care LTC in Courtland and at the 
Livingston Centre are well a�ended and con�nue to 
grow.  Seniors are more a��ve and acknowledge 
the need for good foot health. 
 
Our housekeepers do not just provide 
housekeeping services but errand services, grocery 
shopping and meal prepara�on.  They ensure a 
clean home as well as monitor the client’s physical 
and emo�onal wellbeing.  They are another set of 
eyes suppor�ng our clients and are advocates in 
rela�ng client needs and concerns. 
 
Home Support went through our 4th Accredita�on 
Canada process this past October.  It was a journey 
that provided review and re�e��on of our 
organiza�onal policies, program procedures and 

guidelines as an organiza�on and within Home 
Support.   It was a team e�ort in mee�ng the 
Required Organiza�onal Pra��ces (ROPs) and 
established standards for high quality health care.  

These pra��ces and standards 
are globally created, and we 
achieved and exceeded the ROPs 
and standards and were 
accredited with Exemplary 
Standing.  We are very proud of 
this achievement and will not rest 
on our laurels.  We con�nue to 
review our policies and prac�ces 
to ensure we are providing the 
best care and services possible. 

 
I would be amiss if I did not speak to COVID-19 and the 
impact on our Home Support services and our 
community.  As this pandemic con�nues to play out 
our front line, internal sta� and volunteers have made 
a commitment to con�nue to serve the care needs of 
our vulnerable clients during this pandemic.  Our 
Assisted Living clients, MOWs, and Transporta�on 
programs con�nue.  The collabora�on, support and 
generosity of our governments, community, business 
and organiza�ons, volunteers and all sta� support our 
commitment to providing ongoing stellar care.  We are 
very apprecia�ve, and it is a privilege to be a part of 
our communi�es in mee�ng care and service needs.   

Thank you, take care and be safe. 
 

Diana Handsaeme,  
Director of Home Support Services 

FACTS 

• 12,692 Meals on Wheels (hot meals) delivered to 
145 clients 

• 154 Meals on Wheels (frozen meals) delivered to 
68 clients 

• 4,683  transportation drives to 218 clients 

• 27,759 assisted living hours to  66 clients 

• 928 Home Support Clients 

• 27,759 assisted living and 2,938 homemaking hours  

• 2,926 foot care sessions 

• 2,964 volunteer hours contributed by 86 volunteers  
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MSC Employment Services (as well as Literacy Basic 
Skills) programs are funded by the Ministry of Labour, 
Training and Skills Development (MLTSD), indica�ng 
another name change on 
the part of the funder 
since the previous year. 
 
Employment Services 
con�nues to assist job 
seekers, youth and 
employers in the 
community by providing 
Employment Services 
(and Job Development), 
Youth Job Conne��on, Youth Job Connec�on-Summer 
and the Canada Ontario Job Grant (for employers). 
Last year, over 4,277 clients par�cipated in 
Employment Services programming through The 
Livingston Centre site as well as the i�nerant office 
loca�on in Fairground.  
 
Team members ended the �scal year on a posi�ve 
note – mee�ng performance targets as set by the 
funder, while con�nuing to achieve high levels of 
client sa�sfac�on. The key marker of program success 
is the number of individuals connected to work and 
training (810 individuals) in Employment Services. In 
the youth programs, success is measured by the 
number of par�cipants who complete both the 
workshop and placement/educa�on components and 
maintain success for 3 months. Overall, these targets 
were met. Kudos to sta� for reaching these key 
obje��ves. 
 
Team members con�nue to support the MSC’s overall 
mission by inve��ng in community partnerships and 
a��vi�es. Examples include: providing employment 
focused workshops at the local high school twice a 
year; partnering, once again, with the Town of  
 
Tillsonburg to deliver two Job Fairs to bene�t both job 
seekers and employers; par�cipa�on on groups like 

the Tillsonburg Resource Network and ini�a�ves like 
the bike program, which links this means of 
transporta�on to some clients.  

 
Advancing educa�on 
op�ons remained a 
theme last year with 
Contact North con�nuing 
to come on-site in The 
Livingston Centre to 
connect individuals with 
online learning 
opportuni�es.  
 

Thank you to Contact North, and all referral partners 
in The Livingston Centre and the community, who 
help team members facilitate success for individuals. 

 
FACTS 

• 15 employers updated skills of 56 employees 
through Canada - Ontario Job Grant 

• 4,277 clients participated in Employment 
Services programs 

• 3,467 Resource & Information Workshop clients 

• 810 ES Assisted Service clients completed service 
with 666 successful outcomes (Training/
Employed) 

• 82 total participants in Youth Job Connection and 
YJC Summer programs with 66 successful 
outcomes (Training/Employed) 

• 129 youth have attended Get Connected Youth 
Network events 

• 694 New ES Assisted Service Intakes – 247 Youth 
(<30), 230 Mid-Aged Adults (30-44), 217 Older 
Worker Adults (>44) 

• 52 Employers have received Training Incentives 
for ES job placements 

Employment 
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The LBS program ended the �scal year on a high note 
– mee�ng all performance targets as set by the 
funder, the Ministry of Labour, Training and Skills 
Development (MLTSD). The program con�nues to 
measure high levels of Learner Sa�sfac�on. The key 
marker of program success is student goal 
achievement – with students reaching 77% of 
Learner Progress markers (60% was the target).  
 
The progress marker is especially noteworthy, as the 
MSC Literacy program provides services to an 
eclec�c student popula�on in both 1-1 and 
classroom settings. Improving technology skills is an 
increasingly important component of both service 
delivery and a necessary skill set for the job market 
in all sectors. Computers do not just ‘work’ when we 
turn them on!  
 
In addi�on to programming delivered by 
instru��onal sta�, tutors provide the valuable 1-1 
outreach using the Laubach method. Several new 
tutors were trained in this system prior to being 
matched with students over the past year. These two
-day sessions, twinned with screening protocols and 
weekly mee�ngs between matched pairs, 
demonstrate the commitment MSC tutors have to 
students.  
 
Long �me LBS coordinator Wendy Woodhouse 
re�red from MSC a�er almost 30 years of building 
and leading the literacy program for MSC. Wendy 

was well known as a 
staunch advocate of 
literacy. We thank her for 
her dedica�on and devo�on 
to the cause.  
 
Program personnel and 
literacy students provided 
input to the developer of a 
‘Bot Reader’ so�ware 
program. This tool has been 
designed to help adult 
students improve reading, 
pronuncia�on, spelling, 
vocabulary and word 
comprehension. We are grateful to Literacy Link 
South Central for making us aware of this �mely 
project – given the urgent need to increase and 
improve remote learning op�ons, a special challenge 
for those with low level literacy skills. 
 
Tillsonburg par�cipants in the Bot project were 
lauded by the developer for providing the most and 
the best feedback.  
 

“Today I spent some time reading 
again; I had a good time. Also listening 
to Bot Reader was good. I can see the 

words that I need to pronounce 
better.”  

-Literacy Student 
 

On a personal note, I thank instructors Sara 
(Tillsonburg) and Jennifer (Woodstock), as well as the 
tutors, for their dedica�on to the students in the 
program.  
 

Maureen Vandenberghe, 
Literacy & Basic Skills Coordinator 

FACTS 

• 140 Literacy students   

• 5,796 contact hours 

• 1,780.75 volunteer hours 

• 39 Literacy volunteers 

Literacy 
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2019 - 2020 Annual Operating Budget: $4,866,290 
 

In addi�on to these 
contracts for client 
services the MSC has 
revenue from fees 
associated with 
programs, grants, one-
�me projects, municipal 
support, dona�ons and 
fundraising. 

Mul�-Service Centre 
derives 91% of its funds 
through provincial funding 
that includes contracts 
with the Local Health 
Integra�on Network 
(LHIN) and Ministry of 
Labour, Training and Skills 
Development (MLTSD). 
These contracts include 
several programs that 
have very di�erent client 
eligibility, method of 
funding, targets and 
repor�ng requirements.  

Financials 

Thank you to our 

funders and donors 

for helping us to 

enable others to 

embrace their 

personal 

independence. 
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Staff Development —The MSC o�ers a number of 
training and development programs, both online and in 
person, on a variety of topics, such as improving skills 
and knowledge, workplace wellness and health and 
safety.  75 courses or training sessions were completed 
by our employees to expand their knowledge, develop 
skills and promote overall health and wellness.  Our 
PSWs completed training on a Posi�ve Approach to Care 
and a Gentle Persuasive Approach which focus on person
-centred, compassionate care. 

 

Dedication 

• 1 employee has more than 30 years of service  
• 3 employees have more than 20 years of service  
• 11 employees have more than 10 years of service 
• 15 employees have more than 5 years of service 

   

We are a community-focused group of 
talented and motivated employees that 
are dedicated to promoting high-quality 

accessible community services! 
 
Employee Satisfaction —To maintain employee 
sa�sfa��on, we promote and con�nuously improve 
such areas as e�e��ve communica�on, employee 
growth, a healthy work-life balance, and employee 
recogni�on.  Our overall employee reten�on rate for 
2019 was just over 96% - great job team! 
 
Team Building—We con�nue to engage with one 
another at our monthly sta� mee�ngs, through 
a��vi�es that encourage e�e��ve communica�on, 
��mulate employees’ personal and professional growth, 
and promote a coopera�ve team environment. 
 
Employee Wellness—The MSC takes pride in 
maintaining and promo�ng a safe and healthy work 
environment through comprehensive health and safety 
programs and procedures.  These meet or exceed the 
requirements under the Occupa�onal Health and Safety 
Act and its’ regula�ons, and other applicable legisla�on 
and codes.  To improve our excellent Health and Safety 
Program we have implemented a Psychological Health 
& Safety Management System (PHSMS), that focuses on 
the psychological well-being of our employees.  New 
this year, we introduced a Fitness Expense 
reimbursement to support our employees ability to 
maintain a healthy lifestyle outside of work as well. 
 

Our Team 
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Volunteers 

The MSC would like to thank all of our volunteers 

for their generous gift of time and talent.   
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Amanda Berry 
Angela Sulkowski 
Arthur Fuller 
Arthur Hoyland 
Barb Grumm�� 
Benjamin Holcombe 
Bill (William) Pra� 
Brad Holcombe 
Brandy Whitetail 
Brian Clark 
Catherine Klaver 
Cathy Crocker 
Cathy Sulkowski 
Chris Riley 
Christopher Eybergen 
Christopher Jackson 
Clara Meilu�s 
Cli� Sykes 
Country Sports 
Coyles Country Store 
Dave Rushton 
Dayna Noury 
Dean B. Crocker 
Deborah Boersen 
Dian Sco� 
Diana Handsaeme 
Dianne Desplenter 
Dimitri Papadakos 
Doris Zuk 
Doug Cooper 
Duncan and Kim Gillespie 
Edward Van Poucke 

Emily Zakiajsek 
Eva Walton 
Evelyn Goodal 
Everest Estate Homes Inc. 
Frank Tamasi 
George Croder 
Georgina Vincent 
Gerrit Pelleboer 
Glenna Walker 
Good Redden Klosler 
Greg Walton 
Hayden Wallace 
Helen Lemon 
Jennifer Janzen 
Jessica Pi��e 

Jim Devolin 
Jim Helsdon 
Joan (M.J.) Weston 
Jodie Crocker 
Jody Rymer 
Joe Sulkowski 
Johanna Gysbers 
John & Adele Armstrong 
John Cook 
John Palmer 
John Thiessen 
June Burgess 
June Liewellyn 
Karen Devolin 
Keeley Robinson 
Kirk Pa�erson 
Knights of Columbus 

Larry Banman 
Larry Lichty 
Lauren Pi��e 
Liane Papadakos 
Lif��mes Limited Partnership 
Linda Fenn 
Lisa Gordon 
Lori Hill 
Lynne Lake 
Margaret Grant 
Margaret Redecop 
Margaret Vanderzweerde 
Margaret's Fernlea Flowers & 
Gi�s (Tillsonburg) 
Maria Van De Munt 
Martha Blume 
Marty Graf 
Mary Salmon 
Maureen Vandenberghe 
Maxwell Adam 
Michelle Hesch 
Mike Donnelly 
Morgan Avelar 
Nancy Warren 
Nicole Cowan 
Nina Paul 
O�o Boka 
Owen Rymer 
Paul & Denise Moeyaert 
Paul Eybergen 
Peter Csanyi 
Peter Oliveira 
Philip Harris 
Phuong Tran 
Rose Jansen 
Rotary Club of             
Tillsonburg 
Sharon Howard 
Shirley Barker 
St. Mary's Catholic  
Women's League 

Steve Leonard 
Steve Molnar 
Steve Vani�ersum 
Steven Wilson 
Susan Saunders 
Tillsonburg Rentals and  
Property Maintenance Ltd. 
Timothy Bedard 
Tina Eybergen 
Tony Holcombe 
Valerie & Gary Foerster 
Vanessa Dyck 
Vic Meilu�s 
Victor Avelar 
Victor Navickas 
Wayne Scheers 
William and Carol Ashby 
Wilma P��t 
Xia Zhang 
Zena Robinson 

Thank you  

MSC  

Donors! 

Donors 
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Back in Mo�on  
Bossy Nagy Group  
Bridges of Tillsonburg  
Buchwald Consul�ng Services 
Candy Ma�hews Park 
Cardio Plus  
Checkers Cleaning Supply 
Cheryl Conick 
Chrissy’s Catering  
Community Living Tillsonburg 
Copper Mug 
Country Sports  
Cowan Insurance Group - Hamilton 
Brokerage 
Coward PharmaPlus  
Coyles Country Store  
Dad’s Ice Cream  
Dr. Ed Patenaude & Associates 
Duncan Gillespie 
ECI Inc  
Elgin County 
Ernie Hardeman 
Everest Estate Homes  
Execulink 
F.J. Galloway and Associates 
Flooring Canada  
Gibson Benne� Groom & Szorenyi 
Good Redden Kloser 
Horvath Auto 

I.M.A. Ltd  
ISW Systems 
JLH Compu�ng  
John Danbrook 
Kelsey’s Tillsonburg  
Lions club 
London Pacers Running Club  
Metro  
M&J Tirecra� 
M&M Meats 
Marwood Interna�onal 
Millards 
Nicolson and Cates Limited 
Norfolk County 
Norfolk Disposal 
Norwich Wine Shop 
O’Grady Insurance 
Ontario Laser Cutting  
Ontario Community Support 
Associa�on  

Ostrander’s Funeral Home  
Oxford Technology Group 
Pioneer Cabinetry  

Prouse Transport  
RBC  
R.E. Wood Realty 
Royal Glass and Mirror 
Running Room 
Sangsters Health Store 
SelectPath 
Sheryl Williams – CIBC Mortgage Advisor 
Sobeys  
SRG 
Super Air Bounce Rentals  
Tall Tree Lumber 
Teeburg Golf Academy  
The Includeables 
Thornton Lockworks 
Tillsonburg Garden Gate  
Tillsonburg Re�rement Residence  
Tim Horton’s  
Township of Norwich 
Township of South-West Oxford 

Town of Tillsonburg  
Tranquility  

Grants & Sponsorships 

“Giving is not just about making a donation,              

it is about making a difference.” 

- Kathy Calvin 
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Text: 226-721-1114 



Elgin 4-H Association
Positive Youth Development Organization



COMMUNITY  SERVICES  APPLICATION 
CULTIVATE  GRANTS ONLY 

 
Application Deadline: November 1, 2020 (intake 1) 

 

Please submit a paper copy or fill out the online form and refer to the application checklist at the end of the application to 
ensure your application is complete. 

 
General Organization/Applicant Information 
Name: _R_o_b_e_rt_a_G__ill_a_rd____________________________________ 
Title: _T_re_a_s_u_r_e_r ________________________________________ 
Organization: _E_lg_i_n_4_-H__A_s_s_o_c_ia_t_io_n__________________________ 
Service or Program: _p_o_si_ti_v_e_y_o_u_th__d_ev_e_l_o_p_m_e_n_t_o_rg_a_n_i_za_t_io_n_______ 

 
Grant request (in dollars*): $ _2_,0_0_0_.0_0__________ 

(* request should represent no more than 50% of the total program or service budget and must not exceed $10,000) 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Organization 

 
1.) Tell us about your organization, including details of how your organization serves Elgin County, information about your legal 
status (not-for-profit, etc., mandate or mission statement), and description of the implementation team. 

Elgin 4-H is a non-profit youth development organization with clubs across Elgin County.  Our Revenue 
Canada Charity status number is 88868-7340-RRR0001 and we have a board of directors. All board 
directors are volunteers - not paid. 
 
 
2.) How is your organization funded? 

 
In addition to the past County grants of $2000 annually, we do receive small grants from time to time from 
Ontario Mutual Insurance firms ($250), a seed company and the Elgin Federation of  Agriculture ($500).  
We have applied for other FCC and 4-H Canada grants, though the competition is great as 4-H clubs 
across Canada are eligible.  We have GICs amounting to $20,000 in reserve. 
 
Design 

 
3.) Please provide a brief description of the program or service you are proposing, including the steps you are taking to ensure a 
well-planned program or service. 
 
Elgin 4-H provides youth a place to grow and develop skills through hands-on activities, and 
mentorship as laid out by Ontario 4-H. 
 
4.) Please provide details of key dates and scheduled activities for the program or service. 
 
On average, Elgin 4-H provides 12+ clubs throughout the year focusing on sports and recreation, 
agriculture, environment and life skills.  Once their membership is paid, members may participate in as 
many clubs as they wish. 

 
5.) How many people do you hope your program or service will reach? 
 
Elgin 4-H hopes to offer our projects to approximately 100 youth in 2021 
 



 

 

 

Needs/Impact 
 

6.) Who is your targeted audience and does it fill a need in the community? 
 
Youth between 9 and 21 years of age and provides a place where they can be involved, 
accepted, valued and heard while developing valuable leadership and life skills. There is a 
strong social impact as our 4-H members make friends and acquaintances throughout the 4-H 
program and acquire an interest in life-long learning. 
 

7.) Please describe how widely the services are accessible to the target population and how you've aligned resources 
accordingly. 
 
There are 4-H clubs offered across Elgin County   Each club uses resources from 4-H Ontario and any 
materials needed for the projects are the responsibility of the individual clubs. 
 
 

8.) How will your program or service ensure accessibility and accommodate increased participation (i.e. persons with 
disabilities)? 

 

Elgin 4-H must follow 4-H Ontario's mandate to include all youth in our clubs, regardless of the 
disability and each volunteer leader must take training.  All clubs must have 2 screened 
volunteers at all times. Leaders who have completed 4-H Canada Youth Safety training. 
 
Cultivate/Renewal 

 

9.) What has changed about your program or service? (e.g. how will you build on your success, grow your reach, enhance the 
quality of your offerings to improve your sustainability with new features, programs, services, outreach methods or revenue 
sources? 

This year Elgin 4-H has had to adapt projects using zoom for meetings and we are able to reach youth 
who are attending school out of the area so they can still participate in the clubs.  As we offer more varied 
clubs, we continually reach out to the community businesses and agencies for financial support. 
 
10.) How will you measure your success? 

 
The number of members and the number of completed club projects will determine our success. 
Each member is required to attend no less than 2/3 of the meetings for any one project and must 
complete the achievement day requirement to complete a project. 
  
Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability 

 

11.) Please attach a detailed budget of your program or service including all revenues, expenses and in-kind contributions 
and information about other sources of funding (e.g. estimated volunteer hours, government funding, sponsorships). 

 
12.) Please attach your organization's financial information, including revenue and expenses for previous year (i.e. audited 

financial statements) and explanation of line items (e.g. annual membership fees or notes for significant variances), if available. 

 
 



Date: 2020.10.19 09:27:15 -04'00' Date: 2020.10.20 10:03:30 -04'00' 

13.) Why is this funding critical to your operations? Please be as specific as possible. 
 
The membership fees paid by each member are remitted to 4-H Ontario.  All funding received by Elgin 4-H 
is used to subsidize membership fees for families who are struggling financially, to provide volunteer 
training days, an annual general meeting, member awards presented at an annual award day and 
assistance to members participating in regional events and leadership camps. 

  

14.) Please describe the ways you will measure your success. 

Our success will be determined by the number of members, the number of completed club projects 
and the number of members who attend the various camps offered by Ontario 4-H. We also strive to 
increase our number of Screened volunteers attending our volunteer training day held once a year, 
and completing training courses mandated by 4-H Ontario or 4-H Canada.  

 
 
Application Checklist: 

 

Ensure your application is complete, and you have filled in and enclosed all of the necessary information including 
Financial Statements and Budget Submission. 

 
Include additional supporting materials including marketing materials (brochures, pamphlets, posters, etc.), if 
available.  
 

I have read the Terms and Conditions. 

Include a letter of support from the relevant municipal department if the initiative is linked to municipally owned 
land or facility. 

 
Declaration: 
I acknowledge that the County's investment is not to exceed 50% of the total for the program or service for the calendar year 
and understand that my application will be posted to the County's website and shared with the RIPA Committee and Elgin 
County Council. I have reviewed the Terms and Conditions and understand that if my application is successful, I agree to abide 
by the Terms and Conditions. I understand that all materials that are submitted as part of this application and the final report will 
be shared publicly to ensure accountability and transparency. I am not a County of Elgin employee, Councillor or lower-tier 
municipality in Elgin County. I understand I may be required to provide a presentation to the Rural Initiatives and Planning 
Advisory Committee to discuss my application. 

 
Authorized Signature(s) (two (2) needed if not incorporated): 

 
Name: _R_o_be_r_ta_A_G_i_lla_rd______________ 
Position: _T_re_a_su_r_er_________________ 
Signature: _R_ob_e_rt_a_A_G_i_lla_r_d _Dig_itall_y si_gne_d by_Ro_ber_ta A_Gi_llard_ 

Name: _M_a_ur_e_en__Je_n_ki_ns_______________ 
Position: _S_ec_r_et_ar_y_________________ 
Signature: _M_a_ur_e_en__Je_n_ki_n_s _Dig_itall_y si_gne_d by_Ma_ure_en _Jen_kins_ 

 

Applicants should mail, email or deliver a signed copy of the Application Form and supporting materials to: 
communitygrants@elgin.ca or mail to: 

 
Corporation of the County of Elgin 

c/o Chief Administrative Officer/Clerk - Community Grant Program 
450 Sunset Drive, St. Thomas, ON N5R 5V1 

mailto:communitygrants@elgin.ca






Community Signage Grant Applications: 

Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse





















Elgin County Tourism Directional Signage Grant Application 

Non-profit organizations applying for a $150 tourism signage grant per sign, 
from Elgin County Council must: 

1. Qualify as a tourism operation, as listed in Appendix “A” of the Tourism
Signage Policy (Please Contact Lindsey Duncan lduncan@elgin.ca or call
519-631-1460 ext. 164 for a copy of this policy or look under “Tourism
Member” on www.elgintourist.com).

2. Submit proof of being a non-profit tourism operation, and certification
showing registration as a non-profit entity, and/or provide satisfactory
evidence with the application.

3. Be located in Elgin County.

4. Must be a member of Elgin County Tourism

5. Submit this application to The County of Elgin, Economic
Development, 450 Sunset Dr. , St. Thomas, ON , N5R 5V1

* Please note that whether or not an applicant is successful in
obtaining this grant will be determined by Elgin County Council at a
Council Meeting*

Legal Name of Organization: Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse Inc. 

Contact Person: Karen Bechard 

Contact Person Title: Board of Directors - Vice-President 

Non-profit Registration: 
793657-5 

Full Business Address: 42 Wellington St.,  
PO Box 149 
Port Burwell ON N0J 1T0 

Contact Information: Phone: (519) 282-6691 
Email: Periscopeplayhouse@outlook.com 

Date of Application: 29 October 2020 

mailto:lduncan@elgin.ca
http://www.elgintourist.com/


Describe your non-profit organization’s contribution to tourism in Elgin 
County. 

Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse Mission: “We are a not-for-profit corporation 
dedicated to promoting and facilitating local theatre performances and cultural activities 
that enrich the community, while supporting and enabling community involvement and 
engagement in a positive, innovative and inspirational way.” 

The Playhouse attracts visitors from all over Southwestern Ontario and surrounding 
areas, including Waterloo, Milton, Stratford and Windsor.  Since our incorporation in 
2011, we have become popular at attracting patrons who come for plays and music 
events that have equated to increased business to other businesses in Port Burwell 
including five restaurants in town and two established bed and breakfast 
establishments.   

We share our community with the Port Burwell Provincial Park and a beautiful family 
friendly public beach that draws thousands of visitors to Port Burwell each season. 

Visitor’s often plan to have lunch or dinner prior to attending the playhouse or simply 
take a drive down to the public beaches and take in what Port Burwell has to offer. 

Explain your organization’s signage requirements, including why your 
organization requires directional tourism signage, where your 
organization would like these signs to be erected. *Note: not-for-profit 
organizations can apply for up to 2 signs.* 

Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse is striving to continue the upward trend of attracting 
visitors to Elgin County.  However, we feel there is a need to incorporate signs along 
Elgin County roads that will advertise the Playhouse and provide direction for those not 
familiar with Elgin County.  

We have been told by some first time patrons to the theatre that they had no idea we 
were in Port Burwell. We would like to increase awareness of our existence on two 
county roads that will make travellers aware and guide them to Port Burwell.  

In addition, we have been closed since March 2020 due to COVID-19.  We are working 
on re-opening in May 2021 with solid business strategies and achievable goals.  The 
signage would very much assist us in ensuring there is awareness that we are in 
existence and open in 2021.  



This grant request will assist us financially so our current funds can be used to cover 
operational costs over the winter leading up to our re-opening in May 2021.  

LOCATION REQUEST 

One location (see attached application with photos) is on County Road 73 in the 
Township of Malahide just north of the hamlet of Copenhagen.  This is key in advising 
travellers they need to turn left (east) on Nova Scotia Line (County Rd 42).   The 
requested signage would align with existing signage directing travellers to Port 
Burwell’s Provincial Park and the HMCS Ojibwa Museum.  

The second location would be for Nova Scotia Line in Port Burwell near the bridge at 
Robinson Street (Hwy 19).  This will assist in directing travellers to turn right at the “T” 
intersection on the bridge.   

See attached photos of current signage at requested locations.  Not sure if it would be 
possible to place a        on the Nova Scotia line signage? 



Industry lndustrie 
Canada Canada 

Certificate of Incorporation Certificat de constitution 
Canada Not-for-profit Corporations Act Loi canadienne sur /es organisations a but non 

/ucratif 

PORT BURWELL PERISCOPE PLAYHOUSE INC. 

Corporate name/ Denomination de !'organisation 

793657-5 
Corporation number / Numero de 

!'organisation 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named 
corporation, the articles of incorporation of which 
are attached, is incorporated under the Canada 
Not-for-profit Corporations Act. 

JE CERTIFIE que !'organisation susmentionnee, 
dont les statuts constitutifs sont joints, est 
constituee en ve1tu de la Loi canadienne sur !es 
organisations a but non lucratif. 

Marcie Girouard 
Director / Directeur 

2011-11-30 
Date of Incorporation (YYYY-MM-DD) 

Date de constitution (AAAA-MM-JJ) 

Canada 



The Corporation of Loyalist Township 
P.O. Box 70, 263 Main Street  Odessa, On  K0H 2H0 

 t: 613-386-7351  f: 613-386-3833  www.loyalist.ca 

October 9, 2020 

The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau 
Prime Minister of Canada  
Email: justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca 

The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario  
Email: premier@ontario.ca 

Re: Funding for community groups and service clubs affected by pandemic 

Please be advised that at the Regular Meeting of Council on September 28, 2020, the 
Council of Loyalist Township passed the following resolution:  

Resolution No. 2020.35.16 
Moved by: Deputy Mayor Hegadorn 
Seconded by: Councillor Porter 

“Whereas, the world health organization characterized covid-19 as a pandemic 
on March 11, 2020 

And whereas, travel restrictions were put in place March21st, 2020 with 
emergency orders being established under the quarantine act 

And whereas, the province of Ontario entered a state of emergency on March 17, 
2020 

And whereas Loyalist Township declared a state of emergency on March 26, 
2020 

And whereas the Kingston, Frontenac, Lennox and Addington Public Health Unit 
have enacted orders under Section 22 of the Ontario Health Protection and 
Promotion Act, 1990 

And whereas the above noted state of emergencies and orders restricted the 
ability for charities, community groups and service clubs to raise or acquire funds 
through conventional methods 

And whereas these charities, community groups and service clubs provide vital 
resources and support critical to community members 

mailto:premier@ontario.ca


And whereas these charities, community groups and service clubs’ partner with 
municipal governments reducing the financial pressures on the government while 
enhancing the lives of residents 

Therefore be it resolved that Loyalist Township council requests confirmation 
from the governments of Ontario and Canada that funding will be available for 
these local smaller charities, community groups and service clubs. 

AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be circulated to the Right 
Honourable Prime Minister of Canada; the Honourable Premier of Ontario; MP 
Derek Sloan, Hastings - Lennox and Addington ; the Honourable Daryl Kramp, 
MPP Hasting-Lennox and Addington; the Association of Municipalities Ontario; 
Rural Ontario Municipalities Association and all Municipalities within the Province 
of Ontario”. 

Regards, 

Brandi Teeple  
Deputy Clerk  
Loyalist Township 

cc. MP Derek Sloan- Hastings-Lennox and Addington
MPP Daryl Kramp- Hastings- Lennox and Addington
Association of Municipalities Ontario
Rural Ontario Municipalities Association
All Ontario Municipalities
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	Grant Applications Combined.pdf
	Beachfest Application Package.pdf
	FESTIVALS AND EVENTS APPLICATION
	The Bayham Beachfest is a 2 day event traditionally located on the beach in Port Burwell. Due to high water levels, the event is planned to shift to the downtown core. The event is scheduled to host Lucas Wilson, famous entertainment act, Car show, C...
	See attachment: Bayham Beachfest 2020 Lineup. The event committee plan to use the same lineup for 2021. The event is scheduled to be held Saturday July 31-Sunday August 1 2021. Saturday July 31 will host a wide variety of acts and entertainment, fun f...
	Typically our event has brought an audience of 5,000-8,000 visitors from all over our region. We are confident we will reach these numbers again, provided Covid 19 protocol allow the event.
	As stated in our mission statement, our event is held for visitors, tourists, families and members of our community. Members of the community come together and volunteer where needed. The event creates a social gathering place for all to enjoy. Busine...
	The Bayham Beachfest has brought thousands of visitors to Elgin County over the past years. Many visitors and tourists travel from all over south west Ontario passing through many small communities before reaching their destination in Port Burwell. Th...
	See attachment: Accessibility in Ontario.  The Bayham Beachfest committee will do our best to follow guidelines layed out in the document.
	The 2021 Bayham Beachfest will implement all Covid-19 protocols if  possible. We will require input from South Western Public Health to guide us to provide a safe environment for all. Due to a flooded beach area and extremely low volunteerism, the 201...
	Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability
	Receiving funding will allow the Bayham Beachfest to meet objectives, goals and devlopment not only for the event itself but also for the Port Burwell community. Our event relies solely on the efforts of a small committee made up of volunteers who giv...


	Edison Fest Package.pdf
	FESTIVALS AND EVENTS APPLICATION
	We are a community volunteer run organization operating from the VIENNA EDISON & AREA. MUSEUM located in Vienna, Ontario. See attached pamphlet for our mandate and mission statement. We are a federally registered charity We work with the municipality ...
	Event can attract up to 500 attendees
	This is an outdoor event so access to all venues is possible.
	The number of attendees at the event. Some funds are generated through associated activities(ie licensed lottery event, silent auction, food sales) and getting attendees at this event to join our Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability
	We purchased a facility in the community in January 2020 which has required some reprofiling of our limited funds and the pandemic has limited our opportunities for fund raising as all events since March 2020 have been drastically scaled back or cance...

	BHS-Brochure-4.pdf
	Promoting:


	Festivals & Events Grant Application - Periscope Playhouse.pdf
	Appendix A – Projected Expenses
	Appendix B – Projected Revenue
	Appendix C - Balance Sheet Report as of September 30 2020
	Appendix D - Profit and Loss Comparison Report YTD and 2019
	Appendix E - Profit and Loss Report 2019 Fiscal Year

	PSFT - Application.pdf
	FESTIVALS AND EVENTS APPLICATION
	We are hoping to reach 50 people per performance, with a total of 200 people over the four shows.
	Success is measured by auidence atttendance.


	Wallacetown.pdf
	FESTIVALS AND EVENTS APPLICATION
	The Wallacetown Agricultural Society is solely funded by donations and fundraising in the community.  A small group of 14 directors and associates and volunteers work tirelessly in their spare time to fundraise through drive thru dinners, working bing...
	Design
	25000 people
	We will measure the success of the fair by our gate receipts.
	We need to advertise to create awareness of our annual fair. This year marked 160 years of memories for our community but we must accept the fact that we will not thrive unless we bring more people to the fair. Advertising can target your audience and...


	Festival and Events - Cultivate_Part2.pdf
	Seniors Day Application.pdf
	FESTIVALS AND EVENTS APPLICATION
	Through grants and donations within our Community
	July 14, 2021 from 9:00am to 4:00pm
	Seniors ages 55+ and/or Adults living with a disability.
	Pinafore Park is accessible for persons with disabilities.
	At the event we hand out a set number of reusable bags with programming for the day, and they can use to house all the information that they collect from the businesses and organizations that come out and support our community event. Online activity c...
	Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability



	Community Services Applications.pdf
	COMMUNITY  SERVICES  APPLICATION
	The Optimist Club of Port Stanley was chartered in 1970.  Since that time it has served Port Stanley and community, especially its' youth and families.  Over the last 50 years this club has donated hundreds of thousands of dollars to local sports prog...
	Due to Covid19, there has been a drastic change in the way our local school is providing daily learning.  Technology has taken a front seat for not only our school, but many students and families are lacking the technological equipment needed to succe...
	After discussions with the principal of the school, it is projected that these Google Chromebooks will ultimately assist all 430 students plus staff and potentially parents and caregivers both now and in the future.  Should Covid19 go into a future lo...
	With the success of this partnership, the technology will be accessible during the school year.  The Optimist Club of Port Stanley has budgeted for 50% of the funds required for this project.  It is our intent to purchase 16 Google Chromebooks for the...
	Google Chromebooks can be used by all students and the school has the  perfect teaching environment for these devices. Chromebook technology provides students with Learning Disabilities the tools they need to be able to articulate and express their fe...
	This is the first grant that we have applied for.  We felt that during the Covid19 pandemic we would like to expand our clubs' ability to assist those in need.  Our fundraising efforts have been challenged with the new Covid19 rules and this grant see...
	14.) Please describe the ways you will measure your success.
	The Optimist Club of Port Stanley will measure our success - class by class and student by student.
	Our contest entries will be evaluated in conjunction with the class teachers and a deserving student will win bragging rights to the new Google Chromebook.  This will be a school wide project and will be promoted to enhance mental health at the school.
	We have ongoing open communication lines with the principal of the school and will keep current on updates regarding this project.
	As always, it is our hope to make a difference by enhancing the opportunities for our youth.

	STESSH Final Application Package.pdf
	COMMUNITY  SERVICES  APPLICATION
	St. Thomas-Elgin Second Stage Housing has many great community partners to help support our operations and services, but STESSH faces funding shortfalls with the costs of all the programs we offer. STESSH needs to develop resources and materials, and ...
	STESSH aims to address the funding shortfalls through event fundraising, grant writing, working with community leaders & partners, businesses, and service groups so the staff can adequately provide the counselling and support the women and children need.
	Funding for the programs come from Ministry of Community and Social Services, fundraising, and rent.  The United Way assists by providing funds to employ a Children’s Advocate. The City of St. Thomas provides an annual rent supplement to support the r...
	The operation costs to run the residence, services, and counselling programs are more than $356,000 annually. Our current support from donations, grants, including funding from United Way does not completely cover the costs, and we need to fundraise a...
	On average, 30 women, and 38 children live in residence each year. The programs are offered according to the situation and need of each individual woman and child. Each woman is provided approximately 550 hours of individual counselling, and 70 hours ...
	Transitional Housing & Support Program
	Transitional support is offered to women that are waiting to move into the residential program. This includes emotional support, and safety planning, so the women can transition into the program in a safe manner. These referrals and advocacy are offer...
	Residential Counselling Program
	Group and individual counselling sessions are offered to the women residing in the program. Group counselling focuses on helping residents to gain an understanding of the impact of abuse, understand feelings and emotions, develop problem-solving skill...
	There is a focus on building social networks, enhancing self-esteem, identifying and understanding the issues of power and control. Staff members assess personal options, which help the women to develop a strong skill set to establish future goals.
	The educational groups are offered on a weekly basis. In the week that follows the group sessions, women meet one-to-one with a staff member to discuss group content, and apply it personally. Each woman has one staff member dedication to their assista...
	Children’s Program
	Witnessing and experiencing abuse negatively impacts children in many different ways, and influences their daily lives and future. STESSH offers counselling and support programs to the children living at the residence, and includes psycho-educational ...
	Due to the personal history and experiences of the children, our staff evaluate each child through psychological-based assessments. These assessments help staff gain an in-depth understanding of each child’s behaviour, reaction, learning style and the...
	Ultimately, the assessments reveal the child’s intellectual, social, coping, and emotional state. They also look at memory, attention, behavioural, social and emotional functioning. The assessments can also help staff identify cognitive and academic s...
	The psycho-educational based programs are designed to increase safety skills, self-esteem, confidence, coping strategies, and learn about topics that allow them to recognize healthy social and life management skills.
	The children's programs offers education about family violence, safety planning, problem solving skills and emotions. The one-to-one programs available provide emotional support, allowing them to talk about issues privately. The learning and changing ...
	Ultimately, the counselling and programs have a strong impact on the children. We have seen positive results in many aspects of their lives including: the ability to trust, increased comfort, sense of security, self-confidence, positive communication,...
	Our program runs on an annual basis from April 1 to March 31. One to one counselling is provided to women and children weekly as well as on an as needed basis. In addition, family support meetings are held weekly with each family. Group support meetin...
	Our 2019/2020 Statistics are a reflection of how many women and children benefit from our programs each year.
	Residential Counselling Program
	9      Months – average length of stay
	31    Women served
	41    Children served
	550   Individual counselling hours (women)
	275  Support & recreational group hours (children)
	31    Safety plans completed
	Transitional Housing & Support Program
	118      Number of women served
	350    Individual counselling hours (women)
	118    Transitional plans completed
	15      Number of follow-up women served
	98      Hours of follow-up support offered
	The reality is that Canada spends more that $7 billion a year to address domestic violence which places great pressure on the healthcare, protection and legal systems. St. Thomas-Elgin Second Stage Housing works to address this violence and support th...
	Our Goal is to provide a safe environment in which information, access to practical resources, time and support are available to all women regardless of race, colour, religion, education level, economic status, or disability. From the first meeting th...
	STESSH has many great community partners and volunteers to help support the women and children, however we need to fundraise to fully support the women and children we serve. Ultimately, our staff has a strong impact on the women and children, and hav...
	We measure our success by tracking metrics such as dollars raised, women and children served, and successfully managing overhead costs. These metrics are certainly important as well we take pride in the 26 years that our organization has been fulfilli...


	MSC - final application package.pdf
	COMMUNITY  SERVICES  APPLICATION
	The Multi-Service Centre provides programming in three (3) program areas: Adult Literacy & Essential Skills; Employment Services and Home Support Services. We are asking for support for our community programs. MSC programs receives base funding from t...
	Last fiscal year, the MSC supported 59 Employment Services clients, 25 Literacy clients and 51 Home Support clients from Elgin County.  We anticipate our numbers will grow this year due to COVID-19’s impact on the employment sector.
	The MSC supports people of all ages: seniors, youth, adults, who all come from very different backgrounds.  Within this group, there is a large portion of Low-German speaking clients who receive regular support through our Literacy program.  Once comp...
	All clients in our community programs have identified goals. These goals may include: ability to stay in their own homes (seniors); and for those in the literacy and employment programs: employment, improved job performance, upgrading for further trai...
	Efficiency, Transparency & Accountability
	All of our programs receive base funding annually from two provincial government ministries. However, the agency must raise community support every year in order to meet program needs.  Technology literacy is more important than ever as many services ...
	14.) Please describe the ways you will measure your success.


	4-H Final Application Package.pdf
	COMMUNITY  SERVICES  APPLICATION
	In addition to the past County grants of $2000 annually, we do receive small grants from time to time from Ontario Mutual Insurance firms ($250), a seed company and the Elgin Federation of  Agriculture ($500).  We have applied for other FCC and 4-H Ca...
	Elgin 4-H hopes to offer our projects to approximately 100 youth in 2021
	There are 4-H clubs offered across Elgin County   Each club uses resources from 4-H Ontario and any materials needed for the projects are the responsibility of the individual clubs.
	This year Elgin 4-H has had to adapt projects using zoom for meetings and we are able to reach youth who are attending school out of the area so they can still participate in the clubs.  As we offer more varied clubs, we continually reach out to the c...
	The number of members and the number of completed club projects will determine our success. Each member is required to attend no less than 2/3 of the meetings for any one project and must complete the achievement day requirement to complete a project.
	14.) Please describe the ways you will measure your success.



	Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse EC Signage Application.pdf
	Port Burwell Periscope Playhouse
	Tourism Signage Application (Signed)
	Photo of Imperial Rd north of Copenhagen Location 1
	Photo of Nova Scotia Line north of Robinson in Port Burwell 1

	Tourism Signage Grant Form for application
	Periscope NFP Licence




	RIPA Draft Minutes - August 26, 2020.pdf
	DRAFT MINUTES
	Rural Initiatives/Planning Advisory Committee Meeting
	1. Call to Order
	2. Approval of Agenda
	4. Additional Funding Requests and Community Grant Program Approval
	The Supervisor of Legislative Services and Community Relations provided an update on funding requests received from community members on behalf of local event organizers. While the Committee decided to support Community Service organizations who deve...
	The application period for the 2021 calendar year will open on September 1, 2020, and the timelines will allow the Committee to provide funding earlier in the new year. All previous applicants will be encouraged to apply.
	Moved by: Warden Mennill
	Seconded by: Councillor Giguère
	RESOLVED THAT the August 19th, 2020, report titled, Additional Funding Requests and Community Grant Program Approval, submitted by the Supervisor of Legislative Services and Community Relations, be received and filed for information; and,
	THAT the Rural Initiatives and Planning Advisory Committee does not recommend additional funding at this time.
	5. Next Meeting Date
	6.  Adjournment
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